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“Safe Harbor” Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements about U.S. Bancorp. Statements that are not
historical or current facts, including statements about beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking statements and are
based on the information available to, and assumptions and estimates made by, management as of the date hereof. These
forward-looking statements cover, among other things, anticipated future revenue and expenses and the future plans and
prospects of U.S. Bancorp. Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties, and important factors
could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated. The COVID-19 pandemic is adversely affecting U.S.
Bancorp, its customers, counterparties, employees, and third-party service providers, and the ultimate extent of the impacts
on its business, financial position, results of operations, liquidity, and prospects is uncertain. Continued deterioration in
general business and economic conditions or turbulence in domestic or global financial markets could adversely affect U.S.
Bancorp’s revenues and the values of its assets and liabilities, reduce the availability of funding to certain financial
institutions, lead to a tightening of credit, and increase stock price volatility. In addition, changes to statutes, regulations, or
regulatory policies or practices could affect U.S. Bancorp in substantial and unpredictable ways. U.S. Bancorp’s results could
also be adversely affected by changes in interest rates; further increases in unemployment rates; deterioration in the credit
quality of its loan portfolios or in the value of the collateral securing those loans; deterioration in the value of its investment
securities; legal and regulatory developments; litigation; increased competition from both banks and non-banks; civil unrest;
changes in customer behavior and preferences; breaches in data security, including as a result of work-from-home
arrangements; failures to safeguard personal information; effects of mergers and acquisitions and related integration; effects
of critical accounting policies and judgments; and management’s ability to effectively manage credit risk, market risk,
operational risk, compliance risk, strategic risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and reputation risk.

For discussion of these and other risks that may cause actual results to differ from expectations, refer to U.S. Bancorp’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020, on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
including the sections entitled “Corporate Risk Profile” and “Risk Factors” contained in Exhibit 13, and all subsequent
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934. In addition, factors other than these risks also could adversely affect U.S. Bancorp’s results, and the reader should
not consider these risks to be a complete set of all potential risks or uncertainties. Forward-looking statements speak only as
of the date hereof, and U.S. Bancorp undertakes no obligation to update them in light of new information or future events.
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iK1 1[:% 0 Selected Financial Data

Three Months Ended

March 31
Percent
(Dollars and Shares in Millions, Except Per Share Data) 2021 2020  Change
Condensed Income Statement
Netinterest INCOME . . . . o o $ 3,063 $ 3,223 (5.00%
Taxable-equivalent adjustment (8) . . . . . . . . 26 24 8.3
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) (0) . . . . .. ... 3,089 3,247 (4.9)
NONINtEIrESt INCOME . . . . o o 2,381 2,625 (5.7)
Total NetreveNUE . . . o . 5,470 5,772 5.2)
NONINTErEST BXPENSE . .+ o o o 3,379 3,316 1.9
Provision for Credit I0SSES . . . . . o (827) 993 *
INncome before taxes . . . . . . 2,918 1,463 99.5
Income taxes and taxable-equivalent adjustment . . . . . ... 633 284 *
NEtINCOME . o o 2,285 1,179 93.8
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontroling interests . . . .. ... oo o 5) (8) 37.5
Net income attributable to U.S. Bancorp . . . . . . . $ 2,280 $ 1171 94.7
Net income applicable to U.S. Bancorp common shareholders . . . ... .. ... o o $ 2,175 $ 1,088 99.9
Per Common Share
BEamings PerShare . . . . o oo o $ 145 $ 72 *%
Diluted eamnings Per share . . . . . o 1.45 72 *
Dividends declared pershare . .. . .. . A2 A2 —
Book value pershare (C) . . . . v v oo 30.563 30.24 1.0
Market value Per Share . . . o . oo 55.31 34.45 6
Average common shares outstanding . . . . . o 1,502 1,518 (1.1
Average diluted common shares outstanding . . . . . . . 1,603 1,619
Financial Ratios
Retum onaverage assets . . . . . 1.69% .95%
Retumn on average COmmON QUITY . . . . o oo oo 19.0 9.7
Net interest margin (taxable-equivalent basis) (@) . . . . . . o 2.50 2.91
Efficiency ratio (0) . . . o 62.1 58.0
Net charge-offs as a percent of average loans outstanding . . ... ... ... . . o 31 .53
Average Balances
[ $293,989 $297,657 (1.2)%
Loans held for sale . . . o 10,032 4,748 *
Investment securities (d) . . . . o o 145,520 120,843 20.4
Eaming @SSets . . . o 497,711 447,722 1.2
SIS . o 548,734 494,807 10.9
Noninterest-bearing depositS . . . . o . o o 118,352 74,142 59.6
DEPOSIES o v o 426,364 362,804 17.5
Short-term DOMOWINGS . . . . o o 13,107 20,253 (35.3)
Long-term debt . . . o 39,463 43,846 (10.0)
Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders’ equity . . . . oo 52,729 51,146 3.1
March 31,  December 31,
2021 2020
Period End Balances
LOANS . $294,427 $297, 707 (1.1)%
INVESIMENT SECUMIES . . . . 166,003 136,840 14.0
ASSES o 553,375 553,905 (1)
DEPOSIES v 433,761 429,770 9
Long-term debt . . . o 37,419 41,297 9.4)
Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders’ equity . . . . . oo 51,678 53,095 (2.7)
Asset Quality
NONPEMOMING ASSEIS . . . o o o e e $ 1,202 $ 1,298 (7.4)%
Allowance for Credit I0SSES . . . . v o e 6,960 8,010 (13.1)
Allowance for credit losses as a percentage of period-end loans . . .. ... oo 2.36% 2.69%
Capital Ratios
Common equity tier Tcapital . . . . . .o 9.9% 9.7%
Tier T capital . . o 1.6 1.3
Totalrisk-based capital. . . . . . . 13.6 13.4
LEVEIAGE .« . o o 8.4 8.3
Total leverage eXPOSUIE . . v . oo e 7.4 7.3
Tangible common equity to tangible assets () . . . . . . . . 6.6 6.9
Tangible common equity to risk-weighted assets (0) . . . . . . . o 9.1 9.5
Common equity tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, reflecting the full implementation of the current expected
credit losses Methodology (D) . .« . v o oo oo 9.5 9.3

* Not meaningful

(a) Based on a federal income tax rate of 21 percent for those assets and liabilities whose income or expense is not included for federal income tax purposes.

(b)  See Non-GAAP Financial Measures beginning on page 30.

(c) Calculated as U.S. Bancorp common shareholders’ equity divided by common shares outstanding at end of the period.

(d)  Excludes unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale investment securities and any premiums or discounts recorded related to the transfer of investment securities at fair

value from available-for-sale to held-to-maturity.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

Earnings Summary U.S. Bancorp and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”) reported net income attributable to

U.S. Bancorp of $2.3 billion for the first quarter of 2021,
or $1.45 per diluted common share, compared with

$1.2 billion, or $0.72 per diluted common share, for the
first quarter of 2020. Return on average assets and return
on average common equity were 1.69 percent and

19.0 percent, respectively, for the first quarter of 2021,
compared with 0.95 percent and 9.7 percent,
respectively, for the first quarter of 2020.

Total net revenue for the first quarter of 2021 was
$302 million (5.2 percent) lower than the first quarter of
2020, reflecting a 5.0 percent decrease in net interest
income (4.9 percent on a taxable-equivalent basis) and a
5.7 percent decrease in noninterest income. The decrease
in net interest income from the first quarter of 2020 was
primarily due to the impact of lower interest rates
compared with the prior year and higher premium
amortization in the investment portfolio related to
mortgage refinance activities, partially offset by changes
in deposit and funding mix as well as higher loan fees
related to the Small Business Administration (“SBA”)
Paycheck Protection Program. The noninterest income
decrease was driven by lower mortgage banking revenue,
deposit service charges, securities gains and other
noninterest income, partially offset by improvement in
trust and investment management fees and commercial
products revenue.

Noninterest expense in the first quarter of 2021 was
$63 million (1.9 percent) higher than the first quarter of
2020, reflecting increases in personnel expense, primarily
related to performance-based incentive compensation, as
well as technology and communications expense,
partially offset by lower net occupancy and equipment
expense, marketing and business development expense,
and other noninterest expense.

The provision for credit losses for the first quarter of
2021 was a benefit of $827 million, which was
$1.8 billion lower than the first quarter of 2020,
reflecting a decrease in the allowance for credit losses

U.S. Bancorp

during the first quarter of 2021 primarily due to
improving economic conditions. Net charge-offs in the
first quarter of 2021 were $223 million, compared with
$393 million in the first quarter of 2020. Refer to
“Corporate Risk Profile” for further information on the
provision for credit losses, net charge-offs,
nonperforming assets and other factors considered by the
Company in assessing the credit quality of the loan
portfolio and establishing the allowance for credit losses.

STATEMENT OF INCOME ANALYSIS

Net Interest Income Net interest income, on a taxable-
equivalent basis, was $3.1 billion in the first quarter of
2021, representing a decrease of $158 million (4.9
percent) compared with the first quarter of 2020. The
decrease was primarily due to the impact of lower
interest rates compared with the prior year and higher
premium amortization related to securities prepayments,
partially offset by changes in deposit and funding mix as
well as higher loan fees. Average earning assets were
$50.0 billion (11.2 percent) higher than the first quarter
of 2020, reflecting increases of $24.7 billion (20.4
percent) in investment securities and $23.7 billion (96.8
percent) in other earning assets, including cash balances
being maintained for liquidity given the current
economic environment, while average loans decreased
$3.7 billion (1.2 percent) due to continued paydowns by
corporate customers that accessed the capital markets.
The net interest margin, on a taxable-equivalent basis, in
the first quarter of 2021 was 2.50 percent, compared
with 2.91 percent in the first quarter of 2020. The
decrease in net interest margin from the first quarter of
2020 was primarily due to the impact of a lower yield
curve on earning assets, higher premium amortization
within the investment portfolio and decisions to
maintain higher levels of liquidity, partially offset by the
net benefit of deposit repricing and funding composition
and higher loan fees. Refer to the “Consolidated Daily
Average Balance Sheet and Related Yields and Rates”
table for further information on net interest income.



iE:1:1:’4 Noninterest Income

Three Months Ended

March 31

Percent
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020  Change
Creditand debit card revVenUE . . . . . . o . $ 336 $ 304 10.5%
Corporate payment ProdUCES TEVENUE . . . . . o o o o 126 145 (13.1)
Merchant procesSINg SEIVICES . . . o . o v ot 318 337 (5.6)
Trust and investment management fees . . . . . 444 427 4.0
DepoSit SEIVICE Charges . . . . o . oo 161 209 (23.0)
Treasury Management FEES . . . . . o o o 147 143 2.8

Commercial produCtS revenUE . . . .« oo
Mortgage bankingrevenue . . . .. ... o
Investment productsfees . . . ... ...
Securities gains (10SSes), NEt. . . . . v
Other

Total noninterest inCome . . . . .. ..

280 246 13.8

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 299 395 (24.9)

55 49 12.2
25 50 (50.0)

.............................. 190 220 (13.6)

$2,625 (5.7)%

Average total loans in the first quarter of 2021 were
$3.7 billion (1.2 percent) lower than the first quarter of
2020. The decrease was primarily due to lower
commercial loans (3.7 percent) driven by continued
paydowns by corporate customers that accessed the
capital markets, lower credit card loans (11.3 percent)
driven by higher customer payment rates, lower
commercial real estate loans (3.2 percent) reflecting
customer paydowns and a decrease in new loan
origination activity, and lower total other retail loans
(0.2 percent). The decrease in total other retail loans
reflected the net impact of lower home equity and second
mortgages (18.7 percent) as more customers chose to
refinance their existing first lien residential mortgage
balances during the prior year due to the low interest rate
environment, partially offset by higher other retail loans
(9.5 percent) driven by growth in installment loans due
to the impact of COVID-19 on recreational vehicle sales.
The decrease in average total loans was further offset by
growth in residential mortgages (6.1 percent) driven by
loan repurchases from the Government National
Mortgage Association (“GNMA”).

Average investment securities in the first quarter of
2021 were $24.7 billion (20.4 percent) higher than the
first quarter of 2020, primarily due to purchases of
mortgage-backed, U.S. Treasury and state and political
securities, net of prepayments and maturities.

Average total deposits for the first quarter of 2021
were $63.6 billion (17.5 percent) higher than the first
quarter of 2020, including approximately $10 billion
related to the acquisition of deposit balances from State
Farm Bank in the fourth quarter of 2020. Average
noninterest-bearing deposits were $44.2 billion (59.6
percent) higher than the prior year, reflecting increases
across all business lines. Average total savings deposits

were $33.7 billion (13.6 percent) higher than the prior
year, driven by increases in Consumer and Business
Banking, and Wealth Management and Investment
Services balances, partially offset by a decrease in
Corporate and Commercial Banking balances. The
growth in average noninterest-bearing and total savings
deposits was primarily a result of the actions by the
federal government to increase liquidity in the financial
system, customers maintaining balance sheet liquidity by
utilizing existing credit facilities and government stimulus
programs. Average time deposits for the first quarter of
2021 were $14.4 billion (34.8 percent) lower than the
first quarter of 2020, primarily driven by decreases in
those deposits managed as an alternative to other funding
sources, based largely on relative pricing and liquidity
characteristics.

Provision for Credit Losses The provision for credit losses
for the first quarter of 2021 was a benefit of $827 million,
representing a decrease of $1.8 billion from the first quarter
of 2020. The decrease reflected factors affecting economic
conditions during the first quarter of 2021, including the
enactment of additional benefits from government stimulus
programs, vaccine availability in the United States and
reduced levels of new COVID-19 cases. Net charge-offs
decreased $170 million (43.3 percent) in the first quarter of
2021, compared with the first quarter of 2020, primarily
due to lower commercial, credit card and other retail loan
net charge-offs. Refer to “Corporate Risk Profile” for
further information on the provision for credit losses, net
charge-offs, nonperforming assets and other factors
considered by the Company in assessing the credit quality
of the loan portfolio and establishing the allowance for
credit losses.

U.S. Bancorp



1] Noninterest Expense

(Dollars in Millions)

Three Months Ended
March 31

Percent

2021 2020  Change

Compensation . . .
Employee benefits . . . . .. ...
Net occupancy and equipment .. .. ...
Professional Senvices . . . . ..
Marketing and business development . .. ... ... o
Technology and communications . . . . .. .. . o
Postage, printingand supplies . . ... ...
Otherintangibles . . . . ...
Other

Total noninterest expense . .. .. .

Efficiencyratio (@) . . . . . ..

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 263 276 4.7)

$1,808  $1,620 11.83%
384 352 9.1

.............................. 08 09 (1.0)
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 48 74 (35.1)
.............................. 359 280 24.2
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 69 72 @.2)
.............................. 38 42 9.5)

317 492 (35.6)
$3,379  $3,316 1.9%

.............................. 62.1%  58.0%

(@) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures beginning on page 30.

Noninterest Income Noninterest income was $2.4 billion
in the first quarter of 2021, representing a decrease of
$144 million (5.7 percent), compared with the first
quarter of 2020. The decrease from a year ago reflected
lower mortgage banking revenue, deposit service charges,
securities gains and other noninterest income, partially
offset by higher commercial products revenue and trust
and investment management fees. Mortgage banking
revenue decreased $96 million (24.3 percent) due to
declines in mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”)
valuations, net of hedging activities, driven by the impact
of prepayments on the servicing portfolio, partially offset
by higher production volume and related gain on sale
margins compared with the prior year. Deposit service
charges decreased $48 million (23.0 percent) primarily
due to lower consumer spending activities and higher
consumer deposit levels related to government stimulus.
Other noninterest income decreased $30 million (13.6
percent) primarily due to lower gains on sales of certain
businesses and tax-advantaged investment syndication
revenue in the first quarter of 2021, partially offset by
higher retail leasing end of term residual gains.
Commercial products revenue increased $34 million
(13.8 percent) primarily due to better market conditions
and higher non-yield loan fees on unused commitments,
while trust and investment management fees increased
$17 million (4.0 percent) driven by business growth and
favorable market conditions. During the past year,
payment services revenue has been adversely affected by
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on consumer
spending, particularly related to travel and entertainment
activities. However, consumer spending continues to
strengthen across most sectors driven by government
stimulus, local jurisdictions reducing restrictions and
consumer behaviors normalizing. As a result, payment
services revenue was essentially flat compared with the
first quarter of 2020. The components of payment
services revenue included higher credit and debit card
revenue of $32 million (10.5 percent) driven by higher
net interchange revenue related to sales volumes and
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higher prepaid fees as a result of government stimulus
programs. This increase in payment services revenue was
more than offset by lower corporate payment products
revenue of $19 million (13.1 percent) primarily due to
lower business spending related to travel and
entertainment as well as lower merchant processing
services revenue of $19 million (5.6 percent) driven by
lower sales volume and merchant fees.

Noninterest Expense Noninterest expense was

$3.4 billion in the first quarter of 2021, representing an
increase of $63 million (1.9 percent) over the first quarter
of 2020. The increase from the prior year reflected higher
compensation expense, employee benefits expense, and
technology and communications expense, partially offset
by lower marketing and business development expense,
net occupancy and equipment expense, and other
noninterest expense. Compensation expense increased
$183 million (11.3 percent) due to merit increases, higher
revenue-related compensation driven by business
production within mortgage banking, and higher
performance-based incentives and stock-based
compensation. Employee benefits expense increased

$32 million (9.1 percent) primarily due to higher payroll
taxes and related benefits, as well as higher medical
claims expense compared with the first quarter of 2020.
Technology and communications expense increased

$70 million (24.2 percent) primarily due to higher call
center volume related to prepaid cards and capital
expenditures supporting business technology investments.
Other noninterest expense decreased $175 million (35.6
percent) primarily due to higher COVID-19 related
accruals in the first quarter of 2020 including recognizing
liabilities related to future delivery exposures related to
merchant and airline processing. Marketing and business
development expense decreased $26 million (35.1
percent) due to a reduction in travel as a result of
COVID-19, while net occupancy and equipment expense
decreased $13 million (4.7 percent) primarily due to
branch closures.



Income Tax Expense The provision for income taxes was
$607 million (an effective rate of 21.0 percent) for the
first quarter of 2021, compared with $260 million (an
effective rate of 18.1 percent) for the first quarter of
2020. The increase in the tax rate is due to the marginal
impact of providing taxes on higher pretax earnings in
the first quarter of 2021. For further information on
income taxes, refer to Note 11 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS

Loans The Company’s loan portfolio was $294.4 billion
at March 31, 2021, compared with $297.7 billion at
December 31, 2020, a decrease of $3.3 billion

(1.1 percent). The decrease was driven by lower
residential mortgages, credit card loans and commercial
real estate loans, partially offset by higher commercial
loans and other retail loans.

Residential mortgages held in the loan portfolio
decreased $2.5 billion (3.3 percent) at March 31, 2021,
compared with December 31, 2020, due to customers
paying down balances in the first quarter of 2021.
Residential mortgages originated and placed in the
Company’s loan portfolio include well-secured jumbo
mortgages and branch-originated first lien home equity
loans to borrowers with high credit quality.

Credit card loans decreased $1.5 billion (6.6 percent)
at March 31, 2021, compared with December 31, 2020,
reflecting higher customer payment rates.

Commercial real estate loans decreased $879 million
(2.2 percent) at March 31, 2021, compared with
December 31, 2020, the result of customers paying down
balances and a decrease in new loan origination activity.

Commercial loans increased $1.3 billion
(1.3 percent) at March 31, 2021, compared with
December 31, 2020, reflecting the impact of loans made

1K1 X} Available-for-Sale Investment Securities

March 31, 2021

under the SBA Paycheck Protection Program during the
first quarter of 2021, partially offset by paydowns by
corporate customers that accessed the capital markets.

Other retail loans increased $317 million
(0.6 percent) at March 31, 2021, compared with
December 31, 2020, due to increases in auto loans and
installment loans, partially offset by decreases in home
equity loans, retail leasing balances and revolving credit
balances.

The Company generally retains portfolio loans
through maturity; however, the Company’s intent may
change over time based upon various factors such as
ongoing asset/liability management activities, assessment
of product profitability, credit risk, liquidity needs, and
capital implications. If the Company’s intent or ability to
hold an existing portfolio loan changes, it is transferred
to loans held for sale.

Loans Held for Sale Loans held for sale, consisting
primarily of residential mortgages to be sold in the
secondary market, were $9.0 billion at March 31, 2021,
compared with $8.8 billion at December 31, 2020.
Almost all of the residential mortgage loans the
Company originates or purchases for sale follow
guidelines that allow the loans to be sold into existing,
highly liquid secondary markets; in particular in
government agency transactions and to government-
sponsored enterprises (“GSEs”).

Investment Securities Available-for-sale investment
securities totaled $156.0 billion at March 31, 2021,
compared with $136.8 billion at December 31, 2020.
The $19.2 billion (14.0 percent) increase was primarily
due to $22.6 billion of net investment purchases,
partially offset by a $3.4 billion unfavorable change in
net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale

December 31, 2020

Weighted- Weighted-

Average  Weighted- Average Weighted-

Amortized Maturity in Average Amortized Maturity in Average

(Dollars in Millions) Cost Fair Value Years Yield (d) Cost Fair Value Years Yield (d)
U.S. Treasury and agencies . . . ... ............ $ 24,401 $ 24,317 4.4 1.31% $ 21,954 $ 22,301 3.8 1.37%

Mortgage-backed securites (@) . . . ... ... ... 122,883 122,262 6.1 1.44 103,282 105,374 3.0 1.47

Asset-backed securites (@) .. ..o 197 202 5.9 1.09 200 205 6.2 1.47

Obligations of state and political subdivisions (o) (c) . . 8,687 9,215 6.7 3.89 8,166 8,861 6.3 3.99

Other o 7 7 A 2.07 9 9 A 1.81
Total investment securities . ... .......... .. $166,175  $156,003 59 1.66% | $133,611 $136,840 3.4 1.61%

@
prepayments.
®)
maturity if the security is purchased at par or a discount.
)
date for securities with a fair value equal to or below par.
(@)
fully-taxable equivalent basis based on a federal income tax rate of 21 percent.

Information related to asset and mortgage-backed securities included above is presented based upon weighted-average maturities that take into account anticipated future
Information related to obligations of state and political subdivisions is presented based upon yield to first optional call date if the security is purchased at a premium, and yield to
Maturity calculations for obligations of state and political subdivisions are based on the first optional call date for securities with a fair value above par and the contractual maturity

Yields on investment securities are computed based on amortized cost balances. Weighted-average yields for obligations of state and political subdivisions are presented on a
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investment securities. The Company had no outstanding
investment securities classified as held-to-maturity at
March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

The Company’s available-for-sale investment securities
are carried at fair value with changes in fair value reflected
in other comprehensive income (loss) unless a portion of a
security’s unrealized loss is related to credit and an
allowance for credit losses is necessary. At March 31, 2021,
the Company’s net unrealized losses on available-for-sale
investment securities were $172 million, compared with
$3.2 billion of net unrealized gains at December 31, 2020.
The unfavorable change in net unrealized gains (losses) was
primarily due to decreases in the fair value of mortgage-
backed, U.S. Treasury, and state and political securities as a
result of changes in interest rates. Gross unrealized losses
on available-for-sale investment securities totaled
$2.3 billion at March 31, 2021, compared with
$53 million at December 31, 2020. At March 31, 2021, the
Company had no plans to sell securities with unrealized
losses, and believes it is more likely than not that it would
not be required to sell such securities before recovery of
their amortized cost.

Refer to Notes 3 and 14 in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information on investment securities.

Deposits Total deposits were $433.8 billion at March 31,
2021, compared with $429.8 billion at December 31,
2020. The $4.0 billion (0.9 percent) increase in total
deposits reflected increases in noninterest-bearing and
total savings deposits, partially offset by a decrease in
time deposits. Noninterest-bearing deposits increased
$8.7 billion (7.3 percent) at March 31, 2021, compared
with December 31, 2020, primarily due to higher
Corporate and Commercial Banking, Consumer and
Business Banking, and Wealth Management and
Investment Services balances. Interest checking balances
increased $7.9 billion (8.3 percent), driven by higher
Consumer and Business Banking, Wealth Management
and Investment Services, and Corporate and Commercial
Banking balances. Savings account balances increased
$4.4 billion (7.7 percent), primarily due to higher
Consumer and Business Banking balances. Money
market deposit balances decreased $10.0 billion (7.8
percent) at March 31, 2021, compared with

December 31, 2020, primarily due to lower Wealth
Management and Investment Services, and Corporate
and Commercial Banking balances. Time deposits
decreased $7.0 billion (22.8 percent) at March 31, 2021,
compared with December 31, 2020, driven by a decrease
in those deposits managed as an alternative to other
funding sources, based largely on relative pricing and
liquidity characteristics.

U.S. Bancorp

Borrowings The Company utilizes both short-term and
long-term borrowings as part of its asset/liability
management and funding strategies. Short-term
borrowings, which include federal funds purchased,
commercial paper, repurchase agreements, borrowings
secured by high-grade assets and other short-term
borrowings, were $12.1 billion at March 31, 2021,
compared with $11.8 billion at December 31, 2020. The
$332 million (2.8 percent) increase in short-term
borrowings was primarily due to higher repurchase
agreement and other short-term borrowings balances.
Long-term debt was $37.4 billion at March 31, 2021,
compared with $41.3 billion at December 31, 2020. The
$3.9 billion (9.4 percent) decrease was primarily due to
$3.7 billion of bank note repayments and maturities.
Refer to the “Liquidity Risk Management” section for
discussion of liquidity management of the Company.

CORPORATE RISK PROFILE

Overview Managing risks is an essential part of
successfully operating a financial services company. The
Company’s Board of Directors has approved a risk
management framework which establishes governance
and risk management requirements for all risk-taking
activities. This framework includes Company and
business line risk appetite statements which set
boundaries for the types and amount of risk that may be
undertaken in pursuing business objectives and
initiatives. The Board of Directors, primarily through its
Risk Management Committee, oversees performance
relative to the risk management framework, risk appetite
statements, and other policy requirements.

The Executive Risk Committee (“ERC”), which is
chaired by the Chief Risk Officer and includes the Chief
Executive Officer and other members of the executive
management team, oversees execution against the risk
management framework and risk appetite statements.
The ERC focuses on current and emerging risks,
including strategic and reputation risks, by directing
timely and comprehensive actions. Senior operating
committees have also been established, each responsible
for overseeing a specified category of risk.

The Company’s most prominent risk exposures are
credit, interest rate, market, liquidity, operational,
compliance, strategic, and reputation. Leveraging the
Company’s risk management framework, the specific
impacts of COVID-19 and related risks are identified for
each of the most prominent exposures. With respect to
direct impacts from COVID-19, oversight and
governance is managed through a centralized command
center with frequent reporting to the Managing



Committee and ERC. The Board of Directors also
oversees the Company’s responsiveness to the COVID-19
pandemic. Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a
change in the credit profile or the failure of a borrower
or counterparty to meet its contractual obligations.
Interest rate risk is the potential reduction of net interest
income or market valuations as a result of changes in
interest rates. Market risk arises from fluctuations in
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and security prices
that may result in changes in the values of financial
instruments, such as trading and available-for-sale
securities, mortgage loans held for sale (“MLHFS”),
MSRs and derivatives that are accounted for on a fair
value basis. Liquidity risk is the possible inability to fund
obligations or new business at a reasonable cost and in a
timely manner. Operational risk is the risk to current or
projected financial condition and resilience arising from
inadequate or failed internal processes or systems, people
(including human errors or misconduct), or adverse
external events, including the risk of loss resulting from
breaches in data security. Operational risk can also
include the risk of loss due to failures by third parties
with which the Company does business. Compliance risk
is the risk that the Company may suffer legal or
regulatory sanctions, financial losses, and reputational
damage if it fails to adhere to compliance requirements
and the Company’s compliance policies. Strategic risk is
the risk to current or projected financial condition arising
from adverse business decisions, poor implementation of
business decisions, or lack of responsiveness to changes
in the banking industry and operating environment.
Reputation risk is the risk to current or anticipated
earnings, capital, or franchise or enterprise value arising
from negative public opinion. This risk may impair the
Company’s competitiveness by affecting its ability to
establish new relationships or services, or continue
serving existing relationships. In addition to the risks
identified above, other risk factors exist that may impact
the Company. Refer to “Risk Factors” in the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2020, for a detailed discussion of these
factors.

The Company’s Board and management-level
governance committees are supported by a “three lines of
defense” model for establishing effective checks and
balances. The first line of defense, the business lines,
manages risks in conformity with established limits and
policy requirements. In turn, business line leaders and
their risk officers establish programs to ensure
conformity with these limits and policy requirements.
The second line of defense, which includes the Chief Risk
Officer’s organization as well as policy and oversight
activities of corporate support functions, translates risk

appetite and strategy into actionable risk limits and

policies. The second line of defense monitors first line of

defense conformity with limits and policies, and provides
reporting and escalation of emerging risks and other
concerns to senior management and the Risk

Management Committee of the Board of Directors. The

third line of defense, internal audit, is responsible for

providing the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
and senior management with independent assessment and
assurance regarding the effectiveness of the Company’s
governance, risk management and control processes.
Management regularly provides reports to the Risk

Management Committee of the Board of Directors. The

Risk Management Committee discusses with

management the Company’s risk management

performance, and provides a summary of key risks to the
entire Board of Directors, covering the status of existing
matters, areas of potential future concern and specific
information on certain types of loss events. The Risk

Management Committee considers quarterly reports by

management assessing the Company’s performance

relative to the risk appetite statements and the associated
risk limits, including:

e Macroeconomic environment and other qualitative
considerations, such as regulatory and compliance
changes, litigation developments, and technology and
cybersecurity;

e Credit measures, including adversely rated and
nonperforming loans, leveraged transactions, credit
concentrations and lending limits;

o Interest rate and market risk, including market value
and net income simulation, and trading-related Value
at Risk (“VaR”);

e Liquidity risk, including funding projections under
various stressed scenarios;

e Operational and compliance risk, including losses
stemming from events such as fraud, processing errors,
control breaches, breaches in data security or adverse
business decisions, as well as reporting on technology
performance, and various legal and regulatory
compliance measures;

e Capital ratios and projections, including regulatory
measures and stressed scenarios; and

e Strategic and reputation risk considerations, impacts
and responses.

Credit Risk Management The Company’s strategy for
credit risk management includes well-defined, centralized
credit policies, uniform underwriting criteria, and
ongoing risk monitoring and review processes for all
commercial and consumer credit exposures. In evaluating
its credit risk, the Company considers changes, if any, in
underwriting activities, the loan portfolio composition
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(including product mix and geographic, industry or
customer-specific concentrations), collateral values,
trends in loan performance and macroeconomic factors,
such as changes in unemployment rates, gross domestic
product levels and consumer bankruptcy filings, as well
as the potential impact on customers and the domestic
economy resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic. The
Risk Management Committee oversees the Company’s
credit risk management process.

In addition, credit quality ratings as defined by the
Company, are an important part of the Company’s
overall credit risk management and evaluation of its
allowance for credit losses. Loans with a pass rating
represent those loans not classified on the Company’s
rating scale for problem credits, as minimal credit risk
has been identified. Loans with a special mention or
classified rating, including consumer lending and small
business loans that are 90 days or more past due and still
accruing, nonaccrual loans, those loans considered
troubled debt restructurings (“TDRs”), and loans in a
junior lien position that are current but are behind a first
lien position on nonaccrual, encompass all loans held by
the Company that it considers to have a potential or
well-defined weakness that may put full collection of
contractual cash flows at risk. The Company’s internal
credit quality ratings for consumer loans are primarily
based on delinquency and nonperforming status, except
for a limited population of larger loans within those
portfolios that are individually evaluated. For this limited
population, the determination of the internal credit
quality rating may also consider collateral value and
customer cash flows. Refer to Note 4 in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion
of the Company’s loan portfolios including internal
credit quality ratings. In addition, refer to
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis — Credit Risk
Management” in the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020, for a
more detailed discussion on credit risk management
processes.

The Company manages its credit risk, in part,
through diversification of its loan portfolio which is
achieved through limit setting by product type criteria,
such as industry, and identification of credit
concentrations. As part of its normal business activities,
the Company offers a broad array of lending products.
The Company categorizes its loan portfolio into two
segments, which is the level at which it develops and
documents a systematic methodology to determine the
allowance for credit losses. The Company’s two loan
portfolio segments are commercial lending and consumer
lending.
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The commercial lending segment includes loans and
leases made to small business, middle market, large
corporate, commercial real estate, financial institution,
non-profit and public sector customers. Key risk
characteristics relevant to commercial lending segment
loans include the industry and geography of the
borrower’s business, purpose of the loan, repayment
source, borrower’s debt capacity and financial flexibility,
loan covenants, and nature of pledged collateral, if any,
as well as macroeconomic factors such as unemployment
rates, gross domestic product levels, corporate bond
spreads and long-term interest rates, all of which have
been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. These risk
characteristics, among others, are considered in
determining estimates about the likelihood of default by
the borrowers and the severity of loss in the event of
default. The Company considers these risk characteristics
in assigning internal risk ratings to, or forecasting losses
on, these loans, which are the significant factors in
determining the allowance for credit losses for loans in
the commercial lending segment.

The consumer lending segment represents loans and
leases made to consumer customers, including residential
mortgages, credit card loans, and other retail loans such
as revolving consumer lines, auto loans and leases, home
equity loans and lines, and student loans, a run-off
portfolio. Home equity or second mortgage loans are
junior lien closed-end accounts fully disbursed at
origination. These loans typically are fixed rate loans,
secured by residential real estate, with a 10- or 15-year
fixed payment amortization schedule. Home equity lines
are revolving accounts giving the borrower the ability to
draw and repay balances repeatedly, up to a maximum
commitment, and are secured by residential real estate.
These include accounts in either a first or junior lien
position. Typical terms on home equity lines in the
portfolio are variable rates benchmarked to the prime
rate, with a 10- or 15-year draw period during which a
minimum payment is equivalent to the monthly interest,
followed by a 20- or 10-year amortization period,
respectively. At March 31, 2021, substantially all of the
Company’s home equity lines were in the draw period.
Approximately $1.2 billion, or 12 percent, of the
outstanding home equity line balances at March 31,
2021, will enter the amortization period within the next
36 months. Key risk characteristics relevant to consumer
lending segment loans primarily relate to the borrowers’
capacity and willingness to repay and include
unemployment rates, consumer bankruptcy filings and
other macroeconomic factors, customer payment history
and credit scores, and in some cases, updated
loan-to-value (“LTV?”) information reflecting current



market conditions on real estate-based loans. These and
other risk characteristics, including elevated risk resulting
from the COVID-19 pandemic, are reflected in forecasts
of delinquency levels, bankruptcies and losses which are
the primary factors in determining the allowance for
credit losses for the consumer lending segment.

The Company further disaggregates its loan portfolio
segments into various classes based on their underlying
risk characteristics. The two classes within the
commercial lending segment are commercial loans and
commercial real estate loans. The three classes within the
consumer lending segment are residential mortgages,
credit card loans and other retail loans.

The Company’s consumer lending segment utilizes
several distinct business processes and channels to
originate consumer credit, including traditional branch
lending, mobile and on-line banking, indirect lending,
alliance partnerships, correspondent banks and loan
brokers. Each distinct underwriting and origination
activity manages unique credit risk characteristics and
prices its loan production commensurate with the
differing risk profiles.

Residential mortgage originations are generally
limited to prime borrowers and are performed through
the Company’s branches, loan production offices, mobile
and on-line services and a wholesale network of
originators. The Company may retain residential
mortgage loans it originates on its balance sheet or sell
the loans into the secondary market while retaining the
servicing rights and customer relationships. Utilizing the
secondary markets enables the Company to effectively
reduce its credit and other asset/liability risks. For
residential mortgages that are retained in the Company’s
portfolio and for home equity and second mortgages,
credit risk is also diversified by geography and managed
by adherence to LTV and borrower credit criteria during
the underwriting process.

The Company estimates updated LTV information
on its outstanding residential mortgages quarterly, based
on a method that combines automated valuation model
updates and relevant home price indices. LTV is the ratio
of the loan’s outstanding principal balance to the current
estimate of property value. For home equity and second
mortgages, combined loan-to-value (“CLTV”) is the
combination of the first mortgage original principal
balance and the second lien outstanding principal
balance, relative to the current estimate of property
value. Certain loans do not have an LTV or CLTV,
primarily due to lack of availability of relevant
automated valuation model and/or home price indices
values, or lack of necessary valuation data on acquired
loans.
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The following tables provide summary information of
residential mortgages and home equity and second
mortgages by LTV at March 31, 2021:

Residential Mortgages Interest Percent
(Dollars in Millions) Only  Amortizing Total  of Total
Loan-to-Value
Lessthanorequalto 80% . . .. $3,138 $55,505 $58,643 79.7%
Over 80% through 90% . . . . . 7 3,146 3,153 4.3
Over 90% through 100% . . . . — 291 291 4
Over100% .. ..o — 91 91 A
No LTV available. . .. ... ... — 10 10 —
LLoans purchased from GNMA
mortgage pools (a) . . . . . — 11,436 11,436 16.5
Total(®) . . ... ... ... .. $3,1456 $70,479 $73,624 100.0%

(@) Represents loans purchased from Government National Mortgage Association
("GNMA”) mortgage pools whose payments are primarily insured by the Federal
Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of
Veterans Affairs.

(b) At March 31, 2021, approximately $494 million of residential mortgage balances
were considered sub-prime.

Home Equity and Second Mortgages Percent
(Dollars in Millions) Lines Loans Total  of Total
Loan-to-Value
Lessthanorequalto 80% ... $ 9,796 $ 654 $10,450 89.5%
Over 80% through 90% . . . . . 625 317 942 8.1
Over 90% through 100% . . . . 98 36 134 1.1
Over100% .. ........... 67 6 73 .6
No LTV/CLTV available. . . . . . 76 4 80 7
Total@ ............. $10,662 $1,017 $11,679 100.0%

(a) At March 31, 2020, approximately $46 million of home equity and second
mortgage balances were considered sub-prime.

Home equity and second mortgages were
$11.7 billion at March 31, 2021, compared with
$12.5 billion at December 31, 2020, and included
$3.3 billion of home equity lines in a first lien position
and $8.4 billion of home equity and second mortgage
loans and lines in a junior lien position. Loans and lines
in a junior lien position at March 31, 2021, included
approximately $3.2 billion of loans and lines for which
the Company also serviced the related first lien loan, and
approximately $5.2 billion where the Company did not
service the related first lien loan. The Company was able
to determine the status of the related first liens using
information the Company has as the servicer of the first
lien or information reported on customer credit bureau
files. The Company also evaluates other indicators of
credit risk for these junior lien loans and lines including
delinquency, estimated average CLTV ratios and updated
weighted-average credit scores in making its assessment
of credit risk, related loss estimates and determining the
allowance for credit losses.
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The following table provides a summary of delinquency
statistics and other credit quality indicators for the
Company’s junior lien positions at March 31, 2021:

Junior Liens Behind

Company Owned
or Serviced First  Third Party
(Dollars in Millions) Lien  First Lien Total
Total .. ..o $3,145  $5,225 $8,370
Percent 30—89 days pastdue . . . . . . 31% .34% .33%
Percent 90 days or more past due . . . 07% 06%  .07%
Weighted-average CLTV . . ... ... .. 64% 62% 62%
Weighted-average credit score . . . . . . 780 778 779

See the “Analysis and Determination of the
Allowance for Credit Losses” section for additional
information on how the Company determines the
allowance for credit losses for loans in a junior lien
position.

Loan Delinquencies Trends in delinquency ratios are an
indicator, among other considerations, of credit risk
within the Company’s loan portfolios. The Company

measures delinquencies, both including and excluding
nonperforming loans, to enable comparability with other
companies. Accruing loans 90 days or more past due
totaled $476 million at March 31, 2021, compared with
$477 million at December 31, 2020. These balances
exclude loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools
whose repayments are primarily insured by the Federal
Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United
States Department of Veterans Affairs. Accruing loans
90 days or more past due are not included in
nonperforming assets and continue to accrue interest
because they are adequately secured by collateral, are in
the process of collection and are reasonably expected to
result in repayment or restoration to current status, or
are managed in homogeneous portfolios with specified
charge-off timeframes adhering to regulatory guidelines.
The ratio of accruing loans 90 days or more past due to
total loans was 0.16 percent at March 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020.

ik:1.1-¥ Delinquent Loan Ratios as a Percent of Ending Loan Balances

March 31,  December 31,
90 days or more past due excluding nonperforming loans 2021 2020
Commercial
COMMENCIAl . v o e .06% .06%
Lease fiNanCiNg . . . . o v — —
Total commercial . . o . .06 .05
Commercial Real Estate
Commercial MOMGAgES . .« o v — -
Construction and development . . . . o .03 .02
Total commercial real estate . . . . . .. 01 .01
Residential Mortgages (@) . . . . . . . . .. . . . 19 18
Credit Card . . . . . . . .95 .88
Other Retail
Retaill leasing . . . o 01 .05
Home equity and second MOMgages . . . . o v . v v .36 .36
OB 07 10
Total otherretall . . . A2 15
Total 0aNS « o 16% 16%
March 31,  December 31,
90 days or more past due including nonperforming loans 2021 2020
COMMETCIAl . o o .39% 42%
Commercial real estate . . . . . o 94 1.15
Residential MOMgages (8) . . . . o oo 54 .50
Credit Card . . oo .95 .88
Otherretall. . . oo 42 42
TOtal I0ANS .« . o 54% 57%

(a)  Delinquent loan ratios exclude $1.7 billion at March 31, 2021, and $1.8 billion at December 31, 2020, of loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools whose repayments are
primarily insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of Vieterans Affairs. Including these loans, the ratio of residential
mortgages 90 days or more past due including all nonperforming loans was 2.81 percent at March 31, 2021, and 2.87 percent at December 31, 2020.
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The following table provides summary delinquency information for residential mortgages, credit card and other retail

loans included in the consumer lending segment:

As a Percent of Ending

Amount Loan Balances
March 31,  December 31, March 31, December 31,
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020 2021 2020
Residential Mortgages (a)
B0-89days . . . e $204 $244 .28% .32%
Q0 dayS OrMOTE .« o o o 143 137 19 18
NONPEMOMMING « .+ v e 253 245 34 .32
Total . $600 $626 81% .82%
Credit Card
B0-890aAYS .+« $188 $231 .90% 1.04%
Q0 dayS OrMOME . . o o o 198 197 .95 .88
NONPEMOMMING « .+ v o - — — -
Total . $386 $428 1.85% 1.92%
Other Retail
Retail Leasing
B0-890aYS .« o $ 27 $ 35 .34% 43%
Q0 dayS Or MO .« o v v o 1 4 01 .05
NONPEfOMMING .+ v o 14 13 18 16
Total L $ 42 $ 62 .53% .64%
Home Equity and Second Mortgages
B0-89daYS . o $ 44 $ 68 37% 54%
Q0 dayS OrMOTE .+« v v o e 42 45 .36 .36
NoNperforming . . . . o o 127 107 1.09 .86
Total L $213 $220 1.82% 1.76%
Other (b)
B0-89days . . e $150 $215 40% 60%
Q0 dayS OrMOTE .+« v v e 27 37 07 10
NONPEMOIMING .+ v e 31 34 .08 09
Total L $208 $286 .55% 79%

(a)  Excludes $1.5 billion of loans 30-89 days past due and $1.7 billion of loans 90 days or more past due at March 31, 2021, purchased from GNMA mortgage pools that continue
to accrue interest, compared with $1.4 billion and $1.8 billion at December 31, 2020, respectively.

(b)  Includes revolving credit, installment, automobile and student loans.

Restructured Loans In certain circumstances, the
Company may modify the terms of a loan to maximize
the collection of amounts due when a borrower is
experiencing financial difficulties or is expected to
experience difficulties in the near-term. In most cases the
modification is either a concessionary reduction in interest
rate, extension of the maturity date or reduction in the
principal balance that would otherwise not be considered.

Troubled Debt Restructurings Concessionary modifications
are classified as TDRs unless the modification results in
only an insignificant delay in the payments to be received.
TDRs accrue interest if the borrower complies with the
revised terms and conditions and has demonstrated
repayment performance at a level commensurate with the
modified terms over several payment cycles, which is
generally six months or greater. At March 31, 2021,
performing TDRs were $3.5 billion, compared with

$3.6 billion at December 31, 2020.

The Company continues to work with customers to
modify loans for borrowers who are experiencing financial
difficulties. Many of the Company’s TDRs are determined
on a case-by-case basis in connection with ongoing loan
collection processes. The modifications vary within each of
the Company’s loan classes. Commercial lending segment
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TDRs generally include extensions of the maturity date and
may be accompanied by an increase or decrease to the
interest rate. The Company may also work with the
borrower to make other changes to the loan to mitigate
losses, such as obtaining additional collateral and/or
guarantees to support the loan.

The Company has also implemented certain
residential mortgage loan restructuring programs that
may result in TDRs. The Company modifies residential
mortgage loans under Federal Housing Administration,
United States Department of Veterans Affairs, and its
own internal programs. Under these programs, the
Company offers qualifying homeowners the opportunity
to permanently modify their loan and achieve more
affordable monthly payments by providing loan
concessions. These concessions may include adjustments
to interest rates, conversion of adjustable rates to fixed
rates, extensions of maturity dates or deferrals of
payments, capitalization of accrued interest and/or
outstanding advances, or in limited situations, partial
forgiveness of loan principal. In most instances,
participation in residential mortgage loan restructuring
programs requires the customer to complete a short-term
trial period. A permanent loan modification is contingent
on the customer successfully completing the trial period
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arrangement, and the loan documents are not modified
until that time. The Company reports loans in a trial
period arrangement as TDRs and continues to report
them as TDRs after the trial period.

Credit card and other retail loan TDRs are generally
part of distinct restructuring programs providing
customers modification solutions over a specified time
period, generally up to 60 months.

In accordance with regulatory guidance, the
Company considers secured consumer loans that have

had debt discharged through bankruptcy where the
borrower has not reaffirmed the debt to be TDRs. If the
loan amount exceeds the collateral value, the loan is
charged down to collateral value and the remaining
amount is reported as nonperforming.

Loan modifications or concessions granted to
customers resulting directly from the effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic, who were otherwise in current
payment status, are not considered to be TDRs.

The following table provides a summary of TDRs by loan class, including the delinquency status for TDRs that

continue to accrue interest and TDRs included in nonperforming assets:

As a Percent of Performing TDRs

At March 31, 2021 Performing  30-89 Days 90 Days or More ~ Nonperforming Total
(Dollars in Millions) TDRs Past Due Past Due TDRs TDRs
CoMMENCIAl . . oo $ 183 51% 2.6% $212(a) $ 395
Commercial real estate . . . .. .. 139 1.8 — 156(b) 295
Residential mortgages . . . .« o 1,449 6.0 4.2 140 1,5689(d)
Credit card . . 235 8.4 4.2 - 235
Otherretall . ... 198 10.1 5.4 46(c) 244(e)
TDRs, excluding loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools .. . .. ... ... .. 2,204 6.3 3.9 554 2,758
Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools (@) .+« .« v v v v oo 1,322 — — — 1,322(f)
Total . $3,526 3.9% 2.4% $554  $4,080

(@) Primarily represents loans less than six months from the modification date that have not met the performance period required to return to accrual status (generally six months) and

small business credit cards with a modified rate equal to O percent.

(b)  Primarily represents loans less than six months from the modification date that have not met the performance period required to return to accrual status (generally six months).

(c)  Primarily represents loans with a modified rate equal to O percent.

(@) Includes $264 million of residential mortgage loans to borrowers that have had debt discharged through bankruptcy and $57 million in trial period arrangements or previously

placed in trial period arrangements but not successfully completed.

(e)  Includes $80 million of other retail loans to borrowers that have had debt discharged through bankruptcy and $17 million in trial period arrangements or previously placed in trial

period arrangements but not successfully completed.

) Includes $169 milion of Federal Housing Administration and United States Department of Veterans Affairs residential mortgage loans to borrowers that have had debt discharged
through bankruptcy and $269 million in trial period arrangements or previously placed in trial period arrangements but not successfully completed.

(9)  Approximately 14.9 percent and 39.0 percent of the total TDR loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools are 30-89 days past due and 90 days or more past due,
respectively, but are not classified as delinquent as their repayments are insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of

Veterans Affairs.
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Short-term and Other Loan Modifications The Company
makes short-term and other modifications that it does
not consider to be TDRs, in limited circumstances, to
assist borrowers experiencing temporary hardships.
Short-term consumer lending modification programs
include payment reductions, deferrals of up to three past
due payments, and the ability to return to current status
if the borrower makes required payments. The Company
may also make short-term modifications to commercial
lending loans, with the most common modification being
an extension of the maturity date of three months or less.
Such extensions generally are used when the maturity
date is imminent and the borrower is experiencing some
level of financial stress, but the Company believes the
borrower will pay all contractual amounts owed.

COVID-19 Payment Relief The Company has offered
payment relief, including forbearance, payment deferrals
and other customer accommodations, to assist borrowers
that have experienced financial hardship resulting from
the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. The majority of

these borrowers were not delinquent on payments at the
time they received the payment relief. From March 2020
through March 31, 2021, the Company had approved
approximately 385,000 loan modifications for these
borrowers, representing approximately $27.0 billion. The
loans modified consisted primarily of payment
forbearance or deferrals of 90 days or less. A portion of
the borrowers who received account modifications are no
longer participating in these payment relief programs, as
the programs are generally short-term; and at March 31,
2021, approximately 57,000 accounts, representing
approximately $7.3 billion, were currently in an active
payment relief program. The recognition of delinquent or
nonaccrual loans and loan net charge-offs may be
delayed for those customers enrolled in these payment
relief programs who would have otherwise moved into
past due or nonaccrual status, as these customer accounts
do not continue to age during the period the payment
delay is provided.

The following table summarizes borrowers enrolled in payment relief programs as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic

at March 31, 2021, as a percentage of the Company’s loans and loan balances:

Percentage of Loan Accounts
in Payment Relief Programs

Percentage of Loan Balances
in Payment Relief Programs

Program Details

Commercial . .. ........... 07%

Commercial real estate . . . . . . . .30

Residential mortgages (@) . . . . . 2.28

Creditcards . .. ........... 10

Otherretall . . ............. .35

.03% Primarily 3 month payment deferral up to a maximum

of 6 months; interest continues to accrue with
various payment options; may include short-term
covenant waivers

.62 Primarily 3 month payment deferral up to a maximum

of 6 months; interest continues to accrue with
various payment options; may include short-term
covenant waivers

2.99 Primarily 6 month payment forbearance, which may

be extended up to 18 months; interest continues to
accrue; cumulative payments suspended during
forbearance period are either paid-off immediately or
under a short-term repayment plan, or addressed
through a permanent loan modification that either
requires repayment at maturity or through
restructured payments over time

22 Primarily payment reduction up to 6 months;

payment relief of up to 3 months; interest continues
to accrue

.65 Home equity loan programs are similar to residential

mortgage programs; programs for other loan
portfolios are primarily 2 month payment deferral up
to a maximum of 4 months; interest continues to
accrue

Totalloans (@) .......... 18%

91%

Note: Payment relief generally includes payment deferrals, forbearances, extensions and re-ages, and excludes loans made under the Small Business Administration’s ("SBA”)
Paycheck Protection Program, as amounts due under that program are expected to be fully forgiven by the SBA.

(@)  Excludes loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools, whose repayments are primarily insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States
Department of Veterans Affairs. At March 31, 2021, 40.08 percent of the total number of accounts and 42.15 percent of the total loan balances of loans purchased from GNMA
mortgage pools were to borrowers enrolled in payment relief programs as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. Including these loans, 11.15 percent of the total number of
accounts and 9.07 percent of the total balances of residential mortgages were to borrowers enrolled in payment relief programs as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.
Including these loans, .43 percent of the total number of accounts and 2.55 percent of the total balances of all loans were to borrowers enrolled in payment relief programs as a

result of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Nonperforming Assets The level of nonperforming assets
represents another indicator of the potential for future
credit losses. Nonperforming assets include nonaccrual
loans, restructured loans not performing in accordance
with modified terms and not accruing interest,
restructured loans that have not met the performance
period required to return to accrual status, other real
estate owned (“OREO?”) and other nonperforming assets
owned by the Company. Interest payments collected
from assets on nonaccrual status are generally applied

against the principal balance and not recorded as income.

However, interest income may be recognized for interest
payments if the remaining carrying amount of the loan is
believed to be collectible.

At March 31, 2021, total nonperforming assets were
$1.2 billion, compared to $1.3 billion at December 31,
2020. The $96 million (7.4 percent) decrease in
nonperforming assets was driven by decreases in
nonperforming commercial real estate and commercial

loans, partially offset by an increase in nonperforming
other retail loans. The ratio of total nonperforming assets
to total loans and other real estate was 0.41 percent at
March 31, 2021, compared with 0.44 percent at
December 31, 2020. The Company expects credit quality
to return to more normalized levels throughout the
remainder of 2021 as the economy rebounds and
consumer spending resumes. However, some manageable
levels of elevated nonperforming assets in certain
industries and loan categories yet to recover from
pandemic related impacts are expected.

OREO was $19 million at March 31, 2021,
compared with $24 million at December 31, 2020, and
was related to foreclosed properties that previously
secured loan balances. These balances exclude foreclosed
GNMA loans whose repayments are primarily insured by
the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the
United States Department of Veterans Affairs.

The following table provides an analysis of OREQ, as a percent of their related loan balances, including geographical
location detail for residential (residential mortgage, home equity and second mortgage) and commercial (commercial

and commercial real estate) loan balances:

As a Percent of Ending

Amount Loan Balances
March 31, December 31,| March 31, December 31,
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020 2021 2020
Residential
Califomia . . . $3 $ 2 01% 01%
NEW YOrK o e 2 2 16 17
OrBgON © o 2 2 .07 o7
MINOIS .« v o 1 2 .02 04
Florida . . 1 1 03 .03
Allother states . . . o o 9 14 02 .03
Total residential . . . . o 18 23 .02 03
Commercial
JOWA L o 1 1 .05 04
Allother states . . . . - - - -
Total commercial . . . . 1 1 - -
Total . $19 $24 .01% .01%
U.S. Bancorp 15



IELIEYS] Nonperforming Assets (a)

March 31, December 31,

(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020
Commercial
COMMEICIAL . .\ $ 208 $ 321
Lease finanCing . . . o . 49 54
Total commercial . . . o 347 375
Commercial Real Estate
Commercial MOMGATES . .« .« v v o 266 411
Construction and development . . . . o 90 39
Total commercial real eState . . . . . . 356 450
Residential Mortgages (b) . . . . . . . . . 253 245
Credit Card . . .. .. .. . - -
Other Retail
Retail [easing . . . . oo 14 13
Home equity and second MOMGAgES .« .« .« o v v v vt 127 107
ONEr 31 34
Total otherretall . . . o 172 154
Total nonperforming 10ans . . . . . . e 1,128 1,224
Other Real Estate (C) . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 24
Other Assetls . . . . . . 55 50
Total NONPEMOrMING ASSEIS . . .\ o v oo e $1,202 $1,298
Accruing loans 90 days or more past due (D). . . . . o $ 476 $ 477
Nonperforming loans to total I0anS . . . . o oo .38% 41%
Nonperforming assets to total loans plus other real estate (C) . ... ... ... 41% 44%
Changes in Nonperforming Assets
Residential
Commercial and Mortgages,
Commercial  Credit Card and
(Dollars in Millions) Real Estate Other Retail Total
Balance December 31,2020 . . .. . ... ... ... $ 854 $444 $1,298
Additions to nonperforming assets
New nonaccrual loans and foreclosed properties . . .. .. ... oo 178 79 257
AQVaNCES ON I0ANS . . . o o 3 - 3
Total additions . . . . . 181 79 260
Reductions in nonperforming assets
Paydowns, payoffs. . . . (80) 21) (101)
Net Sales . . o o (148) ©6) (154)
Return to performing status . . . . o0 (24) (19) (43)
Charge-offs (d) . . .« (52) ©) (58)
Total reductions . . . . o (304) (52) (356)
Net additions to (reductions in) nonperforming assets . . ... ... ... ... .. ... . ... (123) 27 (96)
Balance March 31,2021 . . . . .. . .. .. . .. ... $731 $471 $1,202

(@)  Throughout this document, nonperforming assets and related ratios do not include accruing loans 90 days or more past due.

(b)  Excludes $1.7 billion at March 31, 2021, and $1.8 bilion at December 31, 2020, of loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools that are 90 days or more past due that
continue to accrue interest, as their repayments are primarily insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs.

(c)  Foreclosed GNMA loans of $29 million at March 31, 2021, and $33 million at December 31, 2020, continue to accrue interest and are recorded as other assets and excluded
from nonperforming assets because they are insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs.

(d)  Charge-offs exclude actions for certain card products and loan sales that were not classified as nonperforming at the time the charge-off occurred.
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1E:1Wd Net Charge-offs as a Percent of Average Loans Outstanding

Three Months Ended
March 31

2021 2020

Commercial

Commercial . . . .
Lease finanCing . . . . . .

Totalcommercial . ... ...

Commercial Real Estate

Commercial mortgages. . . . .« o
Construction and development. . ... .. ... o

Total commercialrealestate . . .. ......... .. ...
Residential Mortgages . . . . . .. . ... ... .. .. .. .. ... .. .. ...
CreditCard .. ... ... .. . .. . . .

Other Retail

Retailleasing . . . ...
Home equity and second mortgages . . . . .. ...
Other o

Totalotherretall .. ... ... .
Totalloans . . . .

22% 28%

..................................... 30 36
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 20 28
..................................... (17) (01
..................................... 19 (.04)
..................................... 07 (02
..................................... (08) 01

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 276 3.95
..................................... 05 .90
..................................... (07) 08
..................................... 40 79
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 25 61

31% .53%

Analysis of Loan Net Charge-Offs Total loan net charge-
offs were $223 million for the first quarter of 2021,

compared with $393 million for the first quarter of 2020.

The ratio of total loan net charge-offs to average loans
outstanding on an annualized basis for the first quarter
of 2021 was 0.31 percent, compared with 0.53 percent
for the first quarter of 2020. The decrease in net charge-
offs for the first quarter of 2021, compared with the first
quarter of 2020, was primarily due to lower credit card,
commercial and other retail loan net charge-offs.

Analysis and Determination of the Allowance for Credit
Losses The allowance for credit losses is established for
current expected credit losses on the Company’s loan and
lease portfolio, including unfunded credit commitments.
The allowance considers expected losses for the remaining
lives of the applicable assets, inclusive of expected
recoveries. The allowance for credit losses is increased
through provisions charged to earnings and reduced by
net charge-offs. Management evaluates the
appropriateness of the allowance for credit losses on a
quarterly basis. Multiple economic scenarios are
considered over a three-year reasonable and supportable
forecast period, which includes increasing consideration
of historical loss experience over years two and three.
These economic scenarios are constructed with
interrelated projections of multiple economic variables,
and loss estimates are produced that consider the
historical correlation of those economic variables with
credit losses. After the forecast period, the Company fully
reverts to long-term historical loss experience, adjusted
for prepayments and characteristics of the current loan
and lease portfolio, to estimate losses over the remaining
life of the portfolio. The economic scenarios are updated
at least quarterly and are designed to provide a range of
reasonable estimates, which are both better and worse
than current expectations. Scenarios are weighted based
on the Company’s expectation of economic conditions for
the foreseeable future and reflect significant judgment and
consider uncertainties that exist. Final loss estimates also
consider factors affecting credit losses not reflected in the
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scenarios, due to the unique aspects of current conditions
and expectations. These factors may include, but are not
limited to, loan servicing practices, regulatory guidance,
and/or fiscal and monetary policy actions. Because
business processes and credit risks associated with
unfunded credit commitments are essentially the same as
for loans, the Company utilizes similar processes to
estimate its liability for unfunded credit commitments,
which is included in other liabilities in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. Both the allowance for loan losses and the
liability for unfunded credit commitments are included in
the Company’s analysis of credit losses and reported
reserve ratios.

The allowance recorded for credit losses utilizes
forward-looking expected loss models to consider a
variety of factors affecting lifetime credit losses. These
factors include, but are not limited to, macroeconomic
variables such as unemployment rates, real estate prices,
gross domestic product levels, corporate bonds spreads
and long-term interest rate forecasts, as well as loan and
borrower characteristics, such as internal risk ratings on
commercial loans and consumer credit scores,
delinquency status, collateral type and available valuation
information, consideration of end-of-term losses on lease
residuals, and the remaining term of the loan, adjusted for
expected prepayments. For each loan portfolio, model
estimates are adjusted as necessary to consider any
relevant changes in portfolio composition, lending
policies, underwriting standards, risk management
practices, economic conditions or other factors that may
affect the accuracy of the model. Expected credit loss
estimates also include consideration of expected cash
recoveries on loans previously charged-off or expected
recoveries on collateral-dependent loans where recovery is
expected through sale of the collateral. Where loans do
not exhibit similar risk characteristics, an individual
analysis is performed to consider expected credit losses.

The allowance recorded for individually evaluated
loans greater than $5 million in the commercial lending
segment is based on an analysis utilizing expected cash
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flows discounted using the original effective interest rate,
the observable market price of the loan, or the fair value
of the collateral, less selling costs, for collateral-dependent
loans as appropriate. For commercial TDRs individually
evaluated for impairment, attributes of the borrower are
the primary factors in determining the allowance for
credit losses. However, historical loss experience is also
incorporated into the allowance methodology applied to
this category of loans. Commercial lending segment TDR
loans may be collectively evaluated for impairment where
observed performance history, including defaults, is a
primary driver of the loss allocation.

The allowance recorded for TDR loans in the
consumer lending segment is determined on a homogenous
pool basis utilizing expected cash flows discounted using
the original effective interest rate of the pool. The expected
cash flows on TDR loans consider subsequent payment
defaults since modification, the borrower’s ability to pay
under the restructured terms, and the timing and amount of
payments. The allowance for collateral-dependent loans in
the consumer lending segment is determined based on the
current fair value of the collateral less costs to sell.

When evaluating the appropriateness of the allowance
for credit losses for any loans and lines in a junior lien
position, the Company considers the delinquency and
modification status of the first lien. At March 31, 2021, the
Company serviced the first lien on 38 percent of the home
equity loans and lines in a junior lien position. The
Company also considers the status of first lien mortgage
accounts reported on customer credit bureau files when the
first lien is not serviced by the Company. Regardless of
whether the Company services the first lien, an assessment
is made of economic conditions, problem loans, recent loss
experience and other factors in determining the allowance
for credit losses. Based on the available information, the
Company estimated $243 million or 2.1 percent of its total
home equity portfolio at March 31, 2021, represented
non-delinquent junior liens where the first lien was
delinquent or modified, excluding loans in COVID-related
forbearance programs.

The Company considers historical loss experience on
the loans and lines in a junior lien position to establish
loss estimates for junior lien loans and lines the Company
services that are current, but the first lien is delinquent or
modified. The historical long-term average loss
experience related to junior liens has been relatively
limited (less than 1 percent of the total portfolio
annually), and estimates are adjusted to consider current
collateral support and portfolio risk characteristics.
These include updated credit scores and collateral
estimates obtained on the Company’s home equity
portfolio each quarter. In its evaluation of the allowance
for credit losses, the Company also considers the
increased risk of loss associated with home equity lines
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that are contractually scheduled to convert from a
revolving status to a fully amortizing payment.

Beginning January 1, 2020, when a loan portfolio is
purchased, the acquired loans are divided into those
considered purchased with more than insignificant credit
deterioration (“PCD”) and those not considered purchased
with more than insignificant credit deterioration. An
allowance is established for each population and considers
product mix, risk characteristics of the portfolio,
bankruptcy experience, delinquency status and refreshed
LTV ratios when possible. The allowance established for
purchased loans not considered PCD is recognized through
provision expense upon acquisition, whereas the allowance
established for loans considered PCD at acquisition is offset
by an increase in the basis of the acquired loans. Any
subsequent increases and decreases in the allowance related
to purchased loans, regardless of PCD status, are
recognized through provision expense, with charge-offs
charged to the allowance. The Company did not have a
material amount of PCD loans included in its loan
portfolio at March 31, 2021.

The Company’s methodology for determining the
appropriate allowance for credit losses also considers the
imprecision inherent in the methodologies used and
allocated to the various loan portfolios. As a result,
amounts determined under the methodologies described
above are adjusted by management to consider the
potential impact of other qualitative factors not captured
in quantitative model adjustments which include, but are
not limited to, the following: model imprecision,
imprecision in economic scenario assumptions, and
emerging risks related to either changes in the economic
environment that are affecting specific portfolios, or
changes in portfolio concentrations over time that may
affect model performance. The consideration of these
items results in adjustments to allowance amounts
included in the Company’s allowance for credit losses for
each loan portfolio.

Although the Company determined the amount of
each element of the allowance separately and considers
this process to be an important credit management tool,
the entire allowance for credit losses is available for the
entire loan portfolio. The actual amount of losses can
vary significantly from the estimated amounts.

At March 31, 2021, the allowance for credit losses
was $7.0 billion (2.36 percent of period-end loans),
compared with an allowance of $8.0 billion (2.69 percent
of period-end loans) at December 31, 2020. The ratio of
the allowance for credit losses to nonperforming loans
was 617 percent at March 31, 2021, compared with
654 percent at December 31, 2020. The ratio of the
allowance for credit losses to annualized loan net charge-
offs was 770 percent at March 31, 2021, compared with
448 percent of full year 2020 net charge-offs at
December 31, 2020.
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The decrease in the allowance for credit losses of
$1.1 billion (13.1 percent) at March 31, 2021, compared
with December 31, 2020, reflected factors affecting
economic conditions during the first quarter of 2021,
including the enactment of additional benefits from
government stimulus programs, vaccine availability in the
United States and reduced levels of new COVID-19 cases.
In addition to these factors, expected loss estimates
consider various factors including customer specific
information impacting changes in risk ratings, projected
delinquencies and the impact of industry-wide loan
modification efforts designed to limit long-term effects of
the COVID-19 pandemic, among other factors.
Currently, consumer credit trends continue to perform
better than expected, although select commercial
portfolios most impacted by COVID-19 continue to be
monitored for structural shifts associated with the
pandemic.

Changes in economic conditions during the first
quarter of 2021 included improvements in projected
gross domestic product and unemployment levels for
2021, which reflected the additional government stimulus
and availability of vaccines. These factors are evaluated
through a combination of quantitative calculations using
economic scenarios and qualitative assessments that
consider the high degree of uncertainty related to the
unprecedented levels of both economic stress and the
stimulus response.

The following table summarizes the baseline forecast for
key economic variables the Company used in its estimate
of the allowance for credit losses at March 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020:

March 31,  December 31,
2021 2020
United States unemployment rate for the
three months ending (a)
March 31,2021 . . .. ... ... ... ... 6.3% 6.9%

June 30,2021 . ... .o 6.0 7.1

December 31,2021 ... ... ... ..... 5.0 6.8
United States real gross domestic product for

the three months ending (b)

March 31,2021 .. .. ... . o (1.3)% 2.1)%

June 30,2021 .. ... 2 (1.1)
December 31, 2021 1.5

(a)  Reflects quarterty average of forecasted reported United States unemployment rate.
(b)  Reflects cumulative change from December 31, 2019.

Baseline economic forecasts are used in combination
with alternative scenarios and historical loss experience as
is considered reasonable and supportable to inform the
Company’s allowance for credit losses. Changes in the
allowance for credit losses are based on a variety of factors,
including loan balance changes, portfolio credit quality and
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mix changes, and changes in general economic conditions
and expectations (including for unemployment and gross
domestic product), among other factors. Based on
economic conditions at March 31, 2021, it was difficult to
estimate the length and severity of the economic downturn
that may result from COVID-19 and the impact of other
factors that may influence the level of eventual losses and
corresponding requirements for the allowance for credit
losses, including the impact of economic stimulus programs
and customer accommodation activity. While reserves
consider the uncertainty in these estimates, the
unpredictability of the COVID-19 pandemic could result in
the recognition of credit losses in the Company’s loan
portfolios and increases in the allowance for credit losses.
Scenarios worse than the Company’s expected outcome at
March 31, 2021 include risks that government stimulus in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic is less effective than
expected, or that a longer or more severe health crisis
prolongs the downturn in economic activity, potentially
reducing the number of businesses that are ultimately able
to resume operations after the crisis has passed. Other
factors considered include the potential of rising interest
rates and unsupported increases in the values of certain
assets.

The allowance for credit losses related to commercial
lending segment loans decreased $503 million during the
first quarter of 2021, as improvements in general
economic conditions and portfolio credit quality offset
the impact of COVID-19 on certain industry sectors,
including the retail and restaurants, energy, media and
entertainment, lodging and airline industries that have
been severely impacted by virus containment measures.

The following table summarizes the Company’s
commercial lending segment credit exposure to customers
within the industry sectors most impacted by COVID-19,
as a percentage of total loans and legal commitments
outstanding at March 31, 2021:

Qutstanding
Loans Commitments

Retal . ... .. . 3.6% 5.0%
Energy (includes Oiland gas) . . . ............... 9 2.2
Media and entertainment . . . .. ... ... .. L 1.9 2.2
Lodging . . .« .o 1.2 9
Adine ... 3 5

The allowance for credit losses related to consumer
lending segment loans decreased $547 million during the
first quarter of 2021, due to improving economic risks,
including those due to decreased unemployment, along
with continued strong underlying credit quality that
supports expectations of long-term repayment.
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BEEX:] Summary of Allowance for Credit Losses

(Dollars in Millions)

Three Months Ended

Balance at beginning of period . . . . . ..
Change inaccounting principle (&) . . . . . . . .

Charge-Offs
Commercial

Commercial. . . . oo
Lease finanCing . . . . . o o

Total commercial . . . . .

Commercial real estate

Commercial MOMGAgES .« .+« « v v v
Construction and development . . .. ...

Total commercial real estate . .. ... ...
Residential mortgages . . . . . ..
CreditCard . . .o

Other retalil

Retaill leasing . . . .« o
Home equity and second mortgages . . . . .
ONer .

Total otherretall .. .. .
Total charge-offs . . .. .

Recoveries
Commercial

Commercial. . ...
Lease finanCing . . . . . o

Total commercial . . . . ..

Commercial real estate

Commercial Mortgages . . . . . oo
Construction and development . . .. ...

Total commercial real estate . .. ... ...
Residential mortgages . . . . oo
Credit Card . . oo

Other retall

Retaill leasing . . . .« o
Home equity and second mortgages . . . . .
Other .

Totalotherretall .. .. ..
Total reCoVENES . . o . o

Net Charge-Offs
Commercial

COMMETCIAl. © . o
Lease finanCing . . . . o v

Total commercial . . . ...

Commercial real estate

Commercial Morgages . . . . v v v
Construction and development . . .. ...

Total commercial real estate . .. ... ...
Residential mMortgages . . . . o v
Credit Card . . .o

Other retall

Retailleasing . . . . . oo
Home equity and second mortgages . . . . .
OtNer .

Total otherretall . .. ..

Totalnetcharge-offs . . . . . .. o
Provision for Credit IoSSES . . .« . v oo

Balance at end of period . . . . .

Components

Allowance for 0an I0SSES . . . . v v v o
Liability for unfunded credit commitments . . . . . ...

Total allowance for credit I0SSeSs . . . . v oo

Allowance for Credit Losses as a Percentage of

Period-end 10ans . . . . .
Nonperforming 08NS . . o . o o
Nonperforming and accruing loans 90 days or more past due
Nonperforming @SSetS . . . . oo oo
Annualized net charge-offs . . . . . .

March 31
2021 2020
$8,010  $4,491
— 1,499
80 81
6 7
86 88
5 —_
5 _
10 —
5 8
190 274
11 25
4 5
68 91
83 121
374 491
28 12
2 2
30 14
17 1
— 1
17 2
10 7
46 40
10 6
6 4
32 25
48 35
151 98
52 69
4 5
56 74
(12) (1)
5 (1)
(7) @)
5) 1
144 234
1 19
) 1
36 66
35 86
223 393
827) 993

$6,960 $6,590
$6,343  $6,216

617 374
$6,960  $6,590

2.36% 2.07%

617 809
434 473
579 697
770 417

(a)  Effective January 1, 2020, the Company adopted accounting guidance which changed impairment recognition of financial instruments to a model that is based on expected

losses rather than incurred losses.
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Residual Value Risk Management The Company manages
its risk to changes in the residual value of leased vehicles,
office and business equipment, and other assets through
disciplined residual valuation setting at the inception of a
lease, diversification of its leased assets, regular residual
asset valuation reviews and monitoring of residual value
gains or losses upon the disposition of assets. As of
March 31, 2021, no significant change in the amount of
residual values or concentration of the portfolios had
occurred since December 31, 2020. Refer to
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis — Residual
Value Risk Management” in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2020, for further discussion on residual value risk
management.

Operational Risk Management The Company operates in
many different businesses in diverse markets and relies on
the ability of its employees and systems to process a high
number of transactions. Operational risk is inherent in all
business activities, and the management of this risk is
important to the achievement of the Company’s
objectives. Business lines have direct and primary
responsibility and accountability for identifying,
controlling, and monitoring operational risks embedded
in their business activities, including those additional or
increased risks created by the economic and financial
disruptions, and the Company’s alternative working
arrangements resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Company maintains a system of controls with the
objective of providing proper transaction authorization
and execution, proper system operations, proper
oversight of third parties with whom it does business,
safeguarding of assets from misuse or theft, and ensuring
the reliability and security of financial and other data.
Refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis —
Operational Risk Management” in the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2020, for further discussion on operational
risk management.

Compliance Risk Management The Company may suffer
legal or regulatory sanctions, material financial loss, or
damage to its reputation through failure to comply with
laws, regulations, rules, standards of good practice, and
codes of conduct, including those related to compliance
with Bank Secrecy Act/anti-money laundering
requirements, sanctions compliance requirements as
administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control,
consumer protection and other requirements. The
Company has controls and processes in place for the
assessment, identification, monitoring, management and
reporting of compliance risks and issues including those
created or increased by the economic and financial
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disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Refer to
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis — Compliance
Risk Management” in the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020, for
further discussion on compliance risk management.

Interest Rate Risk Management In the banking industry,
changes in interest rates are a significant risk that can
impact earnings and the safety and soundness of an
entity. The Company manages its exposure to changes in
interest rates through asset and liability management
activities within guidelines established by its Asset
Liability Management Committee (“ALCO?”) and
approved by the Board of Directors. The ALCO has the
responsibility for approving and ensuring compliance
with the ALCO management policies, including interest
rate risk exposure. One way the Company measures and
analyzes its interest rate risk is through net interest
income simulation analysis.

Simulation analysis incorporates substantially all of
the Company’s assets and liabilities and off-balance sheet
instruments, together with forecasted changes in the
balance sheet and assumptions that reflect the current
interest rate environment. Through this simulation,
management estimates the impact on net interest income
of various interest rate changes that differ in the
direction, amount and speed of change over time, as well
as the shape of the yield curve. This simulation includes
assumptions about how the balance sheet is likely to be
affected by changes in loan and deposit growth.
Assumptions are made to project interest rates for new
loans and deposits based on historical analysis,
management’s outlook and re-pricing strategies. These
assumptions are reviewed and validated on a periodic
basis with sensitivity analysis being provided for key
variables of the simulation. The results are reviewed
monthly by the ALCO and are used to guide asset/
liability management strategies.

The Company manages its interest rate risk position
by holding assets with desired interest rate risk
characteristics on its balance sheet, implementing certain
pricing strategies for loans and deposits and selecting
derivatives and various funding and investment portfolio
strategies.

Table 9 summarizes the projected impact to net
interest income over the next 12 months of various
potential interest rate changes. The sensitivity of the
projected impact to net interest income over the next 12
months is dependent on balance sheet growth, product
mix, deposit behavior, pricing and funding decisions.
While the Company utilizes models and assumptions
based on historical information and expected behaviors,
actual outcomes could vary significantly.
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ELIEX] Sensitivity of Net Interest Income

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Down 50 bps  Up50bps  Down 200 bps  Up 200 bps Down 50 bps  Up 50 bps  Down 200 bps  Up 200 bps
Immediate  Immediate Gradual Gradual Immediate  Immediate Gradual Gradual
Net interestincome .. ........... (3.02)% 2.57% * 3.23% (4.48)% 4.58% * 6.57%

*

Given the level of interest rates, downward rate scenario is not computed.

Use of Derivatives to Manage Interest Rate and Other
Risks To manage the sensitivity of earnings and capital to
interest rate, prepayment, credit, price and foreign
currency fluctuations (asset and liability management
positions), the Company enters into derivative
transactions. The Company uses derivatives for asset and
liability management purposes primarily in the following
ways:

e To convert fixed-rate debt and available-for-sale
investment securities from fixed-rate payments to
floating-rate payments;

e To convert floating-rate debt from floating-rate
payments to fixed-rate payments;

® To mitigate changes in value of the Company’s
unfunded mortgage loan commitments, funded
MLHES and MSRs;

e To mitigate remeasurement volatility of foreign
currency denominated balances; and

¢ To mitigate the volatility of the Company’s net
investment in foreign operations driven by fluctuations
in foreign currency exchange rates.

In addition, the Company enters into interest rate
and foreign exchange derivative contracts to support the
business requirements of its customers (customer-related
positions). The Company minimizes the market and
liquidity risks of customer-related positions by either
entering into similar offsetting positions with broker-
dealers, or on a portfolio basis by entering into other
derivative or non-derivative financial instruments that
partially or fully offset the exposure from these customer-
related positions. The Company may enter into derivative
contracts that are either exchange-traded, centrally
cleared through clearinghouses or over-the-counter. The
Company does not utilize derivatives for speculative
purposes.

The Company does not designate all of the
derivatives that it enters into for risk management
purposes as accounting hedges because of the inefficiency
of applying the accounting requirements and may instead
elect fair value accounting for the related hedged items.
In particular, the Company enters into interest rate
swaps, swaptions, forward commitments to buy
to-be-announced securities (“TBAs”), U.S. Treasury and
Eurodollar futures and options on U.S. Treasury futures
to mitigate fluctuations in the value of its MSRs, but does
not designate those derivatives as accounting hedges.
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Additionally, the Company uses forward
commitments to sell TBAs and other commitments to sell
residential mortgage loans at specified prices to
economically hedge the interest rate risk in its residential
mortgage loan production activities. At March 31, 2021,
the Company had $13.7 billion of forward commitments
to sell, hedging $7.7 billion of MLHFS and $8.7 billion
of unfunded mortgage loan commitments. The forward
commitments to sell and the unfunded mortgage loan
commitments on loans intended to be sold are considered
derivatives under the accounting guidance related to
accounting for derivative instruments and hedging
activities. The Company has elected the fair value option
for the MLHFS.

Derivatives are subject to credit risk associated with
counterparties to the contracts. Credit risk associated
with derivatives is measured by the Company based on
the probability of counterparty default, including
consideration of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Company
manages the credit risk of its derivative positions by
diversifying its positions among various counterparties,
by entering into master netting arrangements, and, where
possible, by requiring collateral arrangements. The
Company may also transfer counterparty credit risk
related to interest rate swaps to third parties through the
use of risk participation agreements. In addition, certain
interest rate swaps, interest rate forwards and credit
contracts are required to be centrally cleared through
clearinghouses to further mitigate counterparty credit
risk.

For additional information on derivatives and
hedging activities, refer to Notes 12 and 13 in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

LIBOR Transition In July 2017, the United Kingdom’s
Financial Conduct Authority announced that it would no
longer require banks to submit rates for the London
InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) after 2021. In 2020,
the Intercontinental Exchange Benchmark
Administration, which is the administrator of LIBOR,
proposed to cease the publication of all non-United States
Dollar LIBOR rates and one week and two month United
States Dollar LIBOR rates on December 31, 2021, but
extend the publication of the remainder of United States
Dollar LIBOR rates until June 30, 2023. The Company
holds financial instruments that will be impacted by the
discontinuance of LIBOR, including certain loans,
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investment securities, derivatives, borrowings and other
financial instruments that use LIBOR as the benchmark
rate. The Company also provides various services to
customers in its capacity as trustee, which involve
financial instruments that will be similarly impacted by
the discontinuance of LIBOR. The Company anticipates
these financial instruments will require transition to a
new reference rate. This transition will occur over time as
many of these arrangements do not have an alternative
rate referenced in their contracts or a clear path for the
parties to agree upon an alternative reference rate. In
order to facilitate the transition process, the Company
has instituted a LIBOR Transition Office and
commenced an enterprise-wide project to identify, assess
and monitor risks associated with the expected
discontinuance or unavailability of LIBOR, actively
engage with industry working groups and regulators,
achieve operational readiness and engage impacted
customers. Starting in 2020, the Company began
modifying its systems, models, procedures and internal
infrastructure to be prepared to accept alternative
reference rates. The Company also adopted industry best
practice guidelines for fallback language for new
transactions, converted its cleared interest rate swaps
discounting to Secured Overnight Financing Rate
discounting, and distributed communications to certain
impacted parties, both inside and outside the Company,
on the transition. Refer to “Risk Factors” in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2020, for further discussion on
potential risks that could adversely affect the Company’s
financial results as a result of the LIBOR transition.

Market Risk Management In addition to interest rate risk,
the Company is exposed to other forms of market risk,
principally related to trading activities which support
customers’ strategies to manage their own foreign
currency, interest rate risk and funding activities. For
purposes of its internal capital adequacy assessment
process, the Company considers risk arising from its
trading activities, as well as the remeasurement volatility
of foreign currency denominated balances included on its
Consolidated Balance Sheet (collectively, “Covered
Positions”), employing methodologies consistent with the
requirements of regulatory rules for market risk. The
Company’s Market Risk Committee (“MRC”), within
the framework of the ALCO, oversees market risk
management. The MRC monitors and reviews the
Company’s Covered Positions and establishes policies for
market risk management, including exposure limits for
each portfolio. The Company uses a VaR approach to
measure general market risk. Theoretically, VaR
represents the statistical risk of loss the Company has to
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adverse market movements over a one-day time horizon.
The Company uses the Historical Simulation method to
calculate VaR for its Covered Positions measured at the
ninety-ninth percentile using a one-year look-back period
for distributions derived from past market data. The
market factors used in the calculations include those
pertinent to market risks inherent in the underlying
trading portfolios, principally those that affect the
Company’s corporate bond trading business, foreign
currency transaction business, client derivatives business,
loan trading business and municipal securities business,
as well as those inherent in the Company’s foreign
denominated balances and the derivatives used to
mitigate the related measurement volatility. On average,
the Company expects the one-day VaR to be exceeded by
actual losses two to three times per year related to these
positions. The Company monitors the accuracy of
internal VaR models and modeling processes by back-
testing model performance, regularly updating the
historical data used by the VaR models and regular
model validations to assess the accuracy of the models’
input, processing, and reporting components. All models
are required to be independently reviewed and approved
prior to being placed in use. If the Company were to
experience market losses in excess of the estimated VaR
more often than expected, the VaR models and
associated assumptions would be analyzed and adjusted.

The average, high, low and period-end one-day VaR
amounts for the Company’s Covered Positions were as

follows:

Three Months Ended March 31

(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020
AVEIAGE . . o o $3 $2
High o 4 3
Low 1 1
Period-end . .. ... .. 2 3

The Company did not experience any actual losses
for its combined Covered Positions that exceeded VaR
during the three months ended March 31, 2021. Given
the market volatility in the first quarter of 2020 resulting
from effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company
experienced actual losses for its combined Covered
Positions that exceeded VaR five times during the three
months ended March 31, 2020. The Company stress tests
its market risk measurements to provide management
with perspectives on market events that may not be
captured by its VaR models, including worst case
historical market movement combinations that have not
necessarily occurred on the same date.

The Company calculates Stressed VaR using the
same underlying methodology and model as VaR, except
that a historical continuous one-year look-back period is
utilized that reflects a period of significant financial stress
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appropriate to the Company’s Covered Positions. The
period selected by the Company includes the significant
market volatility of the last four months of 2008.

The average, high, low and period-end one-day Stressed
VaR amounts for the Company’s Covered Positions were

as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31

(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020
AVEIAGE . $7 $6
High 9 7
LOW o 5 4
Period-end . . ... . 9 7

Valuations of positions in client derivatives and
foreign currency activities are based on discounted cash
flow or other valuation techniques using market-based
assumptions. These valuations are compared to third
party quotes or other market prices to determine if there
are significant variances. Significant variances are
approved by senior management in the Company’s
corporate functions. Valuation of positions in the
corporate bond trading, loan trading and municipal
securities businesses are based on trader marks. These
trader marks are evaluated against third-party prices,
with significant variances approved by senior
management in the Company’s corporate functions.

The Company also measures the market risk of its
hedging activities related to residential MLHFS and
MSRs using the Historical Simulation method. The VaRs
are measured at the ninety-ninth percentile and employ
factors pertinent to the market risks inherent in the
valuation of the assets and hedges. A one-year look-back
period is used to obtain past market data for the models.

The average, high and low VaR amounts for the
residential MLHFS and related hedges and the MSRs and
related hedges were as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020

Residential Mortgage Loans Held For Sale and
Related Hedges

AVEIAgE o v $12 $5

High. oo 19 12

LOW o 7 2
Mortgage Servicing Rights and Related Hedges

AVEIAgE o v $5 $13

High. oo 11 34

LOW o 2 6

Liquidity Risk Management The Company’s liquidity risk
management process is designed to identify, measure, and
manage the Company’s funding and liquidity risk to meet
its daily funding needs and to address expected and
unexpected changes in its funding requirements. The
Company engages in various activities to manage its
liquidity risk. These activities include diversifying its
funding sources, stress testing, and holding readily-
marketable assets which can be used as a source of
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liquidity if needed. In addition, the Company’s profitable
operations, sound credit quality and strong capital
position have enabled it to develop a large and reliable
base of core deposit funding within its market areas and
in domestic and global capital markets.

The Company’s Board of Directors approves the
Company’s liquidity policy. The Risk Management
Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors oversees
the Company’s liquidity risk management process and
approves a contingency funding plan. The ALCO reviews
the Company’s liquidity policy and limits, and regularly
assesses the Company’s ability to meet funding
requirements arising from adverse company-specific or
market events.

The Company regularly projects its funding needs
under various stress scenarios and maintains a
contingency funding plan consistent with the Company’s
access to diversified sources of contingent funding. The
Company maintains a substantial level of total available
liquidity in the form of on-balance sheet and off-balance
sheet funding sources. These liquidity sources include
cash at the Federal Reserve Bank and certain European
central banks, unencumbered liquid assets, and capacity
to borrow from the FHLB and at Federal Reserve Bank’s
Discount Window. At March 31, 2021, the fair value of
unencumbered investment securities totaled
$116.8 billion, compared with $125.9 billion at
December 31, 2020. Refer to Note 3 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements and “Balance Sheet
Analysis” for further information on investment
securities maturities and trends. Asset liquidity is further
enhanced by the Company’s practice of pledging loans to
access secured borrowing facilities through the FHLB and
Federal Reserve Bank. At March 31, 2021, the Company
could have borrowed a total of an additional
$94.5 billion from the FHLB and Federal Reserve Bank
based on collateral available for additional borrowings.

The Company’s diversified deposit base provides a
sizeable source of relatively stable and low-cost funding,
while reducing the Company’s reliance on the wholesale
markets. Total deposits were $433.8 billion at March 31,
2021, compared with $429.8 billion at December 31,
2020. Refer to “Balance Sheet Analysis” for further
information on the Company’s deposits.

Additional funding is provided by long-term debt
and short-term borrowings. Long-term debt was
$37.4 billion at March 31, 2021, and is an important
funding source because of its multi-year borrowing
structure. Short-term borrowings were $12.1 billion at
March 31, 2021, and supplement the Company’s other
funding sources. Refer to “Balance Sheet Analysis” for
further information on the Company’s long-term debt
and short-term borrowings.
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In addition to assessing liquidity risk on a
consolidated basis, the Company monitors the parent
company’s liquidity. The Company establishes limits for
the minimal number of months into the future where the
parent company can meet existing and forecasted
obligations with cash and securities held that can be
readily monetized. The Company measures and manages
this limit in both normal and adverse conditions. The
Company maintains sufficient funding to meet expected
capital and debt service obligations for 24 months
without the support of dividends from subsidiaries and
assuming access to the wholesale markets is maintained.
The Company maintains sufficient liquidity to meet its
capital and debt service obligations for 12 months under
adverse conditions without the support of dividends from
subsidiaries or access to the wholesale markets. The
parent company is currently well in excess of required
liquidity minimums.

At March 31, 2021, parent company long-term debt
outstanding was $20.8 billion, compared with
$20.9 billion at December 31, 2020. As of March 31,
2021, there was $1.5 billion of parent company debt
scheduled to mature in the remainder of 2021.

The Company is subject to a regulatory Liquidity
Coverage Ratio (“LCR”) requirement which requires
banks to maintain an adequate level of unencumbered
high quality liquid assets to meet estimated liquidity
needs over a 30-day stressed period. At March 31, 2021,
the Company was compliant with this requirement.

Refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis —
Liquidity Risk Management” in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2020, for further discussion on liquidity risk
management.

European Exposures The Company provides merchant
processing and corporate trust services in Europe either
directly or through banking affiliations in Europe.
Revenue generated from sources in Europe represented
approximately 2 percent of the Company’s total net
revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2021.
Operating cash for these businesses is deposited on a
short-term basis typically with certain European central
banks. For deposits placed at other European banks,
exposure is mitigated by the Company placing deposits at
multiple banks and managing the amounts on deposit at
any bank based on institution-specific deposit limits. At
March 31, 2021, the Company had an aggregate amount
on deposit with European banks of approximately
$12.3 billion, predominately with the Central Bank of
Ireland and Bank of England.

In addition, the Company provides financing to
domestic multinational corporations that generate
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revenue from customers in European countries, transacts
with various European banks as counterparties to certain
derivative-related activities, and through a subsidiary,
manages money market funds that hold certain
investments in European sovereign debt. Any further
deterioration in economic conditions in Europe,
including the potential negative impact of the United
Kingdom’s withdrawal from the European Union
(“Brexit”), is not expected to have a significant effect on
the Company related to these activities. The Company is
focused on providing continuity of services, with minimal
disruption resulting from Brexit, to customers with
activities in European countries. The Company has made
certain structural changes to its legal entities and
operations in the United Kingdom and European Union,
where needed, and migrated certain business activities to
the appropriate jurisdictions to continue to provide such
services and generate revenue.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements Off-balance sheet
arrangements include any contractual arrangements to
which an unconsolidated entity is a party, under which
the Company has an obligation to provide credit or
liquidity enhancements or market risk support. In the
ordinary course of business, the Company enters into an
array of commitments to extend credit, letters of credit
and various forms of guarantees that may be considered
off-balance sheet arrangements. Refer to Note 15 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information on these arrangements. The Company does
not utilize private label asset securitizations as a source of
funding. Off-balance sheet arrangements also include any
obligation related to a variable interest held in an
unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity,
credit enhancement or market risk support. Refer to
Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further information related to the
Company’s interests in variable interest entities.

Capital Management The Company is committed to
managing capital to maintain strong protection for
depositors and creditors and for maximum shareholder
benefit. The Company also manages its capital to exceed
regulatory capital requirements for banking
organizations. The regulatory capital requirements
effective for the Company follow Basel III, with the
Company being subject to calculating its capital
adequacy as a percentage of risk-weighted assets under
the standardized approach. Beginning in 2020, the
Company elected to adopt a rule issued in 2020 by its
regulators which permits banking organizations who
adopt accounting guidance related to the impairment of
financial instruments based on the current expected
credit losses (“CECL”) methodology during 2020, the

25



IEER ) Regulatory Capital Ratios

March 31, December 31,
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020
Basel Il standardized approach:
Common equity tier T.capital . . . .. . $ 39,103 $ 38,045
Tier 1capital . . o 45,617 44, 474
Totalrisk-based capital . . . . . . 53,625 52,602
Risk-weighted assets . . . . . o 396,351 393,648
Common equity tier 1 capital as a percent of risk-weighted assets . . . .. ... . o 9.9% 9.7%
Tier 1 capital as a percent of risk-welghted assets. . . . . . . o 1.5 1.3
Total risk-based capital as a percent of risk-weighted assets . . . . . . . . . 13.5 13.4
Tier 1 capital as a percent of adjusted quarterly average assets (leverage ratio) . . . .. ... ... o o 8.4 8.3
Tier 1 capital as a percent of total on- and off-balance sheet leverage exposure (total leverage exposure ratio) . . . ... ... .. .. 7.4 7.3

option to defer the impact of the effect of that guidance
at adoption plus 25 percent of its quarterly credit reserve
increases over the next two years on its regulatory capital
requirements, followed by a three-year transition period
to phase in the cumulative deferred impact. Table 10
provides a summary of statutory regulatory capital ratios
in effect for the Company at March 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020. All regulatory ratios exceeded
regulatory “well-capitalized” requirements.

The Company believes certain other capital ratios
are useful in evaluating its capital adequacy. The
Company’s tangible common equity, as a percent of
tangible assets and as a percent of risk-weighted assets
determined in accordance with transitional regulatory
capital requirements related to the CECL methodology
under the standardized approach, was 6.6 percent and
9.1 percent, respectively, at March 31, 2021, compared
with 6.9 percent and 9.5 percent, respectively, at
December 31, 2020. In addition, the Company’s
common equity tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets
ratio, reflecting the full implementation of the CECL
methodology was 9.5 percent at March 31, 2021,
compared with 9.3 percent at December 31, 2020. Refer
to “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” beginning on
page 30 for further information on these other capital
ratios.

Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders’ equity was
$51.7 billion at March 31, 2021, compared with
$53.1 billion at December 31, 2020. The decrease was
primarily the result of changes in unrealized gains and
losses on available-for-sale investment securities included
in other comprehensive income (loss), dividends and
common share repurchases, partially offset by corporate
earnings.

Beginning in March of 2020 and continuing through
the remainder of 2020, the Company suspended all
common stock repurchases except for those done
exclusively in connection with its stock-based
compensation programs. This action was initially taken
to maintain strong capital levels given the impact and
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uncertainties of COVID-19 on the economy and global
markets. Due to continued economic uncertainty, the
Federal Reserve Board implemented measures beginning
in the fourth quarter of 2020 and extending through
2021, restricting capital distributions of all large bank
holding companies, including the Company. These
restrictions limit the aggregate amount of common stock
dividends and share repurchases to an amount that does
not exceed the average net income of the four preceding
calendar quarters. Based on the results of the December
2020 Federal Reserve Board Stress Test, the Company
announced on December 22, 2020 that its Board of
Directors had approved an authorization to repurchase
up to $3.0 billion of its common stock beginning
January 1, 2021.

The following table provides a detailed analysis of all
shares purchased by the Company or any affiliated
purchaser during the first quarter of 2021:

Approximate Dollar
Total Number of Value of Shares
Shares Purchased that May Yet Be

Total Number Average as Part of Publicly  Purchased Under

of Shares  Price Paid Announced the Program

Period Purchased Per Share Program (a) (In Millions)
January ... 5,669,648(b) $44.91 5,194,648 $2,767
February . . . 5,343,085 49.37 5,343,085 2,503
March .. .. 2,838,065 54.13 2,838,065 2,350
Total ... 13,740,798(b) $48.55 13,375,798 $2,350

(a)  All shares were purchased under the $3.0 billion common stock repurchase
authorization program announced December 22, 2020.

(b) Includes 365,000 shares of common stock purchased, at an average price per
share of $45.52, in open-market transactions by U.S. Bank National Association,
the Company’s banking subsidiary, in its capacity as trustee of the U.S. Bank
401 (k) Savings Plan, which is the Company's employee retirement savings plan.

The Company will continue to monitor the economic
environment and will adjust its capital distributions as
circumstances warrant. Additional capital distributions
are subject to the approval of the Company’s Board of
Directors, and will be consistent with regulatory
requirements.

Refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis —
Capital Management” in the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020, for
further discussion on capital management.
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LINE OF BUSINESS FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Company’s major lines of business are Corporate
and Commercial Banking, Consumer and Business
Banking, Wealth Management and Investment Services,
Payment Services, and Treasury and Corporate Support.
These operating segments are components of the
Company about which financial information is prepared
and is evaluated regularly by management in deciding
how to allocate resources and assess performance.

Basis for Financial Presentation Business line results are
derived from the Company’s business unit profitability
reporting systems by specifically attributing managed
balance sheet assets, deposits and other liabilities and their
related income or expense. Refer to Note 16 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further information
on the business lines’ basis for financial presentation.

Designations, assignments and allocations change
from time to time as management systems are enhanced,
methods of evaluating performance or product lines
change or business segments are realigned to better
respond to the Company’s diverse customer base. During
2021, certain organization and methodology changes
were made and, accordingly, 2020 results were restated
and presented on a comparable basis.

Corporate and Commercial Banking Corporate and
Commercial Banking offers lending, equipment finance
and small-ticket leasing, depository services, treasury
management, capital markets services, international trade
services and other financial services to middle market,
large corporate, commercial real estate, financial
institution, non-profit and public sector clients.
Corporate and Commercial Banking contributed

$419 million of the Company’s net income in the first
quarter of 2021, or an increase of $278 million
compared with the first quarter of 2020.

Net revenue decreased $130 million (12.3 percent) in
the first quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter
of 2020. Net interest income, on a taxable-equivalent
basis, decreased $118 million (15.1 percent) in the first
quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter of 2020.
The decrease was primarily due to the impact of
declining interest rates on the margin benefit from
deposits and lower loan balances, partially offset by
favorable deposit mix with higher noninterest-bearing
deposit balances and higher loan fees. Noninterest
income decreased $12 million (4.4 percent) in the first
quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter of 2020,
primarily driven by lower capital markets activities,
including trading revenue, and lower commercial leasing
fees, partially offset by higher non-yield loan fees on
unused commitments.
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Noninterest expense decreased $37 million
(8.4 percent) in the first quarter of 2021, compared with
the first quarter of 2020, primarily due to lower net
shared services expense and production incentives as well
as lower marketing and business development expense
driven by a reduction in travel as a result of COVID-19.
The provision for credit losses decreased $464 million in
the first quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter
of 2020, primarily due to a favorable change in the
reserve allocation driven by improving credit risk ratings.

Consumer and Business Banking Consumer and Business
Banking delivers products and services through banking
offices, telephone servicing and sales, on-line services,
direct mail, ATM processing and mobile devices. It
encompasses community banking, metropolitan banking
and indirect lending, as well as mortgage banking.
Consumer and Business Banking contributed
$671 million of the Company’s net income in the first
quarter of 2021, or an increase of $52 million
(8.4 percent), compared with the first quarter of 2020.

Net revenue decreased $46 million (2.0 percent) in
the first quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter
of 2020. Net interest income, on a taxable-equivalent
basis, increased $94 million (6.1 percent) in the first
quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter of 2020,
reflecting continued strong growth in deposit balances
and loan growth, driven by mortgage and indirect
lending as well as by loans made under the SBA’s
Paycheck Protection Program and GNMA buybacks. The
increase in net interest income also reflected higher loan
fees and favorable loan spreads, partially offset by the
impact of declining interest rates on deposit spreads.
Noninterest income decreased $140 million
(18.5 percent) in the first quarter of 2021, compared
with the first quarter of 2020, primarily due to lower
mortgage banking revenue reflecting a reduction in the
fair value of MSRs, net of hedging activities, partially
offset by higher production volume and related gain on
sale margins compared with the prior year as well as
lower deposit service charges.

Noninterest expense increased $51 million
(3.8 percent) in the first quarter of 2021, compared with
the first quarter of 2020, primarily due to an increase in
net shared services expense due to investments in digital
capabilities and higher variable compensation related to
mortgage banking origination activities. The provision
for credit losses decreased $167 million in the first
quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter of 2020,
due to a favorable change in the reserve allocation
primarily reflecting lower delinquency rates in consumer
portfolios and a reduction in end of period outstanding
loan balances in the first quarter of 2021 compared with
loan growth in the first quarter of 2020.
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1k:1JCREN Line of Business Financial Performance

Consumer and
Business Banking

Corporate and
Commercial Banking

Three Month Ended March 31 Percent Percent
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020  Change 2021 2020  Change
Condensed Income Statement
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) . . . ... ................ $ 666 $ 784 (15.1)%| $ 1625 $ 1,531 6.1%
Noninterest INCome . . . . . . o oo 259 271 (4.4) 617 757 (18.5)
Totalnetrevenue . . . .. .. 925 1,055 (12.3) 2,242 2,288 (2.0)
Noninterest EXPENSE .+« v v v v 406 443 (8.4) 1,388 1,336 3.9
Otherintangibles. . . . ... e - - - 3 4 (25.0)
Total noninterest expense . . . . . ... 406 443 (8.4) 1,391 1,340 3.8
Income (loss) before provision and incometaxes . . ... .. ... oL 519 612 (16.2) 851 948 (10.2)
Provision for creditlosses . . .. ... .. (40) 424 * (44) 123 *
Income (loss) before incometaxes . ... ... 559 188 * 895 825 8.5
Income taxes and taxable-equivalent adjustment . . .. ... ... oL 140 47 * 224 206 8.7
Netincome (I0SS) . . . v v oo e 419 141 * 671 619 8.4
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests . . ... ... ... .. .. - - - - - -
Net income (loss) attributable to U.S. Bancorp ... ... ... oo $ 419 $ 141 * $ 671 $ 619 8.4
Average Balance Sheet
Commercial . . . . $ 74,055 $ 82,167 9.9%| $ 13378 $ 8,860 51.0%
Commercial real estate. . . .. ... ... .. 20,808 21,190 (1.8) 15,161 16,305 (7.1)
Residential mortgages . . . .« .o 2 3 (33.3) 70,085 66,634 5.2
Credit card . .. - - - - - -
Otherretall. . ... 7 8 (12.5) 54,563 54,919 (.6)
Totalloans . . .. 94,872 103,368 8.2) 163,177 146,718 4.4
GoodWill . o 1,647 1,647 - 3,475 3,674 (2.8)
Otherintangible assets. . .. ... .. o 5 7 (28.6) 2,491 2,411 3.3
ASSELS 107,022 115,308 (7.2) 175,541 161,886 8.4
Noninterest-bearing deposits . . . .. ... . L 51,020 29,370 73.7 39,186 27,866 40.6
Interest checking . . . .« .. e 13,024 14,064 (7.4) 69,785 53,017 31.6
Savings products . . .. 46,112 48,207 (4.3) 80,220 64,189 25.0
Time deposits . . . . . 8,614 18,386 (63.1) 16,871 16,612 2.2
Totaldeposits . . . .. 118,770 110,027 7.9 206,062 161,584 27.5
Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders’ equity .. ... .. ..o oo 13,074 14,182 (7.8) 13,453 13,422 2

*

Not meaningful

Wealth Management and Investment Services Wealth
Management and Investment Services provides private
banking, financial advisory services, investment
management, retail brokerage services, insurance, trust,
custody and fund servicing through four businesses:
Wealth Management, Global Corporate Trust &
Custody, U.S. Bancorp Asset Management and

Fund Services. Wealth Management and Investment
Services contributed $171 million of the Company’s net
income in the first quarter of 2021, or a decrease of
$35 million (17.0 percent) compared with the first
quarter of 2020.

Net revenue decreased $54 million (7.2 percent) in
the first quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter
of 2020. Net interest income, on a taxable-equivalent
basis, decreased $80 million (28.2 percent) in the first
quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter of 2020,
primarily due to the declining margin benefit from
deposits given lower interest rates, partially offset by
higher noninterest-bearing deposit balances and
favorable deposit mix. Noninterest income increased
$26 million (5.6 percent) in the first quarter of 2021,
compared with the first quarter of 2020, primarily due to
the impact of core business growth on trust and
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investment management fees and favorable market
conditions, partially offset by higher fee waivers related
to money market funds.

Noninterest expense increased $9 million (2.0
percent) in the first quarter of 2021, compared with the
first quarter of 2020, reflecting increased other
noninterest expense and higher salary expense due to
merit increases in the first quarter of 2021. The provision
for credit losses decreased $16 million (69.6 percent) in
the first quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter
of 2020, reflecting a favorable change in the reserve
allocation primarily driven by stable credit quality relative
to credit quality deterioration in the first quarter of 2020.

Payment Services Payment Services includes consumer
and business credit cards, stored-value cards, debit cards,
corporate, government and purchasing card services,
consumer lines of credit and merchant processing.
Payment Services contributed $479 million of the
Company’s net income in the first quarter of 2021, or an
increase of $176 million (58.1 percent) compared with
the first quarter of 2020.

Net revenue decreased $42 million (2.9 percent) in
the first quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter

U.S. Bancorp



Wealth Management and Payment Treasury and Consolidated
Investment Services Services Corporate Support Company
Percent Percent Percent Percent
2021 2020  Change 2021 2020  Change 2021 2020  Change 2021 2020  Change
$ 204 $ 284 (282)%| $ 628 $ 661 5.0%| $ B4 % (13) “% $ 3089 $ 3247 (4.9%
492 466 5.6 785 794 (1.1 228 237 (3.8) 2,381 2,625 (5.7)
696 750 (7.2) 1,413 1,455 (2.9 194 224 (13.4) 5,470 5,772 5.2
459 449 2.2 782 754 3.7 306 292 4.8 3,341 3,274 2.0
2 3 (33.3) 33 35 (6.7) - - - 38 42 9.5)
461 452 2.0 815 789 3.3 306 292 4.8 3,379 3,316 1.9
235 298 (21.1) 598 666 (10.2) (112) (68) 64.7) 2,091 2,456 (14.9)
7 23 (69.6) 41) 262 * (709) 161 * (827) 993 *
228 275 (17.1) 639 404 58.2 597 (229) * 2,918 1,463 99.5
57 69 (17.4) 160 101 58.4 52 (139) * 633 284 *
171 206 (17.0) 479 303 58.1 545 (90) * 2,285 1,179 93.8
_ _ - — - - 5) 8) 37.5 5) 8) 37.5
$ 171 B 206 (17.0) $ 479 $ 303 58.1 $ 540 $ (98) * $ 2280 $ 1171 94.7
$ 4,838 $ 4,189 15.5% $ 8,266 $ 9,543 (18.4)%| $ 1554 $ 1,228 26.5% $102,091  $105,987 (8.7)%
514 536 4.1) - - - 2,313 2,047 13.0 38,786 40,078 3.2)
5,114 4,255 20.2 - - - - - - 75,201 70,892 6.1
- - - 21,144 23,836 (11.3) - - - 21,144 23,836 (11.3)
1,977 1,628 21.4 220 309 (28.8) - - - 56,767 56,864 (.2)
12,443 10,608 17.3 29,630 33,688 (12.0) 3,867 3,275 18.1 293,989 297,657 (1.2)
1,619 1,617 A 3,173 2,856 111 - - - 9,914 9,694 2.3
42 44 (4.5) 544 557 (2.3) - - - 3,082 3,019 2.1
15,662 13,950 12.3 35,095 38,285 (8.3 215,414 165,378 30.3 548,734 494,807 10.9
20,277 13,232 53.2 5,264 1,471 * 2,605 2,203 18.2 118,352 74,142 59.6
13,829 10,027 37.9 - - - 747 251 * 97,385 77,359 25,9
56,398 56,646 (.4) 132 112 17.9 811 840 3.5 183,673 169,994 8.0
1,402 2,169 (35.4) - 2 * 67 4,240 (98.4) 26,954 41,309 (34.8)
91,906 82,074 12.0 5,396 1,585 * 4,230 7,534 (43.9) 426,364 362,804 17.5
2,634 2,571 2.5 7,480 7,619 (1.8) 16,088 13,352 205 52,729 51,146 3.1

of 2020. Net interest income, on a taxable-equivalent
basis, decreased $33 million (5.0 percent) in the first
quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter of 2020,
primarily due to lower loan balances as a result of higher
credit card payment rates, and lower loan fees, mostly
offset by higher deposit balances as a result of state
unemployment programs utilizing prepaid debit cards.
Noninterest income decreased $9 million (1.1 percent) in
the first quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter
of 2020, mainly due to the impact of COVID-19 on
consumer spending, particularly related to travel and
entertainment activities. However, consumer spending
continues to strengthen across most sectors driven by
government stimulus, local jurisdictions reducing
restrictions and consumer behaviors normalizing,
resulting in payment services revenue being essentially
flat compared with the prior year. Payment services
revenue included higher credit and debit card revenue
driven by higher net interchange revenue related to sales
volumes and higher prepaid fees as a result of
government stimulus programs, offset by lower corporate
payment products revenue primarily due to lower
business spending related to travel and entertainment and
lower merchant processing services revenue driven by
lower sales volume and merchant fees.

U.S. Bancorp

Noninterest expense increased $26 million
(3.3 percent) in the first quarter of 2021, compared with
the first quarter of 2020, reflecting incremental costs
related to the prepaid card business. The provision for
credit losses decreased $303 million in the first quarter of
2021, compared with the first quarter of 2020, primarily
due to a favorable change in the reserve allocation due to
lower delinquency rates in the first quarter of 2021.

Treasury and Corporate Support Treasury and Corporate
Support includes the Company’s investment portfolios,
funding, capital management, interest rate risk
management, income taxes not allocated to the business
lines, including most investments in tax-advantaged
projects, and the residual aggregate of those expenses
associated with corporate activities that are managed on
a consolidated basis. Treasury and Corporate Support
recorded net income of $540 million in the first quarter
of 2021, compared with a net loss of $98 million in the
first quarter of 2020.

Net revenue decreased $30 million (13.4 percent) in
the first quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter
of 2020. Net interest income, on a taxable-equivalent
basis, decreased $21 million in the first quarter of 2021,
compared with the first quarter of 2020, primarily due to
higher premium amortization and lower reinvestment
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yields within the investment portfolio compared with the
prior year. Noninterest income decreased $9 million

(3.8 percent) in the first quarter of 2021, compared with
the first quarter of 2020, primarily due to lower other
noninterest income driven by lower gains on sales of
businesses and tax-advantaged investment syndication
revenue, mostly offset by the impact of favorable market
conditions.

Noninterest expense increased $14 million
(4.8 percent) in the first quarter of 2021, compared with
the first quarter of 2020, primarily due to higher
compensation expense as a result of merit increases, and
higher performance-based incentives and stock-based
compensation as well as related payroll taxes and
benefits. These increases were mostly offset by lower
COVID-19 related accruals compared with the first
quarter of 2020, including recognizing liabilities related
to future delivery exposures for merchant and airline
processing, and lower net shared services expense. The
provision for credit losses decreased $870 million in the
first quarter of 2021, compared with the first quarter of
2020, reflecting the residual impact of changes in the
allowance for credit losses being impacted by improving
economic conditions.

Income taxes are assessed to each line of business at a
managerial tax rate of 25.0 percent with the residual tax
expense or benefit to arrive at the consolidated effective
tax rate included in Treasury and Corporate Support.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

In addition to capital ratios defined by banking

regulators, the Company considers various other

measures when evaluating capital utilization and

adequacy, including;:

e Tangible common equity to tangible assets,

¢ Tangible common equity to risk-weighted assets, and

e Common equity tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets,
reflecting the full implementation of the CECL
methodology.
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These capital measures are viewed by management
as useful additional methods of evaluating the
Company’s utilization of its capital held and the level of
capital available to withstand unexpected negative
market or economic conditions. Additionally,
presentation of these measures allows investors, analysts
and banking regulators to assess the Company’s capital
position relative to other financial services companies.
These capital measures are not defined in generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), or are not
currently effective or defined in banking regulations. In
addition, certain of these measures differ from currently
effective capital ratios defined by banking regulations
principally in that the currently effective ratios, which are
subject to certain transitional provisions, temporarily
exclude the impact of the 2020 adoption of accounting
guidance related to impairment of financial instruments
based on the CECL methodology. As a result, these
capital measures disclosed by the Company may be
considered non-GAAP financial measures. Management
believes this information helps investors assess trends in
the Company’s capital adequacy.

The Company also discloses net interest income and
related ratios and analysis on a taxable-equivalent basis,
which may also be considered non-GAAP financial
measures. The Company believes this presentation to be
the preferred industry measurement of net interest
income as it provides a relevant comparison of net
interest income arising from taxable and tax-exempt
sources. In addition, certain performance measures,
including the efficiency ratio and net interest margin
utilize net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis.

There may be limits in the usefulness of these
measures to investors. As a result, the Company
encourages readers to consider the consolidated financial
statements and other financial information contained in
this report in their entirety, and not to rely on any single
financial measure.

U.S. Bancorp



The following table shows the Company’s calculation of these non-GAAP financial measures:

March 31, December 31,

(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020
Total @QUILY . . o $ 52,308 $ 53,725
Preferred stOCK . . . o (5,968) (5,983)
Noncontrolling INtErEStS . . . . . oo (630) (630)
Goodwill (net of deferred tax liability) (1) . . . o o oo (8,992) (9,014)
Intangible assets, other than mortgage servicing rights . .. ... ... .. 675) (654)

Tangible COMMON EQUILY (B) .+« o v v e 36,043 37,444
Common equity tier 1 capital, determined in accordance with transitional regulatory capital requirements related to the CECL

methodology implementation . . . . . . 39,103 38,045
AIUSIMENES (2) .« . o o o e (1,732) (1,733)

Common equity tier 1 capital, reflecting the full implementation of the CECL methodology (0) . . . . . .. ... ... o0t 37,371 36,312
Total @SSelS . o L 553,375 553,905
Goodwill (net of deferred tax liability) (1) . . . . o oo e (8,992) (9,014)
Intangible assets, other than mortgage servicing fights . . . . o o 675) (654)

Tangible assets (C) . . . o v o 543,708 544,237
Risk-weighted assets, determined in accordance with prescribed regulatory capital requirements effective for the

ComPany () . o 396,351 393,648
AIUSIMENTS (B) .+« o o o (1,440) (1,477)

Risk-weighted assets, reflecting the full implementation of the CECL methodology (€) . . . . . . . . .. o oo oo 394,911 392,177
Ratios
Tangible common equity to tangible assets @)/(C) . . . . . . o oo 6.6% 6.9%
Tangible common equity to risk-weighted assets (@)/(d) . . . . .« o 9.1 9.5
Common equity tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, reflecting the full implementation of the CECL methodology (b)/(e) . . . . . 9.5 9.3

Three Months Ended

March 31

2021 2020

Netinterest INCOME . . . . . . o $3,063  $3,223

Taxable-equivalent adjustment (4) . . . . . . 26 24

Net interest income, on a taxable-equivalent DasIS . . . . . . . e 3,089 3,247

Net interest income, on a taxable-equivalent basis (as calculated above) . . . . . . .. 3,089 3,247

NONINTErESt INCOME .« o o 2,381 2,625

Less: Securities gains (I0SSES), NEL . . . o o o 25 50

Total net revenue, excluding net securities gains (10sses) (f) .« . . o o 5,445 5,722

NONINtErest BXPENSE () .« + v v v e 3,379 3,316
Efficiency ratio (Q)/(f) . . . o o o o 62.1%  58.0%

(1) Includes goodwill related to certain investments in unconsolidated financial institutions per prescribed regulatory requirements.

(2)  Includes the estimated increase in the allowance for credit losses related to the adoption of the CECL methodology net of deferred taxes.

(8)  Includes the impact of the estimated increase in the allowance for credit losses related to the adoption of the CECL methodology.

(4)  Based on a federal income tax rate of 21 percent for those assets and liabilities whose income or expense is not included for federal income tax purposes.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company
comply with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States and conform to general practices within
the banking industry. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions. The
Company’s financial position and results of operations
can be affected by these estimates and assumptions,
which are integral to understanding the Company’s
financial statements. Critical accounting policies are
those policies management believes are the most
important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial
condition and results, and require management to make
estimates that are difficult, subjective or complex. Most
accounting policies are not considered by management to
be critical accounting policies. Management has
discussed the development and the selection of critical
accounting policies with the Company’s Audit
Committee. Those policies considered to be critical
accounting policies relate to the allowance for credit
losses, fair value estimates, MSRs, and income taxes.
These accounting policies are discussed in detail in
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis — Critical
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Accounting Policies” and the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company’s management, including its principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, the Company has
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of
its disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)). Based
upon this evaluation, the principal executive officer and
principal financial officer have concluded that, as of the
end of the period covered by this report, the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

During the most recently completed fiscal quarter,
there was no change made in the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.
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U.S. Bancorp
Consolidated Balance Sheet

March 31,  December 31,
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020
(Unaudited)
Assets
Cash and due from DANKS . . . o o oo e $ 43,501 $ 62,580
Available-for-sale investment securities ($596 and $402 pledged as collateral, respectively) (@) . . .. ... ... ... L 156,003 136,840
Loans held for sale (including $8,869 and $8,524 of mortgage loans carried at fair value, respectively) .. ........... ... 8,991 8,761
Loans
COMMEICIAl . . o 104,158 102,871
Commercial real 8State . . . . . . 38,432 39,311
Residential MOorgages . . . . o v o 73,624 76,155
Credit Card . . . o 20,872 22,346
Other retall . . . 57,341 57,024
Total I0aNS o 294,427 297,707
Lessallowance forloan IoSSES . . . . o . o o (6,343) (7,314)
Nt loaNS . . o 288,084 290,393
Premises and equipment . . . o 3,388 3,468
GOOAWII . 9,905 9,918
Otherintangible aSSEtS . . . o oo 3,462 2,864
Other assets (including $1,313 and $1,255 of trading securities at fair value pledged as collateral, respectively) @) .. .. .. .. 40,041 39,081
TOMEl ASSEIS. o o o $553,375 $553,905
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Deposits
NoniNterest-Deanng . . . . . . $126,754 $118,089
Interest-beanng (D) . . . . o o 307,007 311,681
Total AepOSItS . o o v e 433,761 429,770
Short-term DOMOWINGS .+« o o o 12,098 11,766
LoNg-term debt . . o 37,419 41,297
Other labilities . . . . 17,789 17,347
Total labilities . . o . e 501,067 500,180
Shareholders’ equity
Preferred StoCK . . o o 5,968 5,983
Common stock, par value $0.01 a share—authorized: 4,000,000,000 shares; issued: 3/31/21 and 12/31/20—
2,125,725, 742 SNaAr€S . . o o 21 21
Capital SUMDIUS . . o o 8,487 8,611
Retained €amings . . . . o o o 65,740 64,188
Less cost of common stock in treasury: 3/31/21—628,716,254 shares; 12/31/20—618,618,084 shares . . . . .. ... .. (26,443) (25,930)
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME (I0SS) . .+« v v v oo e (2,095) 322
Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders’ equity . . . . o o 51,678 53,095
Noncontrolling INtErESIS . . . . . oo 630 630
Total 6QUILY o o 52,308 53,725
Total liabilties @nd @QUIRY .« . . v $553,375 $553,905
(@) Includes only collateral pledged by the Company where counterparties have the right to sell or pledge the collateral.
(b)  Includes time deposits greater than $250,000 balances of $3.1 billion and $4.4 bilion at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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U.S. Bancorp
Consolidated Statement of Income

Three Months Ended

(Dollars and Shares in Millions, Except Per Share Data) March 31
(Unaudited) 2021 2020
Interest Income
LOBNS .« v $2,724  $3,311
Loans held for sale . . . . 67 44
INVESIMENT SECUMHIES .+ .« . o o 517 692
Other iNterest INCOME . .« o o oo 33 69
Total INterest INCOME . . . . o o 3,341 4116
Interest Expense
DEPOSIES o o 85 525
Short-term DOMOWINGS .« .« . o o o 16 71
Long-term et . . . 177 297
Total INterest eXPENSE . . o o o 278 893
Netinterest INCOME . . . o o o 3,063 3,223
Provision for Credit IoSSES . . . v oo (827) 993
Net interest income after provision for Credit I0SSES . . . . . .o 3,890 2,230
Noninterest Income
Creditand debit Card revenUE . . . . . . 336 304
Corporate payment ProdUCES TEVENUE . . . . . v oo o 126 145
Merchant proCesSINg SEIVICES . . . . v . o v o 318 337
Trust and investment management FEES . . . . . . . 444 427
Deposit ServiCe Charges . . . . o o oo 161 209
Treasury Management FEES . . . . o . o 147 143
Commercial ProdUCES TEVENUE . . . o o o o oo 280 246
Mortgage banking reVENUE . . . o . o o oo 299 395
INvestment prodUCTS TEES . . . . o . oo 55 49
Securities gains (I0SSES), NEL . v . o v o v 25 50
O 190 220
Total NoNINtErest INCOME . . . . . o o 2,381 2,625
Noninterest Expense
COMPENSALION & o 1,803 1,620
Employee benefits . . . o 384 362
Net occupancy and eqQUIDMENT . . . o . oo 263 276
Professional SEIVICES . . . . o o 98 99
Marketing and business development . . . . .. . 48 74
Technology and COMMUNICATIONS . . . v . o o o 359 289
Postage, printing and SUPPIIES . . . . o . oo 69 72
Other iNtangibIES . . . o o o 38 42
OB o 317 492
Total NoNINtErest EXPENSE . . . . o o 3,379 3,316
Income before INCOME taXES . . . . o o oo 2,892 1,439
Applicable INCOME TAXES . . . . . o o 607 260
Nt INCOME . . L 2,285 1,179
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontroling interests . . . . . . . 5) 8)
Net income attributable 10 U.S. BANCOID . . . v o oo $2,280  $1,171
Net income applicable to U.S. Bancorp common shareholders. . .. ... $2,175 $1,088
Eamings per COMMON SNAIE . . . v v v v v et e e et $ 1.45 $ 72
Diluted earnings per COMMON SNAE . . . . . . o o $ 1.45 $ 72
Average common shares oUtstanding . . . . . . o 1,602 1,618
Average diluted common shares outStanding . . . . . . o 1,603 1,619

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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U.S. Bancorp
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Three Months Ended

(Dollars in Millions) March 31
(Unaudited) 2021 2020
NETINCOME |+ o oo $2,285 $1,179
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Changes in unrealized gains and losses on investment securities available-for-sale . . .. .. .. ... ... .. o o (3,378) 2,787
Changes in unrealized gains and losses on derivative hedges . . . . . . o 99 (257)
Foreign currency translation . . . . .o 25 (13)
Reclassification to earnings of realized gains and I0SSES . . . . . o o o e 18 6)
Income taxes related to other comprenensive INCOME (I0SS) .« . .« . v v ot o 819 (635)
Total other comprehensive INCOME (I0SS) . . .« v« o o (2,417) 1,876
Comprenensive INCOME (I0SS) .+« . v v v v (182) 3,055
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to noncontroling interests . . . . .o . o 5) 8)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to U.S. Bancorp . . . . . $ (137) $3,047

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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U.S. Bancorp

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

(Dollars and Shares in Millions, Except Per
Share Data) (Unaudited)

U.S. Bancorp Shareholders

Balance December 31, 2019 . . . . ..
Change in accounting principle (@) . .. . ..
Netincome (loss) ... ............ ..
Other comprehensive income (loss) . . . . .
Preferred stock dividends (b) .. ... ... ..

Common stock dividends ($.42 per

share) ... ... .
Issuance of common and treasury stock . .
Purchase of treasury stock . .. ... .. ...

Distributions to noncontrolling interests

Stock option and restricted stock grants o
Balance March 31,2020 .. .. .. . ..

Balance December 31, 2020 . . . . ..
Netincome (loss) . ... ... ... .. ..
Other comprehensive income (loss) . . . . .
Preferred stock dividends (c) .. ... .. ...

Common stock dividends ($.42 per

share) ... ..
Issuance of preferred stock . . .. ... ...
Call of preferred stock . ... ........ ..
Issuance of common and treasury stock . .
Purchase of treasury stock . .. ... ... ..

Distributions to noncontrolling interests

Stock option and restricted stock grants . :
Balance March 31,2021 ... . .. . ..

Accumulated Total
Other U.S. Bancorp
Common Shares Preferred Common  Capital  Retained  Treasury Comprehensive Shareholders’ Noncontrolling Total
Qutstanding Stock Stock Surplus  Eamings Stock  Income (Loss) Equity Interests Equity
1,534 $5,984 $21 $8,475 $63,186 $(24,440) $(1,373)  $51,853 $630 $52,483
,099) (1,099) (1,099)
1,171 1,171 8 1,179
1,876 1,876 1,876
(78) (78) (78)
(636) (636) (636)
3 (108) M7 9 9
(31) (1,649) (1,649) (1,649)
— 8) 8)
85 85 85
1,606 $5,984 $21 $8,452 $62,544 $(25,972) $ 503 $51,632 $630 $52,162
1,607 $5,983 $21 $8,511 $64,188 $(25,930) $ 322 $53,095 $630 $53,725
,280 2,280 5 2285
(2,417) (2,417) (2,417)
(90) (90) (90)
(633) (633) (633)
730 730 730
(745) ) (750) (750)
3 (119) 137 18 18
(13) (650) (650) (650)
— ©) ©)
95 95 95
1,497 $5,968 $21 $8,487 $65,740 $(26,443) $(2,095) $51,678 $630 $52,308

(a)  Effective January 1, 2020, the Company adopted accounting guidance which changed impairment recognition of financial instruments to a model that is based on expected
losses rather than incurred losses. Upon adoption, the Company increased its allowance for credit losses and reduced retained earnings net of deferred taxes through a

cumulative-effect adjustment.

(b)  Reflects dividends declared per share on the Company’s Series A, Series B, Series F, Series H, Series J and Series K Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock of $884.722,
$221.18, $406.25, $321.88, $662.50 and $343.75, respectively.
(c)  Reflects dividends declared per share on the Company’s Series A, Series B, Series F, Series I, Series J, Series K, Series L and Series M Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred
Stock of $875.00, $218.75, $406.25, $232.953, $662.50, $343.75, $234.375, and $202.778 respectively.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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U.S. Bancorp
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Three Months Ended

(Dollars in Millions) %
(Unaudited) 2021 2020
Operating Activities
Net income attributable 10 U.S. BaNCOID . . . v o . oot e $ 2280 B 1,171
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Provision for credit IoSSES . . . . o o (827) 993
Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment. . . . . . . . 84 87
Amortization of INtangIbIES . . . o . o 38 42
(Gain) loss on sale of loans held forsale . . . . . . (213) (303)
(Gain) loss on sale of securities and other assets . . . . . o (66) (120)
Loans originated for sale, net of repayments . . . . o . o (20,928)  (10,882)
Proceeds from sales of loans held forsale . . . . . . o 20,397 12,032
OFNEr, NEt L 172 (666)
Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . 937 2,354
Investing Activities
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale investment securities . . . . . .. . 1,062 9,916
Proceeds from maturities of avallable-for-sale investment securities . . .. . .. .. . 12,550 5,649
Purchases of avallable-for-sale investment securties . . . . . . . (36,182)  (14,937)
Net decrease (increase) N loans oUtStaNdiNg . . . . o o 3,662 (22,272)
Proceeds from sales of [0aNS . . . . o o o 1,062 575
PUChases Of 08NS . . . . oo (1,600 (893)
Net (increase) decrease in securities purchased under agreementstoresell. . . .. . . (26) 788
Other, NBt . . 106 (1,085)
Net cash used ininvesting activities . . . . . . . . (19,466)  (22,259)
Financing Activities
Netincrease in depoSItS . . . . o 3,991 32,938
Net increase in short-term DOMOWINGS .+« . . o . o o 332 2,621
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt . . . . . .. 69 11,271
Principal payments or redemption of long-term debt . . . . . . (3,830) (156)
Proceeds from issuance of preferred StOCK . . . . . o 730 -
Proceeds from issuance of Common StOCK . . . . . o 17 9
Repurchase of preferred StOCK . . . oo (500) -
Repurchase of COmMmMON SIOCK . . . o o (646) (1,660)
Cash dividends paid on preferred SIOCK . . . . oo (76) (71)
Cash dividends paid on commON STOCK . . . . . o0 (637) 647)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities . . . . . . . . . . (550) 44,305
Change in cash and due from banks . . . . . oo (19,079) 24,400
Cash and due from banks at beginning of Period . . . . . . .o e 62,580 22,405
Cash and due from banks at end of period . . . . . . . . $43,501  $46,805

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the instructions to Form
10-Q and, therefore, do not include all information and notes necessary for a complete presentation of financial
position, results of operations and cash flow activity required in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States. In the opinion of management of U.S. Bancorp (the “Company”), all adjustments
(consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair statement of results for the interim periods have
been made. These financial statements and notes should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and notes included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020.
Certain amounts in prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

Accounting Changes

Reference Interest Rate Transition In March 2020, the FASB issued accounting guidance, providing temporary optional
expedients and exceptions to the guidance in United States generally accepted accounting principles on contract
modifications and hedge accounting, to ease the financial reporting burdens related to the expected market transition
from the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and other interbank offered rates to alternative reference rates.
Under the guidance, a company can elect not to apply certain modification accounting requirements to contracts
affected by reference rate transition, if certain criteria are met. A company that makes this election would not be
required to remeasure the contracts at the modification date or reassess a previous accounting determination. This
guidance also permits a company to elect various optional expedients that would allow it to continue applying hedge
accounting for hedging relationships affected by reference rate transition, if certain criteria are met. The guidance is
effective upon issuance and generally can be applied through December 31, 2022. The Company is in the process of
evaluating and applying, as applicable, the optional expedients and exceptions in accounting for eligible contract
modifications, eligible existing hedging relationships and new hedging relationships available through December 31,
2022. The adoption of this guidance has not had, and is expected to continue to not have, a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

\Nlei=¥} Investment Securities

The Company’s available-for-sale investment securities are carried at fair value with unrealized net gains or losses
reported within accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in shareholders’ equity. The Company had no
outstanding investment securities classified as held-to-maturity at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

The amortized cost, gross unrealized holding gains and losses, and fair value of available-for-sale investment securities
were as follows:

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Amortized  Unrealized — Unrealized Fair Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized

(Dollars in Millions) Cost Gains Losses Value Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

U.S. Treasury and agencies . . .. ............. $ 24,401 $ 288 $ (872 $24,317 $ 21,954 $ 462 $25 B 22,391
Mortgage-backed securities

Residentialagency . . ... .. ... .. o oL 116,629 1,230 (1,683) 116,176 98,031 1,980 (13) 99,968

Commercialagency . ... ... 6,254 53 (221) 6,086 5,251 170 (19) 5,406

Asset-backed securities . .. ... 197 5 - 202 200 5 - 205

Obligations of state and political subdivisions . . . . . . 8,687 546 (18) 9,215 8,166 695 - 8,861

Other ..o 7 - - 7 9 - - 9

Total available-for-sale . .. ........... .. $166,175 $2,122 $(2,294)  $156,0038 $133,611 $3,282 $(B3) $136,840

Investment securities with a fair value of $39.3 billion at March 31, 2021, and $11.0 billion at December 31, 2020,
were pledged to secure public, private and trust deposits, repurchase agreements and for other purposes required by
contractual obligation or law. Included in these amounts were securities where the Company and certain counterparties
have agreements granting the counterparties the right to sell or pledge the securities. Investment securities securing these
types of arrangements had a fair value of $596 million at March 31, 2021, and $402 million at December 31, 2020.
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The following table provides information about the amount of interest income from taxable and non-taxable
investment securities:

Three Months Ended

March 31
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020
TaXADIE . . o $455 $640
NON-taXable . o . 62 52
Total interest income from investment securties . . . . . . .. $517 $692

The following table provides information about the amount of gross gains and losses realized through the sales of
available-for-sale investment securities:

Three Months Ended

March 31
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020
Realized GaiNS . . o o o $25 $73
Realized 0SSES . . . o o - (23)
Netrealized gains . . . . $25 $50
Income tax on netrealized QaINS . . . . . . $6 $13

The Company conducts a regular assessment of its available-for-sale investment securities with unrealized losses to
determine whether all or some portion of a security’s unrealized loss is related to credit and an allowance for credit
losses is necessary. If the Company intends to sell or it is more likely than not the Company will be required to sell an
investment security, the amortized cost of the security is written down to fair value. When evaluating credit losses, the
Company considers various factors such as the nature of the investment security, the credit ratings or financial
condition of the issuer, the extent of the unrealized loss, expected cash flows of underlying collateral, the existence of
any government or agency guarantees, and market conditions. The Company measures the allowance for credit losses
using market information where available and discounting the cash flows at the original effective rate of the investment
security. The allowance for credit losses is adjusted each period through earnings and can be subsequently recovered.
The allowance for credit losses on the Company’s available-for-sale investment securities was immaterial at March 31,
2021 and December 31, 2020.

At March 31, 2021, certain investment securities had a fair value below amortized cost. The following table shows the
gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Company’s available-for-sale investment securities with unrealized losses,
aggregated by investment category and length of time the individual investment securities have been in continuous
unrealized loss positions, at March 31, 2021:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total

Fair  Unrealized Fair  Unrealized Fair  Unrealized

(Dollars in Millions) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Treasury and agenCIeS . . .« v v v v oo e $ 9519 $§ 372 $ - $- $9619 $ (372
Residential agency mortgage-backed securites ... ... ... oo 59,916 (1,678) 150 5) 60,066 (1,683)
Commercial agency mortgage-backed securities. . ... ... ... oL 4,130 (221) 6 - 4,136 (221)
Asset-backed securities . . . . .. - 2 - 2 -
Obligations of state and political subdivisions . . . .. ... ... ... .. ... ... .. 1,037 (18) - - 1,037 (18)
Total INnvestment SECUMteS . . . . o . o v oo $74,602  $(2,289) $158 $(5) $74,760  $(2,294)

These unrealized losses primarily relate to changes in interest rates and market spreads subsequent to purchase of
the investment securities. U.S. Treasury and agencies securities and agency mortgage-backed securities are issued,
guaranteed or otherwise supported by the United States government. The Company’s obligations of state and political
subdivisions are generally high grade. Accordingly, the Company does not consider these unrealized losses to be credit-
related and an allowance for credit losses is not necessary. In general, the issuers of the investment securities are
contractually prohibited from prepayment at less than par, and the Company did not pay significant purchase
premiums for these investment securities. At March 31, 2021, the Company had no plans to sell investment securities
with unrealized losses, and believes it is more likely than not it would not be required to sell such investment securities
before recovery of their amortized cost.

During the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company did not purchase any available-for-sale
investment securities that had more-than-insignificant credit deterioration.
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The following table provides information about the amortized cost, fair value and yield by maturity date of the

available-for-sale investment securities outstanding at March 31, 2021:

Weighted-
Average  Weighted-
Amortized Maturity in Average
(Dollars in Millions) Cost Fair Value Years Yield (e)
U.S. Treasury and Agencies
Maturing N ONE YEAr OF I8SS .+ . v $ 4264 $ 4,292 4 1.54%
Maturing after one year through five years . . . .. ... o 11,634 11,694 2.6 1156
Maturing after five years through tenyears . . . . . . .. o 7,364 7,150 8.1 1.33
Maturing after teN Years . . . . . . 1,239 1,181 13.0 1.78
TOtal $ 24,401 $ 24,317 4.4 1.31%
Mortgage-Backed Securities (a)
Maturing i ONE YEar O I8SS . . . . . . o oo $ 110 $ 112 6 2.07%
Maturing after one year through five years . . . .. . .. o 47,936 49,021 3.6 1.40
Maturing after five years through tenyears . . . . . . .. 74,785 73,077 7.8 1.46
Maturing after ten years . . . . . . 52 52 11.9 1.13
oAl $122,883  $122,262 6.1 1.44%
Asset-Backed Securities (a)
Maturing IN ONE YEAr OF I8SS .+« . v o $ - 9 - 9 2.69%
Maturing after one year through five years . . . .. . .. 3 4 2.9 1.74
Maturing after five years through tenyears . . . . . . .. o 194 197 6.0 1.08
Maturing after teN years . . . . . . - 1 13.6 2.4
Total . $ 197§ 202 5.9 1.09%
Obligations of State and Political Subdivisions (b) (c)
Maturing iN ONE YEar OF I8SS . . . . . . o o o $ 178 % 182 e 4.21%
Maturing after one year through five years . . . .. . .. o 1,451 1,639 3.5 4.39
Maturing after five years through tenyears . . . . . . .. 0 6,624 7,066 6.9 3.86
Maturing after ten years . . . . . . 434 428 17.4 2.57
oAl $ 8687 $ 9215 6.7 3.89%
Other
Maturing IN ONE YEAr OF I8SS .+ . o $ 78 7 A 2.07%
Maturing after one year through five years . . . . . ... e - - - -
Maturing after five years through tenyears . . . . . . .. o - - - -
Maturing after teN years . . . . . . - - - -
TOtal . $ 7% 7 A 2.07%
Total investment securties (d) . . . . . o o $156,175  $156,008 59 1.55%

(@) Information related to asset and mortgage-backed securities included above is presented based upon weighted-average maturities that take into account anticipated future

prepayments.

(b)  Information related to obligations of state and political subdivisions is presented based upon yield to first optional call date if the security is purchased at a premium, and yield to

maturity if the security is purchased at par or a discount.

(c)  Maturity calculations for obligations of state and political subdivisions are based on the first optional call date for securities with a fair value above par and the contractual maturity

date for securities with a fair value equal to or below par.

(d)  The weighted-average maturity of total available-for-sale investment securities was 3.4 years at December 31, 2020, with a corresponding weighted-average yield of

1.61 percent.

(e)  Weighted-average yields for obligations of state and political subdivisions are presented on a fully-taxable equivalent basis based on a federal income tax rate of 21 percent.

Yields on investment securities are computed based on amortized cost balances.
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IIEEX] Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses

The composition of the loan portfolio, disaggregated by class and underlying specific portfolio type, was as follows:

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Percent Percent
(Dollars in Millions) Amount  of Total Amount  of Total
Commercial
COMMEICIAL. . o v o e e $ 98,847 33.6% $ 97,315 32.7%
Lease finanCing . . . o . oo 5,311 1.8 5,566 1.9
Total commercial . . . . . 104,158 35.4 102,871 34.6
Commercial Real Estate
Commercial MOMGAgES .« .« .« . v v e 27,649 9.4 28,472 9.6
Construction and development . . . . .. 10,783 3.6 10,839 3.6
Total commercial real estate . . . . . . 38,432 13.0 39,311 13.2
Residential Mortgages
Residential Morgages . . . . o v o 64,238 21.8 66,525 22.4
Home equity loans, firstiens . . . . . . . 9,386 3.2 9,630 3.2
Total residential mortgages . . . . . .. 73,624 25.0 76,155 25.6
Credit Card . . . . . . . . e 20,872 7.1 22,346 7.5
Other Retail
Retall leasing . . . o oo 7,880 2.7 8,150 2.7
Home equity and second mortgages . . . . . . 11,679 4.0 12,472 4.2
Revolving Credit . . . . o o 2,636 9 2,688 .9
INStallment . . 14,662 4.9 13,823 4.6
AUOMODIIE . o 20,527 7.0 19,722 6.6
StUdENt 157 - 169 A
Totalotherretall. . . . o 57,341 19.5 57,024 19.1
Total loans . o $294,427  100.0% $297,707  100.0%

The Company had loans of $94.4 billion at March 31, 2021, and $96.1 billion at December 31, 2020, pledged at
the Federal Home Loan Bank, and loans of $65.4 billion at March 31, 2021, and $67.8 billion at December 31, 2020,
pledged at the Federal Reserve Bank.

Originated loans are reported at the principal amount outstanding, net of unearned interest and deferred fees and
costs, and any partial charge-offs recorded. Net unearned interest and deferred fees and costs amounted to $849 million
at March 31, 2021 and $763 million at December 31, 2020. All purchased loans are recorded at fair value at the date
of purchase. Beginning January 1, 2020, the Company evaluates purchased loans for more-than-insignificant
deterioration at the date of purchase in accordance with applicable authoritative accounting guidance. Purchased loans
that have experienced more-than-insignificant deterioration from origination are considered purchased credit
deteriorated loans. All other purchased loans are considered non-purchased credit deteriorated loans.

Allowance for Credit Losses Beginning January 1, 2020, the allowance for credit losses is established for current
expected credit losses on the Company’s loan and lease portfolio, including unfunded credit commitments. The
allowance considers expected losses for the remaining lives of the applicable assets, inclusive of expected recoveries.
The allowance for credit losses is increased through provisions charged to earnings and reduced by net charge-offs.
Management evaluates the appropriateness of the allowance for credit losses on a quarterly basis. Multiple economic
scenarios are considered over a three-year reasonable and supportable forecast period, which includes increasing
consideration of historical loss experience over years two and three. These economic scenarios are constructed with
interrelated projections of multiple economic variables, and loss estimates are produced that consider the historical
correlation of those economic variables with credit losses. After the forecast period, the Company fully reverts to long-
term historical loss experience, adjusted for prepayments and characteristics of the current loan and lease portfolio, to
estimate losses over the remaining life of the portfolio. The economic scenarios are updated at least quarterly and are
designed to provide a range of reasonable estimates, both better and worse than current expectations. Scenarios are
weighted based on the Company’s expectation of economic conditions for the foreseeable future and reflect significant
judgment and consider uncertainties that exist. Final loss estimates also consider factors affecting credit losses not
reflected in the scenarios, due to the unique aspects of current conditions and expectations. These factors may include,
but are not limited to, loan servicing practices, regulatory guidance, and/or fiscal and monetary policy actions.

The allowance recorded for credit losses utilizes forward-looking expected loss models to consider a variety of
factors affecting lifetime credit losses. These factors include, but are not limited to, macroeconomic variables such as
unemployment rate, real estate prices, gross domestic product levels, corporate bonds spreads and long-term interest
rate forecasts, as well as loan and borrower characteristics, such as internal risk ratings on commercial loans and
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consumer credit scores, delinquency status, collateral type and available valuation information, consideration of
end-of-term losses on lease residuals, and the remaining term of the loan, adjusted for expected prepayments. For each
loan portfolio, model estimates are adjusted as necessary to consider any relevant changes in portfolio composition,
lending policies, underwriting standards, risk management practices, economic conditions or other factors that would
affect the accuracy of the model. Expected credit loss estimates also include consideration of expected cash recoveries
on loans previously charged-off or expected recoveries on collateral dependent loans where recovery is expected
through sale of the collateral. Where loans do not exhibit similar risk characteristics, an individual analysis is
performed to consider expected credit losses. The allowance recorded for individually evaluated loans greater than

$5 million in the commercial lending segment is based on an analysis utilizing expected cash flows discounted using the
original effective interest rate, the observable market price of the loan, or the fair value of the collateral, less selling
costs, for collateral-dependent loans as appropriate.

The allowance recorded for Troubled Debt Restructuring (“TDR”) loans in the consumer lending segment is
determined on a homogenous pool basis utilizing expected cash flows discounted using the original effective interest
rate of the pool. TDRs generally do not include loan modifications granted to customers resulting directly from the
economic effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, who were otherwise in current payment status. The expected cash flows
on TDR loans consider subsequent payment defaults since modification, the borrower’s ability to pay under the
restructured terms, and the timing and amount of payments. The allowance for collateral-dependent loans in the
consumer lending segment is determined based on the fair value of the collateral less costs to sell. With respect to the
commercial lending segment, TDRs may be collectively evaluated for impairment where observed performance history,
including defaults, is a primary driver of the loss allocation. For commercial TDRs individually evaluated for
impairment, attributes of the borrower are the primary factors in determining the allowance for credit losses. However,
historical loss experience is also incorporated into the allowance methodology applied to this category of loans.

Beginning January 1, 2020, when a loan portfolio is purchased, the acquired loans are divided into those
considered purchased with more than insignificant credit deterioration (“PCD”) and those not considered purchased
with more than insignificant credit deterioration. An allowance is established for each population and considers
product mix, risk characteristics of the portfolio, bankruptcy experience, delinquency status and refreshed LTV ratios
when possible. The allowance established for purchased loans not considered PCD is recognized through provision
expense upon acquisition, whereas the allowance established for loans considered PCD at acquisition is offset by an
increase in the basis of the acquired loans. Any subsequent increases and decreases in the allowance related to
purchased loans, regardless of PCD status, are recognized through provision expense, with charge-offs charged to the
allowance. The Company did not have a material amount of PCD loans included in its loan portfolio at March 31,
2021.

The Company’s methodology for determining the appropriate allowance for credit losses also considers the
imprecision inherent in the methodologies used and allocated to the various loan portfolios. As a result, amounts
determined under the methodologies described above, are adjusted by management to consider the potential impact of
other qualitative factors not captured in the quantitative model adjustments which include, but are not limited to the
following: model imprecision, imprecision in economic scenario assumptions, and emerging risks related to either
changes in the environment that are affecting specific portfolios, or changes in portfolio concentrations over time that
may affect model performance. The consideration of these items results in adjustments to allowance amounts included
in the Company’s allowance for credit losses for each loan portfolio.

The Company also assesses the credit risk associated with off-balance sheet loan commitments, letters of credit,
investment securities and derivatives. Credit risk associated with derivatives is reflected in the fair values recorded for
those positions. The liability for off-balance sheet credit exposure related to loan commitments and other credit
guarantees is included in other liabilities. Because business processes and credit risks associated with unfunded credit
commitments are essentially the same as for loans, the Company utilizes similar processes to estimate its liability for
unfunded credit commitments.

Prior to January 1, 2020, the allowance for credit losses was established based on an incurred loss model. The
allowance recorded for loans in the commercial lending segment was based on the migration analysis of commercial
loans and actual loss experience. The allowance recorded for loans in the consumer lending segment was determined on
a homogenous pool basis and primarily included consideration of delinquency status and historical losses. In addition
to the amounts determined under the methodologies described above, management also considered the potential impact
of qualitative factors.
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Activity in the allowance for credit losses by portfolio class was as follows:

Commercial  Residential Credit Other Total
(Dollars in Millions) Commercial Real Estate  Mortgages Card Retall Loans
Balance at December 31, 2020 $2,423 $1,644 $573  $2,355  $1,115  $8,010
Add
Provision for credit Iosses . . . . . .. (435) (19) (39) (259) (75) 827)
Deduct
Loans charged-off . . . ... 86 10 5 190 83 374
Less recoveries of loans charged-off . . . .. ... ... ... o (30) (17) (10) (46) (48) (151)
Net loan charge-offs (recoveries) . .. ... ... . oo 56 (7) ) 144 35 223
Balance at March 31,2021 . . . . ... ... .. ... . ... ... ... $1,932 $1,632 $539  $1,952  $1,005 $6,960
Balance at December 31,2019 . . . . .. ... ... ... . ... .. . ... . ..... .. $1,484 $ 799 $433 P$1,128 $ 647  $4,491
Add
Change in accounting principle (&) . ... . .. ... 378 (122) (30) 872 401 1,499
Provision for credit IoSSes . . . . . .. 452 162 10 246 123 993
Deduct
Loans charged-off . . . . .. 88 - 8 274 121 491
Less recoveries of loans charged-off . . ... ... ... . o (14) @) (7) (40) (35) (98)
Net loan charge-offs (recoveries) . . . ... ... ... o 74 2) 1 234 86 393
Balance at March 31,2020 . . . . ... ... .. ... .. ... ... $2,240 $ 841 $412  $2,012 $1,085 $6,590

(a)  Effective January 1, 2020, the Company adopted accounting guidance which changed impairment recognition of financial instruments to a model that is based on expected
losses rather than incurred losses.
The decrease in the allowance for credit losses from December 31, 2020 to March 31, 2021 reflected factors
affecting economic conditions during the first quarter of 2021, including the enactment of additional benefits from
government stimulus programs, vaccine availability in the United States and reduced levels of new COVID-19 cases.

Credit Quality The credit quality of the Company’s loan portfolios is assessed as a function of net credit losses, levels of
nonperforming assets and delinquencies, and credit quality ratings as defined by the Company.

For all loan portfolio classes, loans are considered past due based on the number of days delinquent except for
monthly amortizing loans which are classified delinquent based upon the number of contractually required payments
not made (for example, two missed payments is considered 30 days delinquent). When a loan is placed on nonaccrual
status, unpaid accrued interest is reversed, reducing interest income in the current period.

Commercial lending segment loans are generally placed on nonaccrual status when the collection of principal and
interest has become 90 days past due or is otherwise considered doubtful. Commercial lending segment loans are
generally fully or partially charged down to the fair value of the collateral securing the loan, less costs to sell, when the
loan is placed on nonaccrual.

Consumer lending segment loans are generally charged-off at a specific number of days or payments past due.
Residential mortgages and other retail loans secured by 1-4 family properties are generally charged down to the fair
value of the collateral securing the loan, less costs to sell, at 180 days past due. Residential mortgage loans and lines in
a first lien position are placed on nonaccrual status in instances where a partial charge-off occurs unless the loan is well
secured and in the process of collection. Residential mortgage loans and lines in a junior lien position secured by 1-4
family properties are placed on nonaccrual status at 120 days past due or when they are behind a first lien that has
become 180 days or greater past due or placed on nonaccrual status. Any secured consumer lending segment loan
whose borrower has had debt discharged through bankruptcy, for which the loan amount exceeds the fair value of the
collateral, is charged down to the fair value of the related collateral and the remaining balance is placed on nonaccrual
status. Credit card loans continue to accrue interest until the account is charged-off. Credit cards are charged-off at 180
days past due. Other retail loans not secured by 1-4 family properties are charged-off at 120 days past due; and
revolving consumer lines are charged-off at 180 days past due. Similar to credit cards, other retail loans are generally
not placed on nonaccrual status because of the relative short period of time to charge-off. Certain retail customers
having financial difficulties may have the terms of their credit card and other loan agreements modified to require only
principal payments and, as such, are reported as nonaccrual.

For all loan classes, interest payments received on nonaccrual loans are generally recorded as a reduction to a
loan’s carrying amount while a loan is on nonaccrual and are recognized as interest income upon payoff of the loan.
However, interest income may be recognized for interest payments if the remaining carrying amount of the loan is
believed to be collectible. In certain circumstances, loans in any class may be restored to accrual status, such as when a
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loan has demonstrated sustained repayment performance or no amounts are past due and prospects for future payment
are no longer in doubt; or when the loan becomes well secured and is in the process of collection. Loans where there
has been a partial charge-off may be returned to accrual status if all principal and interest (including amounts
previously charged-off) is expected to be collected and the loan is current.

The following table provides a summary of loans by portfolio class, including the delinquency status of those that
continue to accrue interest, and those that are nonperforming:

Accruing
30-89 Days 90 Days or

(Dollars in Millions) Current Past Due  More Past Due  Nonperforming (o) Total
March 31, 2021
Commercial . .. $103,557 $ 193 $ 61 $ 347 $104,158
Commercialreal estate . . . . . . . 37,953 119 4 356 38,432
Residential mortgages (@) . . .« . o 73,024 204 143 253 73,624
Credit card . . . o 20,486 188 198 - 20,872
Otherretall . ..o 56,878 221 70 172 57,341

Totalloans . o $291,898 $ 925 $476 $1,128  $294,427
December 31, 2020
Commercial . . . $102,127 $ 314 $ 55 $ 375 $102,871
Commercialreal estate . . . . . . . 38,676 183 2 450 39,311
Residential mortgages (@) .« .« . v 75,629 244 137 245 76,155
Credit card . . . o 21,918 231 197 - 22,346
Otherretall ... 56,466 318 86 154 57,024

Totalloans . o $294,716 $1,290 $a77 $1,224  $297,707

(@) At March 31, 2021, $1.5 billion of loans 30-89 days past due and $1.7 billion of loans 90 days or more past due purchased from Government National Mortgage Association
("GNMA") mortgage pools whose repayments are insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs, were
classified as current, compared with $1.4 bilion and $1.8 billion at December 31, 2020, respectively.

(b)  Substantially all nonperforming loans at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, had an associated allowance for credit losses. The Company recognized interest income on
nonperforming loans of $3 million and $5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

At March 31, 2021, the amount of foreclosed residential real estate held by the Company, and included in OREO,
was $18 million, compared with $23 million at December 31, 2020. These amounts excluded $29 million and
$33 million at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively, of foreclosed residential real estate related to
mortgage loans whose payments are primarily insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the
United States Department of Veterans Affairs. In addition, the amount of residential mortgage loans secured by
residential real estate in the process of foreclosure at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, was $936 million and
$1.0 billion, respectively, of which $756 million and $812 million, respectively, related to loans purchased from
Government National Mortgage Association (“GNMA”) mortgage pools whose repayments are insured by the Federal
Housing Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs.

The Company classifies its loan portfolio classes using internal credit quality ratings on a quarterly basis. These
ratings include pass, special mention and classified, and are an important part of the Company’s overall credit risk
management process and evaluation of the allowance for credit losses. Loans with a pass rating represent those loans
not classified on the Company’s rating scale for problem credits, as minimal credit risk has been identified. Special
mention loans are those loans that have a potential weakness deserving management’s close attention. Classified loans
are those loans where a well-defined weakness has been identified that may put full collection of contractual cash flows
at risk. It is possible that others, given the same information, may reach different reasonable conclusions regarding the
credit quality rating classification of specific loans.
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The following table provides a summary of loans by portfolio class and the Company’s internal credit quality rating:

March 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Criticized Criticized
Special Total Special Total
(Dollars in Millions) Pass Mention Classified (a)  Criticized Total Pass Mention Classified ()  Criticized Total
Commercial
Originated in 2021 .. . . . .. $ 12,604 $ 313 $ 218 $ 531 $ 13,135 3 -3 - $ -8 - 8 -
Originated in 2020 . . . . . .. 28,890 1,003 1,302 2,305 31,195 34,557 1,335 1,753 3,088 37,645
Originated in 2019 . . . .. .. 15,710 351 223 574 16,284 17,867 269 349 618 18,485
Originated in 2018 . . . . . .. 10,909 372 1571 523 11,432 12,349 351 176 527 12,876
Originated in 2017 .. . .. .. 4,658 81 181 262 4,920 5,257 17 270 387 5,644
Originated prior to 2017 . . . 4,133 168 73 241 4,374 4,954 128 115 243 5,197
Revoving . .. .......... 22,377 206 235 441 22,818 22,445 299 280 579 23,024
Total commercial . . . .. 99,281 2,494 2,383 4,877 104,158 97,429 2,499 2,943 5,442 102,871
Commercial real estate
Originated in 2021 ... .. .. 2,368 39 408 447 2,815 - - - - -
Originated in 2020 . . . .. .. 8,889 336 901 1,237 10,126 9,446 461 1,137 1,598 11,044
Originated in 2019 . . . .. .. 8,788 450 947 1,397 10,185 9,614 454 1,005 1,459 10,973
Originated in 2018 . . . . . .. 5,296 373 499 872 6,168 6,053 411 639 1,080 7,103
Originated in 2017 .. . .. .. 2,375 141 350 491 2,866 2,650 198 340 538 3,188
Originated prior to 2017 . . . . 4,272 1561 161 312 4,684 4,762 240 309 549 5,311
Revoving . .. .......... 1,457 5 226 231 1,688 1,445 9 238 247 1,692
Total commercial real
estate .. ...... .. 33,445 1,495 3,492 4,987 38,432 33,870 1,773 3,668 5,441 39,311
Residential mortgages (b)
Originated in 2021 . . . .. .. 4,208 - - 4,208 - - - - -
Originated in 2020 . . . . . .. 22,053 - 5 5 22,058 23,262 1 3 4 23,266
Originated in 2019 . . . .. .. 12,084 1 23 24 12,108 13,969 1 17 18 13,987
Originated in 2018 . . . . . .. 4,989 1 25 26 5,015 5,670 1 22 23 5,693
Originated in 2017 . .. .. .. 6,091 1 22 23 6,114 6,918 1 24 25 6,943
Originated prior to 2017 . . . . 23,782 3 335 338 24,120 25,921 2 342 344 26,265
Revoving . .. .......... 1 - - - 1 1 - - - 1
Total residential
mortgages . . . . ... 73,208 6 410 416 73,624 75,741 6 408 414 76,155
Creditcard (C) .. . v oo 20,674 198 198 20,872 22,149 - 197 197 22,346
Other retall
Originated in 2021 .. . . . .. 5,690 - 1 1 5,691 - - - - -
Originated in 2020 . . . . . .. 15,954 6 6 15,960 17,589 - 7 7 17,596
Originated in 2019 . . . . . .. 10,351 - 16 16 10,367 11,605 - 23 23 11,628
Originated in 2018 . . . .. .. 5,822 20 20 5,842 6,814 - 27 27 6,841
Originated in 2017 .. . . . .. 3,106 - 14 14 3,120 3,879 - 22 22 3,901
Originated prior to 2017 . . . . 3,134 18 18 3,162 3,731 - 29 29 3,760
Revoving . .. .......... 12,536 - 135 135 12,671 12,647 - 110 110 12,757
Revolving converted to
term. ... 495 - 43 43 538 503 - 38 38 541
Total other retall . . .. .. 57,088 - 253 253 57,341 56,768 - 256 256 57,024
Totalloans. . ............. $283,696 $3,995 $6,736  $10,731 $294,427 $285,957 $4,278 $7,472 $11,7560 $297,707

Total outstanding commitments . . .

$629,280 $8,140

$9,239 $17,379 $646,659

$627,606 $8,772

$9,374 $18,146 $645,752

Note: Year of origination is based on the origination date of a loan or the date when the maturity date, pricing or commitment amount is amended.

(a)  Classified rating on consumer loans primarily based on delinquency status.

(b) At March 31, 2021, $1.7 billion of GNMA loans 90 days or more past due and $1.3 billion of restructured GNMA loans whose repayments are insured by the Federal Housing
Administration or guaranteed by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs were classified with a pass rating, compared with $1.8 billion and $1.4 bilion at December 31,

2020, respectively.

(c)  All credit card loans are considered revolving loans.

Troubled Debt Restructurings In certain circumstances, the Company may modify the terms of a loan to maximize the

collection of amounts due when a borrower is experiencing financial difficulties or is expected to experience difficulties

in the near-term. Concessionary modifications are classified as TDRs unless the modification results in only an

insignificant delay in payments to be received. The Company recognizes interest on TDRs if the borrower complies

with the revised terms and conditions as agreed upon with the Company and has demonstrated repayment performance

at a level commensurate with the modified terms over several payment cycles, which is generally six months or greater.

To the extent a previous restructuring was insignificant, the Company considers the cumulative effect of past

restructurings related to the receivable when determining whether a current restructuring is a TDR.
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The following table provides a summary of loans modified as TDRs for the periods presented by portfolio class:

2021 2020

Pre-Modification  Post-Modification Pre-Modification  Post-Modification

Three Months Ended March 31 Number Outstanding Outstanding Number Outstanding Outstanding

(Dollars in Millions) of Loans Loan Balance Loan Balance of Loans Loan Balance Loan Balance

Commercial. . ... 704 $ 75 $ 60 999 $ 99 $101

Commercialrealestate . . ... ... ... . 56 86 71 27 21 21

Residential mortgages . . . . .. ..o 336 104 104 90 10 10

Creditcard ... .. 5,786 33 34 8,415 46 a7

Otherretall ... ... . 1,325 37 32 655 15 14
Total loans, excluding loans purchased from GNMA

mortgage pools . . . 8,207 335 301 10,186 191 193

Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools . . . . . . ... .. 559 87 89 1,904 266 260

Totalloans . . . ... 8,766 $422 $390 12,090 $457 $ 453

Residential mortgages, home equity and second mortgages, and loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools in
the table above include trial period arrangements offered to customers during the periods presented. The post-
modification balances for these loans reflect the current outstanding balance until a permanent modification is made. In
addition, the post-modification balances typically include capitalization of unpaid accrued interest and/or fees under the
various modification programs. At March 31, 2021, 89 residential mortgages, 33 home equity and second mortgage
loans and 304 loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools with outstanding balances of $28 million, $2 million and
$52 million, respectively, were in a trial period and have estimated post-modification balances of $28 million,
$2 million and $53 million, respectively, assuming permanent modification occurs at the end of the trial period.

The Company has implemented certain restructuring programs that may result in TDRs. However, many of the
Company’s TDRs are also determined on a case-by-case basis in connection with ongoing loan collection processes.

For the commercial lending segment, modifications generally result in the Company working with borrowers on a
case-by-case basis. Commercial and commercial real estate modifications generally include extensions of the maturity
date and may be accompanied by an increase or decrease to the interest rate, which may not be deemed a market
interest rate. In addition, the Company may work with the borrower in identifying other changes that mitigate loss to
the Company, which may include additional collateral or guarantees to support the loan. To a lesser extent, the
Company may waive contractual principal. The Company classifies all of the above concessions as TDRs to the extent
the Company determines that the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty.

Modifications for the consumer lending segment are generally part of programs the Company has initiated. The
Company modifies residential mortgage loans under Federal Housing Administration, United States Department of
Veterans Affairs, or its own internal programs. Under these programs, the Company offers qualifying homeowners the
opportunity to permanently modify their loan and achieve more affordable monthly payments by providing loan
concessions. These concessions may include adjustments to interest rates, conversion of adjustable rates to fixed rates,
extension of maturity dates or deferrals of payments, capitalization of accrued interest and/or outstanding advances, or
in limited situations, partial forgiveness of loan principal. In most instances, participation in residential mortgage loan
restructuring programs requires the customer to complete a short-term trial period. A permanent loan modification is
contingent on the customer successfully completing the trial period arrangement, and the loan documents are not
modified until that time. The Company reports loans in a trial period arrangement as TDRs and continues to report
them as TDRs after the trial period.

Credit card and other retail loan TDRs are generally part of distinct restructuring programs providing customers
experiencing financial difficulty with modifications whereby balances may be amortized up to 60 months, and generally
include waiver of fees and reduced interest rates.

In addition, the Company considers secured loans to consumer borrowers that have debt discharged through
bankruptcy where the borrower has not reaffirmed the debt to be TDRs.

Loan modifications or concessions granted to borrowers resulting directly from the effects of the COVID-19
pandemic, who were otherwise in current payment status, are generally not considered to be TDRs. As of March 31,
2021, approximately $7.3 billion of loan modifications included on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet related
to borrowers impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, consisting primarily of payment deferrals.
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The following table provides a summary of TDR loans that defaulted (fully or partially charged-off or became 90 days
or more past due) for the periods presented, that were modified as TDRs within 12 months previous to default:

2021 2020

Three Months Ended March 31 Number Amount Number Amount
(Dollars in Millions) of Loans  Defaulted of Loans  Defaulted
COMMEICIAl . v o 285 $16 287 $20
Commercial real estate . . . . . . 7 5 16 10
Residential Morgages . . . . o o 15 2 13 1
Credit card . . .o e 1,764 9 2,070 10
Otherretall . . .o 280 5 108 1

Total loans, excluding loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools . . . .. ... oo oo 2,351 37 2,494 42
Loans purchased from GNMA Mortgage POOIS . . . . v o v oo e 30 4 304 41

Total loans . . . o o 2,381 $41 2,798 $83

In addition to the defaults in the table above, the Company had a total of 19 residential mortgage loans, home
equity and second mortgage loans and loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools for the three months ended
March 31, 2021, where borrowers did not successfully complete the trial period arrangement and, therefore, are no
longer eligible for a permanent modification under the applicable modification program. These loans had aggregate
outstanding balances of $4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021.

As of March 31, 2021, the Company had $134 million of commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers
whose terms of their outstanding owed balances have been modified in TDRs.

DX Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Variable Interest Entities

The Company transfers financial assets in the normal course of business. The majority of the Company’s financial asset
transfers are residential mortgage loan sales primarily to government-sponsored enterprises (“GSEs”), transfers of
tax-advantaged investments, commercial loan sales through participation agreements, and other individual or portfolio
loan and securities sales. In accordance with the accounting guidance for asset transfers, the Company considers any
ongoing involvement with transferred assets in determining whether the assets can be derecognized from the balance
sheet. Guarantees provided to certain third parties in connection with the transfer of assets are further discussed in
Note 15.

For loans sold under participation agreements, the Company also considers whether the terms of the loan
participation agreement meet the accounting definition of a participating interest. With the exception of servicing and
certain performance-based guarantees, the Company’s continuing involvement with financial assets sold is minimal and
generally limited to market customary representation and warranty clauses. Any gain or loss on sale depends on the
previous carrying amount of the transferred financial assets, the consideration received, and any liabilities incurred in
exchange for the transferred assets. Upon transfer, any servicing assets and other interests that continue to be held by
the Company are initially recognized at fair value. For further information on mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”),
refer to Note 6. On a limited basis, the Company may acquire and package high-grade corporate bonds for select
corporate customers, in which the Company generally has no continuing involvement with these transactions.
Additionally, the Company is an authorized GNMA issuer and issues GNMA securities on a regular basis. The
Company has no other asset securitizations or similar asset-backed financing arrangements that are off-balance sheet.

The Company also provides financial support primarily through the use of waivers of trust and investment
management fees associated with various unconsolidated registered money market funds it manages. The Company
provided $47 million and $8 million of support to the funds during the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

The Company is involved in various entities that are considered to be variable interest entities (“VIEs”). The
Company’s investments in VIEs are primarily related to investments promoting affordable housing, community
development and renewable energy sources. Some of these tax-advantaged investments support the Company’s
regulatory compliance with the Community Reinvestment Act. The Company’s investments in these entities generate a
return primarily through the realization of federal and state income tax credits, and other tax benefits, such as tax
deductions from operating losses of the investments, over specified time periods. These tax credits are recognized as a
reduction of tax expense or, for investments qualifying as investment tax credits, as a reduction to the related
investment asset. The Company recognized federal and state income tax credits related to its affordable housing and
other tax-advantaged investments in tax expense of $133 million and $150 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The Company also recognized $37 million and $99 million of investment tax
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credits for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The Company recognized $126 million and
$142 million of expenses related to all of these investments for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, of which $92 million and $101 million, respectively, were included in tax expense and the remaining
amounts were included in noninterest expense.

The Company is not required to consolidate VIEs in which it has concluded it does not have a controlling financial
interest, and thus is not the primary beneficiary. In such cases, the Company does not have both the power to direct the
entities’ most significant activities and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could
potentially be significant to the VIEs.

The Company’s investments in these unconsolidated VIEs are carried in other assets on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet. The Company’s unfunded capital and other commitments related to these unconsolidated VIEs are generally
carried in other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from these
unconsolidated VIEs include the investment recorded on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet, net of unfunded
capital commitments, and previously recorded tax credits which remain subject to recapture by taxing authorities based
on compliance features required to be met at the project level. While the Company believes potential losses from these
investments are remote, the maximum exposure was determined by assuming a scenario where the community-based
business and housing projects completely fail and do not meet certain government compliance requirements resulting in
recapture of the related tax credits.

The following table provides a summary of investments in community development and tax-advantaged VIEs that
the Company has not consolidated:

March 31, December 31,

(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020
INVESEMENt CarmyiNng @mMOUNt . . . . oo e e e $ 5,161 $ 5,378
Unfunded capital and other commitments . . . . . . 2,236 2,334
Maximum exposSUre TO IOSS .« - . o . o 10,903 11,219

The Company also has noncontrolling financial investments in private investment funds and partnerships
considered to be VIEs, which are not consolidated. The Company’s recorded investment in these entities, carried in
other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, was approximately $35 million at March 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020. The maximum exposure to loss related to these VIEs was $58 million at March 31, 2021 and $57 million at
December 31, 2020, representing the Company’s investment balance and its unfunded commitments to invest
additional amounts.

The Company’s individual net investments in unconsolidated VIEs, which exclude any unfunded capital
commitments, ranged from less than $1 million to $78 million at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

The Company is required to consolidate VIEs in which it has concluded it has a controlling financial interest. The
Company sponsors entities to which it transfers its interests in tax-advantaged investments to third parties. At
March 31, 2021, approximately $4.8 billion of the Company’s assets and $3.6 billion of its liabilities included on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet were related to community development and tax-advantaged investment VIEs which the
Company has consolidated, primarily related to these transfers. These amounts compared to $4.9 billion and
$3.7 billion, respectively, at December 31, 2020. The majority of the assets of these consolidated VIEs are reported in
other assets, and the liabilities are reported in long-term debt and other liabilities. The assets of a particular VIE are the
primary source of funds to settle its obligations. The creditors of the VIEs do not have recourse to the general credit of
the Company. The Company’s exposure to the consolidated VIEs is generally limited to the carrying value of its
variable interests plus any related tax credits previously recognized or transferred to others with a guarantee.

In addition, the Company sponsors a municipal bond securities tender option bond program. The Company
controls the activities of the program’s entities, is entitled to the residual returns and provides liquidity and remarketing
arrangements to the program. As a result, the Company has consolidated the program’s entities. At March 31, 2021,
$1.7 billion of available-for-sale investment securities and $1.2 billion of short-term borrowings on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet were related to the tender option bond program, compared with $2.4 billion of available-for-sale
investment securities and $1.5 billion of short-term borrowings at December 31, 2020.
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DIEEY] Mortgage Servicing Rights

The Company capitalizes MSRs as separate assets when loans are sold and servicing is retained. MSRs may also be
purchased from others. The Company carries MSRs at fair value, with changes in the fair value recorded in earnings
during the period in which they occur. The Company serviced $211.6 billion of residential mortgage loans for others at
March 31, 2021, and $211.8 billion at December 31, 2020, including subserviced mortgages with no corresponding
MSR asset. Included in mortgage banking revenue are the MSR fair value changes arising from market rate and model
assumption changes, net of the value change in derivatives used to economically hedge MSRs. These changes resulted in
a net loss of $120 million and a net gain of $25 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Loan servicing and ancillary fees, not including valuation changes, included in mortgage banking revenue
were $175 million and $186 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Changes in fair value of capitalized MSRs are summarized as follows:

Three Months Ended

March 31
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020
Balance at beginning of Period . . . . . . . o oo $2,210  $2,546
RIghts PUrCNased . . . . . o 16 5
Rights capitalized . . . . . o 319 201
RIGNES SOIA (8) . o o o — 1
Changes in fair value of MSRs
Due to fluctuations in market interestrates (D) . . . . . . . 486 (743)
Due to revised assumptions or MOAEIS (C) . . . v v oo o (102) 17
Other changes infairvalue (d) . . . . . o (142) (140)

Balance at end of period . . . . . $2,787  $1,887

(a) MSRs sold include those having a negative fair value, resulting from the loans being severely delinquent.

(b)  Includes changes in MISR value associated with changes in market interest rates, including estimated prepayment rates and anticipated earnings on escrow deposits.

(c)  Includes changes in MSR value not caused by changes in market interest rates, such as changes in assumed cost to service, ancillary income and option adjusted spread, as
well as the impact of any model changes

(d)  Primarily the change in MISR value from passage of time and cash flows realized (decay), but also includes the impact of changes to expected cash flows not associated with
changes in market interest rates, such as the impact of delinquencies.

The estimated sensitivity to changes in interest rates of the fair value of the MSR portfolio and the related derivative
instruments was as follows:

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Down Down Down Up Up Up Down Down Down Up Up Up
(Dollars in Millions) 100bps 50bps 25bps 25bps  50Dbps 100 bps 100bps 50bps 25bps 25bps 50bps 100 bps
MSR portfolio . . ... ... .. .. $H63)  $(293) $(149) $143 $272 $483 $442) $@271) $(150) $169 $343 $671
Derivative instrument hedges . . . . . . 611 299 146 (136) (266) (513) 523 281 145 (149) (304) (625)
Net sensitivity .. ... ...... .. $48 $ 6 $ B $ 7 $ 6 $ (30) $8 $10 $ (B) $20 $ 39 $ 46

The fair value of MSRs and their sensitivity to changes in interest rates is influenced by the mix of the servicing
portfolio and characteristics of each segment of the portfolio. The Company’s servicing portfolio consists of the distinct
portfolios of government-insured mortgages, conventional mortgages and Housing Finance Agency (“HFA”)
mortgages. The servicing portfolios are predominantly comprised of fixed-rate agency loans with limited adjustable-rate
or jumbo mortgage loans. The HFA servicing portfolio is comprised of loans originated under state and local housing
authority program guidelines which assist purchases by first-time or low- to moderate-income homebuyers through a
favorable rate subsidy, down payment and/or closing cost assistance on government- and conventional-insured
mortgages.
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A summary of the Company’s MSRs and related characteristics by portfolio was as follows:

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

(Dollars in Millions) HFA  Government Conventional (d) Total HFA  Government Conventional (d) Total
Servicing portfolio (@) . ... ... o $39,757  $23,734 $145,171 $208,662 $40,396  $25,474 $143,085 $208,955
Fairvalue . . ... ... $ 499 $ 312 $ 19768 2,787 $ 406 $ 261 $ 16438 2,210
Value (ops) (0) . .« oo 126 131 136 134 101 102 108 106
Weighted-average servicing fees (bps). . .. ... ... .. 35 40 30 32 35 40 30 32
Multiple (value/servicingfees) . .. ........... .. .. 3.56 3.31 4.47 412 2.87 2.56 3.55 3.26
Weighted-average noterate . ... .............. 4.33% 3.88% 3.64%  3.80% 4.43% 3.91% 3.78%  3.92%
Weighted-average age (inyears). . . . ............ 3.8 5.9 3.8 4.0 3.8 5.6 4.2 4.3
Weighted-average expected prepayment (constant

prepaymentrate) ... ... 11.2% 13.3% 9.5%  10.3% 14.1% 18.0% 138%  14.4%
Weighted-average expected life (inyears). . ... ... .. 6.8 5.6 6.9 6.7 5.6 4.3 5.5 5.4
Weighted-average option adjusted spread () . . . . . . . 7.7% 7.3% 6.3% 6.7% 7.7% 7.3% 6.2% 6.6%

(a)  Represents principal balance of mortgages having corresponding MSR asset.

(b)  Calculated as fair value divided by the servicing portfolio.

(c)  Option adjusted spread is the incremental spread added to the risk-free rate to reflect optionality and other risk inherent in the MSRs.
(d)  Represents loans sold primarily to GSEs.

Preferred Stock

At March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company had authority to issue 50 million shares of preferred stock.
The number of shares issued and outstanding and the carrying amount of each outstanding series of the Company’s
preferred stock were as follows:

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Shares Shares

Issued and  Liquidation Carrying Issued and  Liquidation Carrying
(Dollars in Millions) Outstanding ~ Preference  Discount ~ Amount Outstanding ~ Preference  Discount ~ Amount
Series A . 12,510 $1,251 $145  $1,106 12,510 $1,251 $145  $1,106
SeriesB ... 40,000 1,000 — 1,000 40,000 1,000 — 1,000
Series F . 44,000 1,700 12 1,088 44,000 1,100 12 1,088
Series|. . — — — — 30,000 750 5 745
Seriesd . 40,000 1,000 7 993 40,000 1,000 7 993
Series K . oo 23,000 575 10 565 23,000 575 10 565
SeriesL .. 20,000 500 14 486 20,000 500 14 486

SeriesM. .. 30,000 750 20 730 — — — —
Total preferred stock (&) .. .. ... oo 209,510 $6,176 $208  $5,968 209,510 $6,176 $193  $5,983

(@) The par value of all shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, was $1.00 per share.

During the first quarter of 2021, the Company issued depositary shares representing an ownership interest in
30,000 shares of Series M Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock with a liquidation preference of $25,000 per share
(the “Series M Preferred Stock”). The Series M Preferred Stock has no stated maturity and will not be subject to any sinking
fund or other obligation of the Company. Dividends, if declared, will accrue and be payable quarterly, in arrears, at a rate
per annum equal to 4.00 percent. The Series M Preferred Stock is redeemable at the Company’s option, in whole or in part,
on or after April 15, 2026. The Series M Preferred Stock is redeemable at the Company’s option, in whole, but not in part,
prior to April 15,2026 within 90 days following an official administrative or judicial decision, amendment to, or change in
the laws or regulations that would not allow the Company to treat the full liquidation value of the Series M Preferred Stock
as Tier 1 capital for purposes of the capital adequacy guidelines of the Federal Reserve Board.

During the first quarter of 2021, the Company provided notice of its intent to redeem all outstanding shares of the
Series I Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock (the “Series I Preferred Stock™) during the second quarter of 2021.
The Company removed the outstanding liquidation preference amount of the Series I Preferred Stock from
shareholders’ equity and included it in other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2021,
because upon the notification date it became mandatorily redeemable. The liquidation preference amount equals the
redemption price for all outstanding shares of the Series I Preferred Stock. The Company included a $5 million loss in
the computation of earnings per diluted common share for the first quarter of 2021, which represents the stock
issuance costs recorded in preferred stock upon the issuance of the Series I Preferred Stock that were reclassified to
retained earnings on the notification date. On April 15, 2021, the Company redeemed all outstanding shares of the
Series I Preferred Stock.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Shareholders’ equity is affected by transactions and valuations of asset and liability positions that require adjustments
to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). The reconciliation of the transactions affecting accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) included in shareholders’ equity for the three months ended March 31, is as follows:

Unrealized Gains

(Losses) on
Investment
Securities  Unrealized Gains  Unrealized Gains Foreign
Available-For- (Losses) on (Losses) on Currency
(Dollars in Millions) Sale Derivative Hedges — Retirement Plans ~ Translation Total
2021
Balance at beginning of period . . . . . ... $2,417 $(189) $(1,842) $64) $ 322
Changes in unrealized gainsand losses . . . ... ... . (3,378) 99 — — (3,279
Foreign currency translation adjustment (@) . ... ... ... ... . L. — — — 25 25
Reclassification to earnings of realized gainsand losses . . . ... ....... .. (25) 4 39 — 18
Applicable Income taxes . . .. .. 861 (26) (10) 6) 819
Balance atend of period . . . . ... $ (125 $(112) $(1,813) $(45) $(2,095)
2020
Balance at beginning of period . . . .. ... $ 379 $ (51) $(1,636) $65) $(1,373)
Changes inunrealized gainsand losses . ... ... ... . 2,787 (257) — 2,530
Foreign currency translation adjustment (@) . ... ......... ... . L. — — — (13) (13)
Reclassification to earnings of realized gainsand losses . . .. ... ... .. .. (50) 13 31 ©6)
Applicable income taxes . . ... ... (692) 62 8) 3 (635)
Balance atend of period . . . . .. ... $2,424 $(233) $(1,613) $(75) $ 503

(a)  Represents the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates on the Company's investment in foreign operations and related hedges.

Additional detail about the impact to net income for items reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income

(loss) and into earnings for the three months ended March 31, is as follows:

Impact to Net Income

Affected Line ltem in the

(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020  Consolidated Statement of Income
Unrealized gains (losses) on investment securities available-for-sale
Realized gains (losses) on sale of investment securities .. .. ... ... oo $25 $50  Securities gains (losses), net
6) (13)  Applicable income taxes
19 37 Net-of-tax
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative hedges
Realized gains (losses) on derivative hedges . . . . . . oo (4) (13) Interest expense
1 3 Applicable income taxes
3) (10)  Net-of-tax
Unrealized gains (losses) on retirement plans
Actuarial gains (losses) and prior service cost (credit) amortization ... ... ... . oL (39) (81)  Other noninterest expense
10 8  Applicable income taxes
(29) (23)  Net-of-tax
Total impact to NetinCome . . . . . . .o $(13) $ 4

DIEEX] Earnings Per Share

The components of earnings per share were:

Three Months Ended

March 31

(Dollars and Shares in Millions, Except Per Share Data) 2021 2020
Net income attributable 1o U.S. BaNCOIMD . . . . . oo o $2,280 $1,171
Preferred diVIDENAS . . . oo o (90) (78)
Impact of preferred stock Call (8) . . . o oo ) -
Earnings allocated to participating stock awards . . . . . . . (10) 5)

Net income applicable to U.S. Bancorp common shareholders . . .. .. ... $2,175 $1,088
Average common shares OUtStaNaiNg . . . . . o o o 1,602 1,618
Net effect of the exercise and assumed purchase of stock awards . . . . . . .. o 1 1
Average diluted common shares outstanding . . . . . . o 1,503 1,519
Eamings per COMMON SNAIE . . .« . oot $ 1.45 $ 72
Diluted earmings pPer COMMON SNAIE . . . . . v oo oo e e e e e $ 1.45 $ 72

(a)  Represents stock issuance costs originally recorded in preferred stock upon issuance of the Company’s Series | Preferred Stock that were reclassified to retained earnings on the

date the Company announced its intent to redeem the outstanding shares.
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Options outstanding at March 31, 2021 and 2020, to purchase 1 million common shares, were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, because they were
antidilutive.

LIIERL] Employee Benefits

The components of net periodic benefit cost for the Company’s retirement plans were:

Three Months Ended March 31

Postretirement

Pension Plans Welfare Plan

(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020 2021 2020
SEIVICE COSt. o v oo ottt $ 66 $ 59 $— B
INtErest COSt . o 55 58 — 1
Expected return on plan assets . . . . o (112) (107 — (1)
Prior service cost (credit) amortization . . . . . . — — (1) (1)
Actuarial loss (gain) amortization . . . . . . o 42 34 2) 2)
Net periodic benefit COSt (@) . . . . . . . o oo $ 51 $ 50 $3) $@Q)

(a)  Service cost is included in employee benefits expense on the Consolidated Statement of Income. All other components are included in other noninterest expense on the
Consolidated Statement of Income.

NEIEER] Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense were:

Three Months Ended

March 31
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020
Federal
CUITBNE . $353 $315
DEferred . o 130 (106)
Federal INCOME TaX . . . o o 483 209
State
CUIMENE . o o 94 70
DEfermed . . 30 (19)
State INCOME TAX . . o 124 51
Total INCOME TaX PrOVISION . . . . $607 $260

A reconciliation of expected income tax expense at the federal statutory rate of 21 percent to the Company’s applicable
income tax expense follows:

Three Months Ended

March 31

(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020
Tax at Statutony rate . . o o $607 $302
State income tax, at statutory rates, net of federal tax benefit. . . . . . .. . 114 59
Tax effect of

Tax credits and benefits, net of related expenses . . . . . . (93) (102)

Tax-eXeMPLINCOME . . o o o e (28) (29)

O BMIS o 7 30
Applicable INCOME TAXES . . . o . o $607 $ 260

The Company’s income tax returns are subject to review and examination by federal, state, local and foreign
government authorities. On an ongoing basis, numerous federal, state, local and foreign examinations are in progress
and cover multiple tax years. As of March 31, 2021, federal tax examinations for all years ending through
December 31, 2014 are completed and resolved. The Company’s tax returns for the years ended December 31, 20135,
2016, 2017 and 2018 are under examination by the Internal Revenue Service. The years open to examination by
foreign, state and local government authorities vary by jurisdiction.

The Company’s net deferred tax asset was $1.3 billion at March 31, 2021 and $597 million at December 31, 2020.
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LISERE Derivative Instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into derivative transactions to manage various risks and to
accommodate the business requirements of its customers. The Company recognizes all derivatives on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at fair value in other assets or in other liabilities. On the date the Company enters into a derivative
contract, the derivative is designated as either a fair value hedge, cash flow hedge, net investment hedge, or a
designation is not made as it is a customer-related transaction, an economic hedge for asset/liability risk management
purposes or another stand-alone derivative created through the Company’s operations (“free-standing derivative”).
When a derivative is designated as a fair value, cash flow or net investment hedge, the Company performs an
assessment, at inception and, at a minimum, quarterly thereafter, to determine the effectiveness of the derivative in
offsetting changes in the value or cash flows of the hedged item(s).

Fair Value Hedges These derivatives are interest rate swaps the Company uses to hedge the change in fair value related
to interest rate changes of its underlying available-for-sale investment securities and fixed-rate debt. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges, and changes in the fair value of the hedged items, are recorded in
earnings.

Cash Flow Hedges These derivatives are interest rate swaps the Company uses to hedge the forecasted cash flows from
its underlying variable-rate debt. Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are recorded in
other comprehensive income (loss) until the cash flows of the hedged items are realized. If a derivative designated as a
cash flow hedge is terminated or ceases to be highly effective, the gain or loss in other comprehensive income (loss) is
amortized to earnings over the period the forecasted hedged transactions impact earnings. If a hedged forecasted
transaction is no longer probable, hedge accounting is ceased and any gain or loss included in other comprehensive
income (loss) is reported in earnings immediately, unless the forecasted transaction is at least reasonably possible of
occurring, whereby the amounts remain within other comprehensive income (loss). At March 31, 2021, the Company
had $112 million (net-of-tax) of realized and unrealized losses on derivatives classified as cash flow hedges recorded in
other comprehensive income (loss), compared with $189 million (net-of-tax) of realized and unrealized losses at
December 31, 2020. The estimated amount to be reclassified from other comprehensive income (loss) into earnings
during the remainder of 2021 and the next 12 months are losses of $31 million (net-of-tax) and $39 million
(net-of-tax), respectively. All cash flow hedges were highly effective for the three months ended March 31, 2021.

Net Investment Hedges The Company uses forward commitments to sell specified amounts of certain foreign currencies,
and non-derivative debt instruments, to hedge the volatility of its net investment in foreign operations driven by
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. The carrying amount of non-derivative debt instruments designated as
net investment hedges was $1.4 billion at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

Other Derivative Positions The Company enters into free-standing derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk and for other
risk management purposes. These derivatives include forward commitments to sell to-be-announced securities
(“TBAs”) and other commitments to sell residential mortgage loans, which are used to economically hedge the interest
rate risk related to mortgage loans held for sale (“MLHFS”) and unfunded mortgage loan commitments. The Company
also enters into interest rate swaps, swaptions, forward commitments to buy TBAs, U.S. Treasury and Eurodollar
futures and options on U.S. Treasury futures to economically hedge the change in the fair value of the Company’s
MSRs. The Company also enters into foreign currency forwards to economically hedge remeasurement gains and losses
the Company recognizes on foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities. In addition, the Company acts as a
seller and buyer of interest rate derivatives and foreign exchange contracts for its customers. The Company mitigates
the market and liquidity risk associated with these customer derivatives by entering into similar offsetting positions
with broker-dealers, or on a portfolio basis by entering into other derivative or non-derivative financial instruments
that partially or fully offset the exposure to earnings from these customer-related positions. The Company’s customer
derivatives and related hedges are monitored and reviewed by the Company’s Market Risk Committee, which
establishes policies for market risk management, including exposure limits for each portfolio. The Company also has
derivative contracts that are created through its operations, including certain unfunded mortgage loan commitments
and swap agreements related to the sale of a portion of its Class B common and preferred shares of Visa Inc. Refer to
Note 14 for further information on these swap agreements.
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The following table summarizes the asset and liability management derivative positions of the Company:

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Remaining Remaining
Notional Fair Maturity Notional Fair Maturity
(Dollars in Millions) Value Value In Years Value Value In Years
March 31, 2021
Fair value hedges
Interest rate contracts
Receive fixed/pay floating swaps . . . .. ... $6600 $ - 1.96 $ - % - -
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate contracts
Pay fixed/receive floating swaps . . .. ... - - - 3,250 - 4.34
Net investment hedges
Foreign exchange forward contracts . . . .. . .. .. 781 10 .05 - - -
Other economic hedges
Interest rate contracts
Futures and forwards
BUY 6,044 31 .06 11,179 107 10
Sell 30,218 349 19 9,364 66 04
Options
Purchased. . . .. 18,370 290 3.68 - - -
WIIEN © 4,373 109 12 6,740 300 2.33
Receive fixed/pay floating swaps . . . ... .. o 4,333 - 4,72 6,373 - 10.03
Pay fixed/receive floating swaps . . . . .. . 3,379 - 4.20 4,389 - 4.85
Foreign exchange forward contracts . . . .. . .. ... L 270 1 .06 344 2 .04
Equity contracts . . . . . . M7 - .33 74 2 19
Other (8) .« . o 311 5 .03 2,096 172 1.92
Total. $74,796  $795 $43,809 $649
December 31, 2020
Fair value hedges
Interest rate contracts
Receive fixed/pay floating swaps. . . ... ..o $8400 $ - 1.76 $ - $ - -
Pay fixed/receive floating swaps . . . . .. . - - - 100 - 9.63
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate contracts
Pay fixed/receive floating swaps . . . . .. .o - - - 3,250 - 4.59
Net investment hedges
Foreign exchange forward contracts . . . .. ... . o o 479 - .06 336 3 .06
Other economic hedges
Interest rate contracts
Futures and forwards
BUY 16,431 73 50 1,925 5 .07
Sell 10,440 48 04 28,976 157 .07
Options
Purchased . . . .. .. . . . 11,610 121 411 - - -
WHIHEN L 5,073 202 13 7,770 198 2.53
Receive fixed/pay floating swaps . . . .. ... o 11,064 - 7.31 907 - 23.43
Pay fixed/receive floating swaps . . .. ... 78 - 13.68 8,638 - 5.67
Foreign exchange forward contracts . . . .. ... o 292 1 .04 341 2 .05
EQuity CONracts . . . . . 127 3 .39 45 - 46
OtEr (8) .« o o 47 1 11 1,832 183 2.44
Total, $64,041  $449 $54,020 $548

(@) Includes derivative liability swap agreements related to the sale of a portion of the Company’s Class B common and preferred shares of Visa Inc. The Visa swap agreements had
a total notional value, fair value and weighted-average remaining maturity of $1.8 billion, $167 million and 2.25 years at March 31, 2021, respectively, compared to $1.8 billion,
$182 million and 2.50 years at December 31, 2020, respectively. In addition, includes short-term underwriting purchase and sale commitments with total asset and liability
notional values of $311 million at March 31, 2021, and $47 milion at December 31, 2020.
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The following table summarizes the customer-related derivative positions of the Company:

Asset Derlvatives

Liability Derivatives

Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Remaining Remaining
Notional Fair Maturity In Notional Fair Maturity In
(Dollars in Millions) Value Value Years Value Value Years
March 31, 2021
Interest rate contracts
Receive fixed/pay floating swaps . . . .. ... . o $121,392  $2,416 4.42 $ 40,305 $ 494 7.50
Pay fixed/receive floating swaps . . . .. ... o 39,173 115 7.22 115,251 801 4.32
Other (@) . . . o 9,128 2 3.74 6,901 2 4.73
Options
Purchased . . .. . . . . 80,134 204 1.32 1,465 31 2.71
WHHEN o 1,391 31 2,77 75,365 195 1.25
Futures
BUY . 921 - .95 1,628 - 1.14
Sell . 1,468 - 1.10 1,310 - 45
Foreign exchange rate contracts
Forwards, spots and swaps . . . . .. 41,612 1,307 1.09 41,887 1,284 1.25
Options
Purchased . . . . .. 650 23 .98 - - -
WHHEN o - - - 650 20 .98
Creditcontracts . . . . . .. .. 2,906 1 2.68 7,495 10 4.45
Total $298,775  $4,099 $202,257  $2,837
December 31, 2020
Interest rate contracts
Receive fixed/pay floating swaps . ... ... ... $144,859 $3,782 4.93 $ 12,027 $ 99 8.72
Pay fixed/receive floating swaps . . . .. .. ... 156,048 2 8.43 134,963 1,239 4.71
Other (@) .« o 9,921 6 3.75 6,387 3 4.22
Options
Purchased . . . . . 72,655 111 1.40 1,454 46 2.96
Wrtten o 1,736 46 2.76 68,205 81 1.25
Futures
BUY . 1,851 - 1.22 924 - .05
Sell. - - - 4,090 - 72
Foreign exchange rate contracts
Forwards, spots and swaps . . . . . .. 44,845 1,590 .96 45,992 1,565 1.13
Options
Purchased . . . . .. 519 14 .90 - - -
WHTEEN . - - - 519 14 .90
Credit CoNtracts . . . . v v 2,876 1 2.75 7,479 7 3.81
Total $294,310  $5,652 $282,040 $3,054

(@)  Primarily represents floating rate interest rate swaps that pay based on differentials between specified interest rate indexes.

The table below shows the effective portion of the gains (losses) recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) and

the gains (losses) reclassified from other comprehensive income (loss) into earnings (net-of-tax) for the three months

ended March 31:

Gains (Losses)
Recognized in

Gains (Losses)
Reclassified from

Other Other
Comprehensive Comprehensive
Income Income
(Loss) (Loss) into Earnings
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020 2021 2020
Asset and Liability Management Positions
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate CONMraCtS . . . . . o o $74  $(192) $(3) $(10)
Net investment hedges
Foreign exchange forward CONtracts . . . . . . o 7 16 - -
Non-derivative debt inStruments . . . .. ... 48 25 - -
Note: The Company does not exclude components from effectiveness testing for cash flow and net investment hedges.
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The table below shows the effect of fair value and cash flow hedge accounting on the Consolidated Statement of
Income for the three months ended March 31:

Interest Income Interest Expense

(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020 2021 2020
Total amount of income and expense line items presented in the Consolidated Statement of Income in which the

effects of fair value or cash flow hedges are recorded . . . . . .. ..o $3,341  $4,116 $278 $ 893
Asset and Liability Management Positions
Fair value hedges

Interest rate contract derivatives . . . . . . . (1) - 55 (1,035)

Hedged Hems . . o 1 - (55) 1,028
Cash flow hedges

Interest rate contract derivatives . . . . . . . o - - 4 13

Note: The Company does not exclude components from effectiveness testing for fair value and cash flow hedges. The Company reclassified losses of $156 million into earnings during
the three months ended March 31, 2021, as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow hedges. The Company did not reclassify gains or losses into earnings as a result of the
discontinuance of cash flow hedges during the three months ended March 31, 2020.

The table below shows cumulative hedging adjustments and the carrying amount of assets and liabilities designated in
fair value hedges:

Carrying Amount of the Hedged Assets

and Liabilites Cumulative Hedging Adjustment (a)
(Dollars in Millions) March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Line Item in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
Available-for-sale investment securities ... ... $ - $ 99 $ 4 $ (1)
Llong-termdebt. . ... ... 6,713 8,667 800 903

(a)  The cumulative hedging adjustment related to the discontinued hedging relationships on available-for-sale investment securities and long-term debt was $(4) million and $678
million, respectively, at March 31, 2021. The cumulative hedging adjustment related to discontinued hedging relationships on long-term debt was $726 million at December 31,
2020,

The table below shows the gains (losses) recognized in earnings for other economic hedges and the customer-related
positions for the three months ended March 31:

LLocation of Gains (Losses)
(Dollars in Millions) Recognized in Eamings 2021 2020

Asset and Liability Management Positions
Other economic hedges
Interest rate contracts

Futures and forwards . . . . . o Mortgage banking revenue/
other noninterest income  $430  $ (75)
Purchased and written options . . . . . o Mortgage banking revenue 12 280
SWaADS .« o Mortgage banking revenue (390) 729
Foreign exchange forward contracts . . . . . . o .o o Other noninterest income Q) 17
Equity contracts . . . . oo Compensation expense 4 (4)
ONEr o Other noninterest income - (1)

Customer-Related Positions
Interest rate contracts

SWADS © oo Commercial products revenue 27 (22)

Purchased and written options . . . . . . . Commercial products revenue (7) 17

FUIIES . L Commercial products revenue - (18)
Foreign exchange rate contracts

Forwards, Spots and SWapS . . . o Commercial products revenue 19 17

Purchased and written options . . . . . . . Commercial products revenue - -
Credit CONtraCtS . . . . o o Commercial products revenue 2 18

Derivatives are subject to credit risk associated with counterparties to the derivative contracts. The Company
measures that credit risk using a credit valuation adjustment and includes it within the fair value of the derivative. The
Company manages counterparty credit risk through diversification of its derivative positions among various
counterparties, by entering into derivative positions that are centrally cleared through clearinghouses, by entering into
master netting arrangements and, where possible, by requiring collateral arrangements. A master netting arrangement
allows two counterparties, who have multiple derivative contracts with each other, the ability to net settle amounts
under all contracts, including any related collateral, through a single payment and in a single currency. Collateral
arrangements generally require the counterparty to deliver collateral (typically cash or U.S. Treasury and agency
securities) equal to the Company’s net derivative receivable, subject to minimum transfer and credit rating
requirements.
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The Company’s collateral arrangements are predominately bilateral and, therefore, contain provisions that require
collateralization of the Company’s net liability derivative positions. Required collateral coverage is based on net
liability thresholds and may be contingent upon the Company’s credit rating from two of the nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations. If the Company’s credit rating were to fall below credit ratings thresholds established in
the collateral arrangements, the counterparties to the derivatives could request immediate additional collateral coverage
up to and including full collateral coverage for derivatives in a net liability position. The aggregate fair value of all
derivatives under collateral arrangements that were in a net liability position at March 31, 2021, was $1.0 billion. At
March 31, 2021, the Company had $783 million of cash posted as collateral against this net liability position.

[Note 13 xetting Arrangements for Certain Financial Instruments and Securities Financing
ctivities

The Company’s derivative portfolio consists of bilateral over-the-counter trades, certain interest rate derivatives and
credit contracts required to be centrally cleared through clearinghouses per current regulations, and exchange-traded
positions which may include U.S. Treasury and Eurodollar futures or options on U.S. Treasury futures. Of the
Company’s $709.6 billion total notional amount of derivative positions at March 31, 2021, $375.4 billion related to
bilateral over-the-counter trades, $319.4 billion related to those centrally cleared through clearinghouses and

$14.8 billion related to those that were exchange-traded. The Company’s derivative contracts typically include
offsetting rights (referred to as netting arrangements), and depending on expected volume, credit risk, and counterparty
preference, collateral maintenance may be required. For all derivatives under collateral support arrangements, fair value
is determined daily and, depending on the collateral maintenance requirements, the Company and a counterparty may
receive or deliver collateral, based upon the net fair value of all derivative positions between the Company and the
counterparty. Collateral is typically cash, but securities may be allowed under collateral arrangements with certain
counterparties. Receivables and payables related to cash collateral are included in other assets and other liabilities on
the Consolidated Balance Sheet, along with the related derivative asset and liability fair values. Any securities pledged
to counterparties as collateral remain on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Securities received from counterparties as
collateral are not recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, unless the counterparty defaults. In general, securities
used as collateral can be sold, repledged or otherwise used by the party in possession. No restrictions exist on the use of
cash collateral by either party. Refer to Note 12 for further discussion of the Company’s derivatives, including
collateral arrangements.

As part of the Company’s treasury and broker-dealer operations, the Company executes transactions that are
treated as securities sold under agreements to repurchase or securities purchased under agreements to resell, both of
which are accounted for as collateralized financings. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase include repurchase
agreements and securities loaned transactions. Securities purchased under agreements to resell include reverse
repurchase agreements and securities borrowed transactions. For securities sold under agreements to repurchase, the
Company records a liability for the cash received, which is included in short-term borrowings on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. For securities purchased under agreements to resell, the Company records a receivable for the cash paid,
which is included in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Securities transferred to counterparties under repurchase agreements and securities loaned transactions continue to
be recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, are measured at fair value, and are included in investment securities
or other assets. Securities received from counterparties under reverse repurchase agreements and securities borrowed
transactions are not recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheet unless the counterparty defaults. The securities
transferred under repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions typically are U.S. Treasury and agency securities,
residential agency mortgage-backed securities or corporate debt securities. The securities loaned or borrowed typically
are corporate debt securities traded by the Company’s broker-dealer subsidiary. In general, the securities transferred
can be sold, repledged or otherwise used by the party in possession. No restrictions exist on the use of cash collateral by
either party. Repurchase/reverse repurchase and securities loaned/borrowed transactions expose the Company to
counterparty risk. The Company manages this risk by performing assessments, independent of business line managers,
and establishing concentration limits on each counterparty. Additionally, these transactions include collateral
arrangements that require the fair values of the underlying securities to be determined daily, resulting in cash being
obtained or refunded to counterparties to maintain specified collateral levels.
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The following table summarizes the maturities by category of collateral pledged for repurchase agreements and
securities loaned transactions:

Ovemightand ~ Less Than  30-89  Greater Than
(Dollars in Millions) Continuous 30 Days Days 90 Days Total

March 31, 2021
Repurchase agreements

U.S. Treasury and @gBNCIBS . . . . v v oo e e $ 272 $- $- $ $ 272
Residential agency mortgage-backed securities ... ... ... oo 588 - - - 588
Corporate debt securities . . . . . .. e 814 - - - 814
Total repurchase agreements . . . . o o oo 1,674 - - - 1,674
Securities loaned
Corporate debt SecuUrities . . . . . o 230 - - - 230
Total securities loaned . . . . . . 230 - - - 230
Gross amount of recognized liabilities. ... .. ... ... $1,904 $- $- $-  $1,904

December 31, 2020
Repurchase agreements

U.S. Treasury and agenCIES .« o v v v v v $ 472 $- $- $- $ 472
Residential agency mortgage-backed securities . ... ... 398 - - - 398
Corporate debtsecuriies . . . . . . o 560 - - - 560
Total repurchase agreements . . . . oo o 1,430 - - - 1,430
Securities loaned
Corporate debt securities . . . . . . . 218 - - - 218
Total securities loaned . . . . .. 218 - - - 218
Gross amount of recognized liabilities. . . ... ... ... $1,648 $- $- $-  $1,648

The Company executes its derivative, repurchase/reverse repurchase and securities loaned/borrowed transactions
under the respective industry standard agreements. These agreements include master netting arrangements that allow
for multiple contracts executed with the same counterparty to be viewed as a single arrangement. This allows for net
settlement of a single amount on a daily basis. In the event of default, the master netting arrangement provides for
close-out netting, which allows all of these positions with the defaulting counterparty to be terminated and net settled
with a single payment amount.

The Company has elected to offset the assets and liabilities under netting arrangements for the balance sheet
presentation of the majority of its derivative counterparties. The netting occurs at the counterparty level, and includes
all assets and liabilities related to the derivative contracts, including those associated with cash collateral received or
delivered. The Company has not elected to offset the assets and liabilities under netting arrangements for the balance
sheet presentation of repurchase/reverse repurchase and securities loaned/borrowed transactions.

The following tables provide information on the Company’s netting adjustments, and items not offset on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet but available for offset in the event of default:

Gross Amounts Not Offset on the

Gross Amounts Net Amounts Consolidated Balance Sheet
Gross Offsetonthe  Presented on the
Recognized Consolidated Consolidated Financial Collateral

(Dollars in Millions) Assets  Balance Sheet (a) Balance Sheet Instruments (b) Received (c)  Net Amount
March 31, 2021
Derivative assets (d) ... ..o $4,776 $(1,938) $2,838 $(159) $ (147) $2,632
Reverse repurchase agreements . . ... .. ... .o 403 - 403 (207) (196) -
Securities borrowed .. ... 1,916 - 1,915 - (1,862) 53

Total . $7,094 $(1,938) $5,156 $(366) $(2,205) $2,585
December 31, 2020
Derivative assets (d) . .. .. ... $5,744 $(1,874) $3,870 $(109) $ (287) $3,474
Reverse repurchase agreements . .. .. .. ... 377 - 377 (262) (115)
Securities borrowed .. L 1,716 - 1,716 - (1,670) 46

Total . .o $7,837 $(1,874) $5,963 $371) $(2,072) $3,520

(@) Includes $637 milion and $898 million of cash collateral related payables that were netted against derivative assets at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

(b)  For derivative assets this includes any derivative liability fair values that could be offset in the event of counterparty default; for reverse repurchase agreements this includes any
repurchase agreement payables that could be offset in the event of counterparty default; for securities borrowed this includes any securities loaned payables that could be offset
in the event of counterparty default.

(c) Includes the fair value of securities received by the Company from the counterparty. These securities are not included on the Consolidated Balance Sheet unless the counterparty
defaults.

(d)  Excludes $118 million and $257 million at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively, of derivative assets not subject to netting arrangements.
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Gross Amounts Not Offset on the

Gross Amounts Net Amounts Consolidated Balance Shest
Gross Offsetonthe  Presented on the
Recognized Consolidated Consolidated Financial Collateral

(Dollars in Millions) Liabilites  Balance Sheet (a) Balance Sheet Instruments (b) Pledged (c)  Net Amount
March 31, 2021
Derivative liabilities (d) .. ... ... . ... $3,280 $(2,084) $1,196 $(159) $ - $1,037
Repurchase agreements . . .. .. ... o 1,674 — 1,674 (207) (1,465) 2
Securitiesloaned . . .. ... 230 — 230 — (227) 3

Total, .o $5,184 $(2,084) $3,100 $(366) $(1,692) $1,042
December 31, 2020
Derivative ligbilities (d) . ... .. ... . o $3,419 $(2,312) $1,107 $(109) $ - $ 998
Repurchase agreements . . . ... ... e 1,430 — 1,430 (262) (1,168) —
Securiies loaned . ... 218 — 218 — (215) 3

Total, .o $5,067 $(2,312) $2,755 $371) $(1,383) $1,001

@) Includes $783 milion and $1.3 billion of cash collateral related receivables that were netted against derivative liabilities at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

(b)  For derivative liabilities this includes any derivative asset fair values that could be offset in the event of counterparty default; for repurchase agreements this includes any reverse
repurchase agreement receivables that could be offset in the event of counterparty default; for securities loaned this includes any securities borrowed receivables that could be
offset in the event of counterparty default.

(c)  Includes the fair value of securities pledged by the Company to the counterparty. These securities are included on the Consolidated Balance Sheet unless the Company
defaults.

(d)  Excludes $206 million and $183 million at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively, of derivative liabilities not subject to netting arrangements.

DIIERE] Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

The Company uses fair value measurements for the initial recording of certain assets and liabilities, periodic
remeasurement of certain assets and liabilities, and disclosures. Derivatives, trading and available-for-sale investment
securities, MSRs and substantially all MLHFS are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Additionally, from time to
time, the Company may be required to record at fair value other assets on a nonrecurring basis, such as loans held for
sale, loans held for investment and certain other assets. These nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically involve
application of lower-of-cost-or-fair value accounting or impairment write-downs of individual assets.

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit
price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. A fair value measurement reflects all of the assumptions that market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about the risk inherent in a particular valuation
technique, the effect of a restriction on the sale or use of an asset and the risk of nonperformance.

The Company groups its assets and liabilities measured at fair value into a three-level hierarchy for valuation
techniques used to measure financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value. This hierarchy is based on whether the
valuation inputs are observable or unobservable. These levels are:

¢ Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 includes U.S. Treasury
securities, as well as exchange-traded instruments.

e Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities;
quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. Level 2 includes debt securities
that are traded less frequently than exchange-traded instruments and which are typically valued using third party
pricing services; derivative contracts and other assets and liabilities, including securities, whose value is
determined using a pricing model with inputs that are observable in the market or can be derived principally
from or corroborated by observable market data; and MLHFS whose values are determined using quoted prices
for similar assets or pricing models with inputs that are observable in the market or can be corroborated by
observable market data.

¢ Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the
fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose values are
determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as
instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation.
This category includes MSRs and certain derivative contracts.

Valuation Methodologies

The valuation methodologies used by the Company to measure financial assets and liabilities at fair value are described
below. In addition, the following section includes an indication of the level of the fair value hierarchy in which the
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assets or liabilities are classified. Where appropriate, the descriptions include information about the valuation models
and key inputs to those models. During the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no significant
changes to the valuation techniques used by the Company to measure fair value.

Available-For-Sale Investment Securities When quoted market prices for identical securities are available in an active
market, these prices are used to determine fair value and these securities are classified within Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy. Level 1 investment securities include U.S. Treasury and exchange-traded securities.

For other securities, quoted market prices may not be readily available for the specific securities. When possible,
the Company determines fair value based on market observable information, including quoted market prices for similar
securities, inactive transaction prices, and broker quotes. These securities are classified within Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy. Level 2 valuations are generally provided by a third party pricing service. Level 2 investment securities are
predominantly agency mortgage-backed securities, certain other asset-backed securities, obligations of state and
political subdivisions and agency debt securities.

Mortgage Loans Held For Sale MLHFS measured at fair value, for which an active secondary market and readily
available market prices exist, are initially valued at the transaction price and are subsequently valued by comparison to
instruments with similar collateral and risk profiles. MLHFS are classified within Level 2. Included in mortgage
banking revenue was a net loss of $215 million and a net gain of $93 million for the three months ended March 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively, from the changes to fair value of these MLHFS under fair value option accounting
guidance. Changes in fair value due to instrument specific credit risk were immaterial. Interest income for MLHEFS is
measured based on contractual interest rates and reported as interest income on the Consolidated Statement of Income.
Electing to measure MLHFS at fair value reduces certain timing differences and better matches changes in fair value of
these assets with changes in the value of the derivative instruments used to economically hedge them without the
burden of complying with the requirements for hedge accounting.

Mortgage Servicing Rights MSRs are valued using a discounted cash flow methodology, and are classified within

Level 3. The Company determines fair value of the MSRs by projecting future cash flows for different interest rate
scenarios using prepayment rates and other assumptions, and discounts these cash flows using a risk adjusted rate
based on option adjusted spread levels. There is minimal observable market activity for MSRs on comparable portfolios
and, therefore, the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment. Refer to Note 6 for further
information on MSR valuation assumptions.

Derivatives The majority of derivatives held by the Company are executed over-the-counter or centrally cleared through
clearinghouses and are valued using market standard cash flow valuation techniques. The models incorporate inputs,
depending on the type of derivative, including interest rate curves, foreign exchange rates and volatility. All derivative
values incorporate an assessment of the risk of counterparty nonperformance, measured based on the Company’s
evaluation of credit risk including external assessments of credit risk. The Company monitors and manages its
nonperformance risk by considering its ability to net derivative positions under master netting arrangements, as well as
collateral received or provided under collateral arrangements. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure the
fair value of derivatives, at a counterparty level, on a net basis. The majority of the derivatives are classified within
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, as the significant inputs to the models, including nonperformance risk, are
observable. However, certain derivative transactions are with counterparties where risk of nonperformance cannot be
observed in the market and, therefore, the credit valuation adjustments result in these derivatives being classified within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The Company also has other derivative contracts that are created through its operations, including commitments to
purchase and originate mortgage loans and swap agreements executed in conjunction with the sale of a portion of its
Class B common and preferred shares of Visa Inc. (the “Visa swaps”). The mortgage loan commitments are valued by
pricing models that include market observable and unobservable inputs, which result in the commitments being
classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The unobservable inputs include assumptions about the percentage
of commitments that actually become a closed loan and the MSR value that is inherent in the underlying loan value.
The Visa swaps require payments by either the Company or the purchaser of the Visa Inc. Class B common and
preferred shares when there are changes in the conversion rate of the Visa Inc. Class B common and preferred shares to
Visa Inc. Class A common and preferred shares, respectively, as well as quarterly payments to the purchaser based on
specified terms of the agreements. Management reviews and updates the Visa swaps fair value in conjunction with its
review of Visa Inc. related litigation contingencies, and the associated escrow funding. The expected litigation
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resolution impacts the Visa Inc. Class B common share to Visa Inc. Class A common share conversion rate, as well as
the ultimate termination date for the Visa swaps. Accordingly, the Visa swaps are classified within Level 3. Refer to
Note 15 for further information on the Visa Inc. restructuring and related card association litigation.

Significant Unobservable Inputs of Level 3 Assets and Liabilities

The following section provides information to facilitate an understanding of the uncertainty in the fair value
measurements for the Company’s Level 3 assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
This section includes a description of the significant inputs used by the Company and a description of any
interrelationships between these inputs. The discussion below excludes nonrecurring fair value measurements of
collateral value used for impairment measures for loans and OREOQ. These valuations utilize third party appraisal or
broker price opinions, and are classified as Level 3 due to the significant judgment involved.

Mortgage Servicing Rights The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Company’s
MSRs are expected prepayments and the option adjusted spread that is added to the risk-free rate to discount projected
cash flows. Significant increases in either of these inputs in isolation would have resulted in a significantly lower fair
value measurement. Significant decreases in either of these inputs in isolation would have resulted in a significantly
higher fair value measurement. There is no direct interrelationship between prepayments and option adjusted spread.
Prepayment rates generally move in the opposite direction of market interest rates. Option adjusted spread is generally
impacted by changes in market return requirements.

The following table shows the significant valuation assumption ranges for MSRs at March 31, 2021:

Weighted-
Minimum — Maximum  average (a)

EXpected prepayment . . . o 4% 15% 10%
Option adjusted SPread . . . . . oo o 6 M 7

(@)  Determined based on the relative fair value of the related mortgage loans serviced.

Derivatives The Company has two distinct Level 3 derivative portfolios: (i) the Company’s commitments to purchase
and originate mortgage loans that meet the requirements of a derivative and (ii) the Company’s asset/liability and
customer-related derivatives that are Level 3 due to unobservable inputs related to measurement of risk of
nonperformance by the counterparty. In addition, the Company’s Visa swaps are classified within Level 3.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Company’s derivative commitments
to purchase and originate mortgage loans are the percentage of commitments that actually become a closed loan and
the MSR value that is inherent in the underlying loan value. A significant increase in the rate of loans that close would
have resulted in a larger derivative asset or liability. A significant increase in the inherent MSR value would have
resulted in an increase in the derivative asset or a reduction in the derivative liability. Expected loan close rates and the
inherent MSR values are directly impacted by changes in market rates and will generally move in the same direction as
interest rates.

The following table shows the significant valuation assumption ranges for the Company’s derivative commitments to
purchase and originate mortgage loans at March 31, 2021:

Weighted-
Minimum ~ Maximum  average (a)

Expected loan close rate . . . . . . 4% 100% 76%
Inherent MSR value (basis points perloan) . . . . .o 53 201 123

(a)  Determined based on the relative fair value of the related mortgage loans.

The significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement of certain of the Company’s asset/liability
and customer-related derivatives is the credit valuation adjustment related to the risk of counterparty nonperformance.
A significant increase in the credit valuation adjustment would have resulted in a lower fair value measurement. A
significant decrease in the credit valuation adjustment would have resulted in a higher fair value measurement. The
credit valuation adjustment is impacted by changes in market rates, volatility, market implied credit spreads, and loss
recovery rates, as well as the Company’s assessment of the counterparty’s credit position. At March 31, 2021, the
minimum, maximum and weighted-average credit valuation adjustment as a percentage of the net fair value of the
counterparty’s derivative contracts prior to adjustment was 0 percent, 95 percent and 1 percent, respectively.
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The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Visa swaps are management’s
estimate of the probability of certain litigation scenarios occurring, and the timing of the resolution of the related
litigation loss estimates in excess, or shortfall, of the Company’s proportional share of escrow funds. An increase in the

loss estimate or a delay in the resolution of the related litigation would have resulted in an increase in the derivative

liability. A decrease in the loss estimate or an acceleration of the resolution of the related litigation would have resulted

in a decrease in the derivative liability.

The following table summarizes the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

(Dollars in Millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Netting Total
March 31, 2021
Avalilable-for-sale securities
U.S. Treasury and @genCiBS . . . . oot $21,406 $ 2911 $ - B - $ 24317
Mortgage-backed securities
Residential agenCy . . . . . oo - 116,176 - - 116,176
Commercial QgENCY . .+« v v vt - 6,086 - - 6,086
Asset-backed secUrties . . . . . . - 195 7 - 202
Obligations of state and political subdivisions . . . . ... ... - 9,214 1 - 9,215
ONer - 7 - - 7
Total available-for-sale . . . . . . . .. 21,406 134,589 8 - 156,003
Mortgage loans held forsale . .. . . . . o - 8,869 - - 8,869
Mortgage senviCiNg rghts . . . o oo - - 2,787 - 2,187
Derivative assets . . . . .. 7 3,066 1,821 (1,938) 2,956
Other @SSetS . .« . o o 120 2,029 - - 2,149
Total $21,633 $148,553 $4,616 $(1,988) $172,764
Derivative IaDIITIES . . . . . . $ - $ 2821 $ 665 $2,084) $ 1,402
Short-term borrowings and other liabilities (@) . . . . .. .. ... 199 1,890 - - 2,089
Total $ 199 $ 4711 $ 665 $(2,084) $ 3,491
December 31, 2020
Available-for-sale securities
U.S. Treasury and @gBNnCIBS . . . o v v vt $19251 $ 3,140 % - 3 - $ 22,391
Mortgage-backed securities
Residential agenCy . . . . . oo - 99,968 - - 99,968
CommErCial JENCY .+« v v v e - 5,406 - - 5,406
Asset-backed securities . . . . . - 198 7 - 205
Obligations of state and political subdivisions . . . . . .. .. . - 8,860 1 - 8,861
ONer - 9 - - 9
Total available-for-sale . . . . . . .. e 19,251 117,581 8 - 136,840
Mortgage loans held forsale . . ... ... o - 8,624 - - 8,624
Mortgage servicing fights . . o . oo o e - - 2,210 - 2,210
Derivative assets . . . . . . o 4 3,235 2,762 (1,874) 4127
OtNer @SSEIS . v o v 302 1,601 - - 1,903
Total $19,557  $130,941 $4,980 $(1,874) $153,604
Derivative llabilities . . . . . . . $ - $ 3166 $ 436 2,312 $ 1,290
Short-term borrowings and other liabilities (&) . . . . .. .. ... 85 1,672 - - 1,757
Total $ 85 $ 4,838 $ 436 $(2,312) $ 3,047

Note:  Excluded from the table above are equity investments without readily determinable fair values. The Company has elected to carry these investments at historical cost, adjusted
for impairment and any changes resulting from observable price changes for identical or similar investments of the issuer. The aggregate carrying amount of these equity
investments was $71 million and $85 million at March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively. The Company has not recorded impairments or adjustments for
observable price changes on these equity investments during the first three months of 2021 and 2020, or on a cumulative basis.

@ Primarily represents the Company’s obligation on securities sold short required to be accounted for at fair value per applicable accounting guidance.
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The following table presents the changes in fair value for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the three months ended March 31:

Net Change
in Unrealized
Net Gains Gains (Losses)
(Losses) Relating to
Net Gains Included in Assets and
Beginning (Losses) Other End Liabilities
of Period Included in  Comprehensive of Period Held at End
(Dollars in Millions) Balance  Net Income Income (Loss)  Purchases Sales Issuances — Settlements Balance of Period
2021
Avalilable-for-sale securities
Asset-backed securities . ... ... .. 3 7 $ - $- $ - $- $ - $ - 9 7 $ -
Obligations of state and political
subdivisions . ... 1 - - - - - - 1 -
Total available-for-sale . . . . 8 - - - - - - 8 -
Mortgage servicingrights . .. . ... ... .. 2,210 242 (a) - 16 - 319 (c) - 2,787 242 (a)
Net derivative assets and liabilites . . . . . . 2,326 (935) (b) - 2 - - (237) 1,156 (900) (d)
2020
Avalilable-for-sale securities
Asset-backed securities . ... ... $ 8 $ - $- $ - $- $ - $ - 9 8 $ -
Obligations of state and political
subdivisions . . ..o 1 - 1 - - - - 2 1
Total available-for-sale . . .. .. 9 - 1 - - - - 10 1
Mortgage servicing rights ... . .. .. .. .. 2,546 (8606) (a) - 5 1 201 (c) - 1,887 (866) (a)
Net derivative assets and liabllites . . . . . . 810 1,742 (e) - 4 - - (60) 2,496 1,726 (f)

(@) Included in mortgage banking revenue.
(b)  Approximately $60 million included in mortgage banking revenue and $(995) million included in commercial products revenue.
(c)  Represents MSRs capitalized during the period.
(d)  Approximately $78 million included in mortgage banking revenue and $(978) million included in commercial products revenue.
(e)  Approximately $357 million, $1.4 bilion and $(1) milion included in mortgage banking revenue, commercial products revenue and other noninterest income, respectively.
() Approximately $214 milion, $1.5 billion and $(1) million included in mortgage banking revenue, commercial products revenue and other noninterest income, respectively.
The Company is also required periodically to measure certain other financial assets at fair value on a nonrecurring
basis. These measurements of fair value usually result from the application of lower-of-cost-or-fair value accounting or

write-downs of individual assets.

The following table summarizes the balances as of the measurement date of assets measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis, and still held as of the reporting date:

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
(Dollars in Millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level2  Level 3 Total
LOANS (B) . o v $- $- $31  $81 $- $  $385 $385
Otherassets (0) . . .. . - - 9 9 - - 30 30

(@) Represents the carrying value of loans for which adjustments were based on the fair value of the collateral, excluding loans fully charged-off.

(b)  Primarily represents the fair value of foreclosed properties that were measured at fair value based on an appraisal or broker price opinion of the collateral subsequent to their initial
acquisition.

The following table summarizes losses recognized related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of individual assets

or portfolios for the three months ended March 31:

(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020
LOANS (B) .« v v o e e e e e $31 $5
OtNer @ssets (D) .« v v v v 1 3
(@) Represents write-downs of loans which were based on the fair value of the collateral, excluding loans fully charged-off.

(b)  Primarily represents related losses of foreclosed properties that were measured at fair value subsequent to their initial acquisition.
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Fair Value Option

The following table summarizes the differences between the aggregate fair value carrying amount of MLHEFS for which
the fair value option has been elected and the aggregate unpaid principal amount that the Company is contractually
obligated to receive at maturity:

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
Value  Aggregate Amount Over Value  Aggregate Amount Over
Carrying Unpaid  (Under) Unpaid Carrying Unpaid  (Under) Unpaid
(Dollars in Millions) Amount Principal Principal Amount Principal Principal
Totalloans . . . . $8,869 $8,685 $184 $8,524 $8,136 $388
Nonaccrual I0ans. . .. oo o 1 1 - 1 1 -
Loans 90 daysormore pastdue .. ... .. ... . 1 1 - 2 2 -

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following section summarizes the estimated fair value for financial instruments accounted for at amortized cost as
of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020. In accordance with disclosure guidance related to fair values of financial
instruments, the Company did not include assets and liabilities that are not financial instruments, such as the value of
goodwill, long-term relationships with deposit, credit card, merchant processing and trust customers, other purchased
intangibles, premises and equipment, deferred taxes and other liabilities. Additionally, in accordance with the disclosure
guidance, receivables and payables due in one year or less, insurance contracts, equity investments not accounted for at
fair value, and deposits with no defined or contractual maturities are excluded.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are shown in the table below:

March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Camying Fair Value Camying Fair Value
(Dollars in Millions) Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Cash and due from banks .. $ 43,501  $43,501 § - $ - $ 43,501 $ 62580 $62,580 $ - 8 - $ 62,580

Federal funds sold and
securities purchased
under resale

agreements . . ... ... 403 - 403 - 403 377 - 377 - 377
Loans held for sale (@) . . . . . 122 - - 122 122 237 - - 237 237
loans . ........ ... ... 288,084 - - 296,703 296,703 290,393 - - 300,419 300,419
Other(o).............. 1,877 - 899 978 1,877 1,772 - 731 1,041 1,772
Financial Liabilities
Time deposits . . .. ... ... 283,711 - 23,834 - 23,834 30,694 - 30,864 - 30,864
Short-term borrowings (C) . . . 10,009 - 9,963 - 9,963 10,009 - 9,956 - 9,956
Long-termdebt ... ... ... 37,419 - 38,086 - 38,086 41,297 - 42,485 - 42,485
Other(d).............. 3,905 - 1,175 2,730 3,905 4,052 - 1,234 2,818 4,052

(a)  Excludes mortgages held for sale for which the fair value option under applicable accounting guidance was elected.

(b)  Includes investments in Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home [Loan Bank stock and tax-advantaged investments.

(c)  Excludes the Company’s obligation on securities sold short required to be accounted for at fair value per applicable accounting guidance.
(d)  Includes operating lease liabilities and liabiltties related to tax-advantaged investments.

The fair value of unfunded commitments, deferred non-yield related loan fees, standby letters of credit and other
guarantees is approximately equal to their carrying value. The carrying value of unfunded commitments, deferred
non-yield related loan fees and standby letters of credit was $691 million and $774 million at March 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020, respectively. The carrying value of other guarantees was $288 million and $362 million at
March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

[TIZXEE Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

Visa Restructuring and Card Association Litigation The Company’s payment services business issues credit and debit
cards and acquires credit and debit card transactions through the Visa U.S.A. Inc. card association or its affiliates
(collectively “Visa”). In 2007, Visa completed a restructuring and issued shares of Visa Inc. common stock to its
financial institution members in contemplation of its initial public offering (“IPO”) completed in the first quarter of
2008 (the “Visa Reorganization”). As a part of the Visa Reorganization, the Company received its proportionate
number of shares of Visa Inc. common stock, which were subsequently converted to Class B shares of Visa Inc.
(“Class B shares”).
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Visa U.S.A. Inc. (“Visa U.S.A.”) and MasterCard International (collectively, the “Card Brands”) are defendants in
antitrust lawsuits challenging the practices of the Card Brands (the “Visa Litigation™). Visa U.S.A. member banks have
a contingent obligation to indemnify Visa Inc. under the Visa U.S.A. bylaws (which were modified at the time of the
restructuring in October 2007) for potential losses arising from the Visa Litigation. The indemnification by the Visa
U.S.A. member banks has no specific maximum amount. Using proceeds from its IPO and through reductions to the
conversion ratio applicable to the Class B shares held by Visa U.S.A. member banks, Visa Inc. has funded an escrow
account for the benefit of member financial institutions to fund their indemnification obligations associated with the
Visa Litigation. The receivable related to the escrow account is classified in other liabilities as a direct offset to the
related Visa Litigation contingent liability.

In October 2012, Visa signed a settlement agreement to resolve class action claims associated with the multi-
district interchange litigation pending in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York (the
“Multi-District Litigation”). The U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit reversed the approval of that settlement
and remanded the matter to the district court. Thereafter, the case was split into two putative class actions, one seeking
damages (the “Damages Action”) and a separate class action seeking injunctive relief only (the “Injunctive Action”). In
September 2018, Visa signed a new settlement agreement, superseding the original settlement agreement, to resolve the
Damages Action. The Damages Action settlement was approved by the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of New York, but is now on appeal. The Injunctive Action, which generally seeks changes to Visa rules, is still
pending.

Other Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

The following table is a summary of other guarantees and contingent liabilities of the Company at March 31, 2021:

Maximum

Potential

Collateral  Carrying Future

(Dollars in Millions) Held  Amount  Payments

Standby letters of credit . . . . e $ - $68 $ 9789

Third party borrowing arangementS . . . v . o v o - - 3

Securities lending indemnifications . . . . . . . 8,254 - 8,106
ASSELSAIBS . . - 82 6,132 (a)

Merchant ProCESSING . . v v oo 559 179 91,183

Tender option bond program guarantee . . . . . . 1,720 - 1,493

ONEr - 27 1,214

(@) The maximum potential future payments do not include loan sales where the Company provides standard representation and warranties to the buyer against losses related to loan
underwriting documentation defects that may have existed at the time of sale that generally are identified after the occurrence of a triggering event such as delinquency. For these
types of loan sales, the maximum potential future payments is generally the unpaid principal balance of loans sold measured at the end of the current reporting period. Actual
losses will be significantly less than the maximum exposure, as only a fraction of loans sold will have a representation and warranty breach, and any losses on repurchase would
generally be mitigated by any collateral held against the loans.

Merchant Processing The Company, through its subsidiaries, provides merchant processing services. Under the rules of

credit card associations, a merchant processor retains a contingent liability for credit card transactions processed. This

contingent liability arises in the event of a billing dispute between the merchant and a cardholder that is ultimately
resolved in the cardholder’s favor. In this situation, the transaction is “charged-back” to the merchant and the disputed
amount is credited or otherwise refunded to the cardholder. If the Company is unable to collect this amount from the
merchant, it bears the loss for the amount of the refund paid to the cardholder.

The Company currently processes card transactions in the United States, Canada and Europe through wholly-
owned subsidiaries. In the event a merchant was unable to fulfill product or services subject to future delivery, such as
airline tickets, the Company could become financially liable for refunding the purchase price of such products or
services purchased through the credit card associations under the charge-back provisions. Charge-back risk related to
these merchants is evaluated in a manner similar to credit risk assessments and, as such, merchant processing contracts
contain various provisions to protect the Company in the event of default. At March 31, 2021, the value of airline
tickets purchased to be delivered at a future date through card transactions processed by the Company was $4.9 billion.
The Company held collateral of $367 million in escrow deposits, letters of credit and indemnities from financial
institutions, and liens on various assets. In addition to specific collateral or other credit enhancements, the Company
maintains a liability for its implied guarantees associated with future delivery. At March 31, 2021, the liability was
$155 million primarily related to these airline processing arrangements.

Asset Sales The Company regularly sells loans to GSEs as part of its mortgage banking activities. The Company
provides customary representations and warranties to GSEs in conjunction with these sales. These representations and
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warranties generally require the Company to repurchase assets if it is subsequently determined that a loan did not meet
specified criteria, such as a documentation deficiency or rescission of mortgage insurance. If the Company is unable to
cure or refute a repurchase request, the Company is generally obligated to repurchase the loan or otherwise reimburse
the GSE for losses. At March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company had reserved $19 million for potential
losses from representation and warranty obligations. The Company’s reserve reflects management’s best estimate of
losses for representation and warranty obligations. The Company’s repurchase reserve is modeled at the loan level,
taking into consideration the individual credit quality and borrower activity that has transpired since origination. The
model applies credit quality and economic risk factors to derive a probability of default and potential repurchase that are
based on the Company’s historical loss experience, and estimates loss severity based on expected collateral value. The
Company also considers qualitative factors that may result in anticipated losses differing from historical loss trends.

As of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company had $10 million and $13 million, respectively, of
unresolved representation and warranty claims from GSEs. The Company does not have a significant amount of
unresolved claims from investors other than GSEs.

Litigation and Regulatory Matters

The Company is subject to various litigation and regulatory matters that arise in the ordinary course of its business.
The Company establishes reserves for such matters when potential losses become probable and can be reasonably
estimated. The Company believes the ultimate resolution of existing legal and regulatory matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of operations or cash flows of the Company. However, in
light of the uncertainties inherent in these matters, it is possible that the ultimate resolution of one or more of these
matters may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results from operations for a particular period, and future
changes in circumstances or additional information could result in additional accruals or resolution in excess of
established accruals, which could adversely affect the Company’s results from operations, potentially materially.

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities Litigation Starting in 2011, the Company and other large financial institutions
have been sued in their capacity as trustee for residential mortgage—backed securities trusts. In the lawsuits brought
against the Company, the investors allege that the Company’s banking subsidiary, U.S. Bank National Association
(“U.S. Bank™), as trustee caused them to incur substantial losses by failing to enforce loan repurchase obligations and
failing to abide by appropriate standards of care after events of default allegedly occurred. The plaintiffs in these
matters seek monetary damages in unspecified amounts and most also seek equitable relief.

Regulatory Matters The Company is continually subject to examinations, inquiries and investigations in areas of
heightened regulatory scrutiny, such as compliance, risk management, third-party risk management and consumer
protection. For example, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (“CFPB”) is investigating certain of the Company’s
consumer sales practices, and the Company has responded and continues to respond to the CFPB. The Company is
cooperating fully with all pending examinations, inquiries and investigations, any of which could lead to administrative
or legal proceedings or settlements. Remedies in these proceedings or settlements may include fines, penalties,
restitution or alterations in the Company’s business practices (which may increase the Company’s operating expenses
and decrease its revenue).

Outlook Due to their complex nature, it can be years before litigation and regulatory matters are resolved. The
Company may be unable to develop an estimate or range of loss where matters are in early stages, there are significant
factual or legal issues to be resolved, damages are unspecified or uncertain, or there is uncertainty as to a litigation class
being certified or the outcome of pending motions, appeals or proceedings. For those litigation and regulatory matters
where the Company has information to develop an estimate or range of loss, the Company believes the upper end of
the range of reasonably possible losses in aggregate, in excess of any reserves established for matters where a loss is
considered probable, will not be material to its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. The Company’s
estimates are subject to significant judgment and uncertainties, and the matters underlying the estimates will change
from time to time. Actual results may vary significantly from the current estimates.

LIIERL] Business Segments

Within the Company, financial performance is measured by major lines of business based on the products and services
provided to customers through its distribution channels. These operating segments are components of the Company
about which financial information is prepared and is evaluated regularly by management in deciding how to allocate
resources and assess performance. The Company has five reportable operating segments:

Corporate and Commercial Banking Corporate and Commercial Banking offers lending, equipment finance and small-ticket
leasing, depository services, treasury management, capital markets services, international trade services and other financial
services to middle market, large corporate, commercial real estate, financial institution, non-profit and public sector clients.
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Consumer and Business Banking Consumer and Business Banking delivers products and services through banking
offices, telephone servicing and sales, on-line services, direct mail, ATM processing and mobile devices. It encompasses
community banking, metropolitan banking and indirect lending, as well as mortgage banking.

Wealth Management and Investment Services Wealth Management and Investment Services provides private banking,
financial advisory services, investment management, retail brokerage services, insurance, trust, custody and fund
servicing through four businesses: Wealth Management, Global Corporate Trust & Custody, U.S. Bancorp Asset
Management and Fund Services.

Payment Services Payment Services includes consumer and business credit cards, stored-value cards, debit cards,
corporate, government and purchasing card services, consumer lines of credit and merchant processing.

Treasury and Corporate Support Treasury and Corporate Support includes the Company’s investment portfolios,
funding, capital management, interest rate risk management, income taxes not allocated to business segments, including
most investments in tax-advantaged projects, and the residual aggregate of those expenses associated with corporate
activities that are managed on a consolidated basis.

Basis of Presentation Business segment results are derived from the Company’s business unit profitability reporting
systems by specifically attributing managed balance sheet assets, deposits and other liabilities and their related income or
expense. The allowance for credit losses and related provision expense are allocated to the business segments according
to the volume and credit quality of the loan balances managed, but with the impact of changes in economic forecasts
recorded in Treasury and Corporate Support. Goodwill and other intangible assets are assigned to the business segments
based on the mix of business of an entity acquired by the Company. Within the Company, capital levels are evaluated
and managed centrally; however, capital is allocated to the business segments to support evaluation of business
performance. Business segments are allocated capital on a risk-adjusted basis considering economic and regulatory
capital requirements. Generally, the determination of the amount of capital allocated to each business segment includes
credit allocations following a Basel III regulatory framework. Interest income and expense is determined based on the
assets and liabilities managed by the business segment. Because funding and asset liability management is a central
function, funds transfer-pricing methodologies are utilized to allocate a cost of funds used or credit for funds provided to
all business segment assets and liabilities, respectively, using a matched funding concept. Also, each business unit is
allocated the taxable-equivalent benefit of tax-exempt products. The residual effect on net interest income of asset/
liability management activities is included in Treasury and Corporate Support. Noninterest income and expenses directly
managed by each business segment, including fees, service charges, salaries and benefits, and other direct revenues and
costs are accounted for within each segment’s financial results in a manner similar to the consolidated financial
statements. Occupancy costs are allocated based on utilization of facilities by the business segments. Generally, operating
losses are charged to the business segment when the loss event is realized in a manner similar to a loan charge-off.
Noninterest expenses incurred by centrally managed operations or business segments that directly support another
business segment’s operations are charged to the applicable business segment based on its utilization of those services,
primarily measured by the volume of customer activities, number of employees or other relevant factors. These allocated
expenses are reported as net shared services expense within noninterest expense. Certain activities that do not directly
support the operations of the business segments or for which the business segments are not considered financially
accountable in evaluating their performance are not charged to the business segments. The income or expenses associated
with these corporate activities is reported within the Treasury and Corporate Support business segment. Income taxes are
assessed to each business segment at a standard tax rate with the residual tax expense or benefit to arrive at the
consolidated effective tax rate included in Treasury and Corporate Support.

Designations, assignments and allocations change from time to time as management systems are enhanced,
methods of evaluating performance or product lines change or business segments are realigned to better respond to the
Company’s diverse customer base. During 2021, certain organization and methodology changes were made and,
accordingly, 2020 results were restated and presented on a comparable basis.
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Business segment results for the three months ended March 31 were as follows:

Corporate and Commercial Consumer and Wealth Management and
Banking Business Banking Investment Services
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Condensed Income Statement
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) . . . ... .. ... $ 666 $ 784 $ 1625 $ 1,531 $ 204 $ 284
Noninterestincome . . . ... ... . 259 271 617 757 492 466
Totalnetrevenue. . ... .. ... .. .. 925 1,055 2,242 2,288 696 750
Noninterest expense . . . .. ... e 406 443 1,388 1,336 459 449
Otherintangibles . .. ... .. ... . - - 3 4 2 3
Total noninterest expense . ... .. .. ... 406 443 1,391 1,340 461 452
Income (loss) before provision and income taxes. . .. .. ... 519 612 851 948 235 298
Provision for creditlosses . . ... ... (40) 424 (44) 123 7 23
Income (loss) before income taxes . . ... ... 559 188 895 825 228 275
Income taxes and taxable-equivalent adjustment . . .. . . . .. 140 47 224 206 57 69
Netincome (I0SS) . . . . v oo i 419 141 671 619 171 206
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests . . . . - - - - - -
Net income (loss) attributable to U.S. Bancorp . ... ... . .. $ 419 $ 141 $ 671 $ 619 $ 171 $ 206
Average Balance Sheet
0 $ 94,872 $103,368 $1563,177  $146,718 $ 12,443 $ 10,608
Othereamingassets . . .. ... oo 4,308 4,555 10,203 4,967 279 281
Goodwill . . 1,647 1,647 3,475 3,574 1,619 1,617
Otherintangible assets ... ......... ... ... .. . ... 5 7 2,491 2,411 42 44
ASSELS 107,022 115,308 175,541 161,886 15,662 13,950
Noninterest-bearing deposits . . ... ... ... . L 51,020 29,370 39,186 27,866 20,277 13,232
Interest-bearing deposits . ... ... o 67,750 80,657 166,876 133,718 71,629 68,842
Totaldeposits . . ... ... 118,770 110,027 206,062 161,584 91,906 82,074
Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders’ equity . ... .......... 13,074 14,182 13,453 13,422 2,634 2,671
Payment Treasury and Consolidated
Services Corporate Support Company
(Dollars in Millions) 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Condensed Income Statement
Net interest income (taxable-equivalent basis) . . . ... ... .. $ 628 $ 661 $ 34) 9% (13) $ 3,089 $ 3,247
Noninterestincome . . .. .. .. 785 (a) 794 (a) 228 237 2,381 (b) 2,625 (b)
Totalnetrevenue . . ... ... ... . . 1,413 1,455 194 224 5,470 (c) 5,772 (o)
Noninterest expense . . . . ... 782 754 306 292 3,341 3,274
Otherintangibles ... ... ... . 33 35 - - 38 42
Total noninterestexpense . .. ... ... o 815 789 306 292 3,379 3,316
Income (loss) before provision and income taxes. . . . ... .. 598 666 (112) (68) 2,091 2,456
Provision for creditlosses . . .. ... ... 41 262 (709) 161 (827) 993
Income (loss) before incometaxes . . ... ... ... ... 639 404 597 (229) 2,918 1,463
Income taxes and taxable-equivalent adjustment . . . . . . . .. 160 101 52 (139) 633 284
Netincome (I0SS) .« v v oo 479 303 545 (90) 2,285 1,179
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests . . . . - - 5) 8) ) 8)
Net income (loss) attributable to U.S. Bancorp .. ... ... .. $ 479 $ 303 $ 540 $ (98) $ 2,280 $ 1171
Average Balance Sheet
LoansS. . $ 29,630 $ 33,688 $ 3867 $ 3275 $293,989 $297,657
Othereamingassets . . . ... .o i 5 6 188,927 140,256 203,722 150,065
Goodwill . . . 3,173 2,856 - - 9,914 9,694
Otherintangible assets . . . ...................... 544 557 - - 3,082 3,019
ASSEIS v 35,095 38,285 215,414 165,378 548,734 494,807
Noninterest-bearing deposits . .. ... .. ... ... .. .. ... 5,264 1,471 2,605 2,203 118,352 74,142
Interest-bearing deposits .. ... ... oo 132 114 1,625 5,331 308,012 288,662
Totaldeposits . . .. ... 5,396 1,685 4,230 7,634 426,364 362,804
Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders’ equity . .. ... ........ 7,480 7,619 16,088 13,352 52,729 51,146

(a)  Presented net of related rewards and rebate costs and certain partner payments of $535 million and $530 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

(b)  Includes revenue generated from certain contracts with customers of $1.7 billion for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020.

(c)  The Company, as a lessor, originates retail and commercial leases either directly to the consumer or indirectly through dealer networks. Under these arrangements, the Company
recorded $228 million and $238 million of revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, primarily consisting of interest income on sales-type and
direct financing leases.
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('R Fd Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated the impact of events that have occurred subsequent to March 31, 2021 through the date
the consolidated financial statements were filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. Based on
this evaluation, the Company has determined none of these events were required to be recognized or disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements and related notes.
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U.S. Bancorp

Consolidated Daily Average Balance Sheet and Related
Yields and Rates (a)

For the Three Months Ended March 31

2021 2020
% Change
(Dollars in Millions) Average Yields and Average Yields and Average
(Unaudited) Balances Interest Rates Balances Interest Rates Balances
Assets
Investment securities .. ... $145,520 $ 534 1.47% | $120,843 $ 706 2.34% 20.4%
Loansheldforsale. ................ 10,032 67 2.69 4,748 44 3.75 *
Loans (b)
Commercial . . ... ..o 102,091 673 2.67 105,987 941 3.57 8.7)
Commercial real estate ... .. ... ... 38,786 305 3.19 40,078 428 4.30 3.2)
Residential mortgages . ... ... ... .. 75,201 645 3.44 70,892 663 3.74 6.1
Creditcard ... ... ... o 21,144 578 11.08 23,836 659 1.1 (11.3)
Otherretail . .. ................. 56,767 532 3.80 56,864 632 4.47 (.2)
Totalloans . . ............... 293,989 2,733 3.76 297,657 3,323 4.49 (1.2)
Othereamingassets . .............. 48,170 33 27 24,474 69 1.14 96.8
Totaleamingassets . . ... ... .. 497,711 3,367 2.73 447,722 4,142 3.71 11.2
Allowance for loan losses . . ... ..... .. (7,272) (5,588) (30.1)
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment
securities . ... 1,838 1,426 28.9
Otherassets . . . .................. 56,457 51,247 10.2
Totalassets. . . ........... $548,734 $494,807 10.9
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Noninterest-bearing deposits . . ... ... .. $118,352 $ 74,142 59.6%
Interest-bearing deposits
Interest checking .. ............. 97,385 6 .02 77,359 39 21 25.9
Money market savings . . .. ... ... .. 124,825 50 .16 121,946 311 1.02 2.4
Savingsaccounts . . ... 58,848 2 .01 48,048 26 22 22.5
Tmedeposits .. ............... 26,954 27 41 41,309 149 1.46 (34.8)
Total interest-bearing deposits . . . . 308,012 85 1 288,662 525 73 6.7
Short-term borrowings . . ... ... 13,107 16 51 20,253 73 1.45 (35.3)
long-termdebt . .. ... ... ... 39,463 177 1.81 43,846 297 2.73 (10.0)
Total interest-bearing liabilities . . . . . 360,582 278 31 352,761 895 1.02 2.2
Other liabilities . . ... ............ ... 16,441 16,128 1.9
Shareholders’ equity
Preferred equity ... ... ... ... 6,213 5,984 3.8
Commonequity ... ............. 46,516 45,162 3.0
Total U.S. Bancorp shareholders’
equUty . . 52,729 51,146 3.1
Noncontrolling interests . .. ... ... .. 630 630 -
Totalequity . . . ... ... .. ... 53,359 51,776 3.1
Total liabilites and equity . . . . . $548,734 $494,807 10.9
Net interest income . ... ............ $3,089 $3,247
Gross interestmargin . ... ... 2.42% 2.69%
Gross interest margin without taxable-
equivalent increments .. .. ... 2.40% 2.67%
Percent of Earning Assets
Interestincome .. ...... ... ... .. 2.73% 3.71%
Interest expense .. ... ... 23 .80
Netinterestmargin. .. .............. 2.50% 2.91%
Net interest margin without taxable-
equivalentincrements . ... ... ... .. 2.48% 2.89%

*

Not meaningful
(a) Interest and rates are presented on a fully taxable-equivalent basis based on a federal income tax rate of 21 percent.
(b) Interest income and rates on loans include loan fees. Nonaccrual loans are included in average loan balances.
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Part [l — Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings — See the information set forth in Note 15 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements under Part I, Item 1 of this Report, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 1A. Risk Factors — There are a number of factors that may adversely affect the Company’s business, financial
results or stock price. Refer to “Risk Factors” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2020, for discussion of these risks.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds — Refer to the “Capital Management”
section within Management’s Discussion and Analysis in Part I, Item 2 of this Report for information regarding shares

repurchased by the Company during the first quarter of 2021.

Item 6. Exhibits

3.1
31.1
31.2
32

101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB

101.PRE
104

U.S. Bancorp

Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section
1350 as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

XBRL Instance Document — the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File
because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

The cover page of U.S. Bancorp’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

March 31, 2021, formatted in Inline XBRL (included within the Exhibit 101 attachments).
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

U.S. BANCORP

By: /s/ LisA R. STARK

Lisa R. Stark
Controller

Dated: May 4, 2021 (Principal Accounting Officer and Duly Authorized Officer)
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
I, Andrew Cecere, certify that:
(1) I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of U.S. Bancorp;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/  ANDREW CECERE

Andrew Cecere
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: May 4, 2021
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
I, Terrance R. Dolan, certify that:
(1) I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of U.S. Bancorp;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/  TERRANCE R. DOLAN

Terrance R. Dolan
Chief Financial Officer

Dated: May 4, 2021
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EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the
undersigned, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of U.S. Bancorp, a Delaware corporation (the
“Company”), do hereby certify that:

(1) The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 (the “Form 10-Q”) of the Company
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

/s/  ANDREW CECERE /s/ TERRANCE R. DOLAN
Andrew Cecere Terrance R. Dolan
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Dated: May 4, 2021

U.S. Bancorp
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Corporate Information

Executive Offices

U.S. Bancorp
800 Nicollet Mall
Minneapolis, MN 55402

Common Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar
Computershare acts as our transfer agent and registrar, dividend
paying agent and dividend reinvestment plan administrator, and
maintains all shareholder records for the Company. Inquiries related
to shareholder records, stock transfers, changes of ownership, lost
stock certificates, changes of address and dividend payment should
be directed to the transfer agent at:

Computershare

P.O. Box 505000

Louisville, KY 40233

Phone: 888-778-1311 or 201-680-6578 (international calls)
Internet: www.computershare.com/investor

Registered or Certified Mail:
Computershare

462 South 4th Street, Suite 1600
Louisville, KY 40202

Telephone representatives are available weekdays from 8 a.m. to

6 p.m., Central Time, and automated support is available 24 hours a
day, seven days a week. Specific information about your account is
available on Computershare’s Investor Center website.

Independent Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP serves as the independent auditor for
U.S. Bancorp’s financial statements.

Common Stock Listing and Trading
U.S. Bancorp common stock is listed and traded on the New York
Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol USB.

Dividends and Reinvestment Plan

U.S. Bancorp currently pays quarterly dividends on our common
stock on or about the 15th day of January, April, July and October,
subject to approval by our Board of Directors. U.S. Bancorp
shareholders can choose to participate in a plan that provides
automatic reinvestment of dividends and/or optional cash purchase
of additional shares of U.S. Bancorp common stock. For more
information, please contact our transfer agent, Computershare.

Investor Relations Contact

Jennifer A. Thompson, CFA

Executive Vice President, Investor Relations
jen.thompson@usbank.com

Phone: 612-303-0778 or 866-775-9668

Financial Information
U.S. Bancorp news and financial results are available through our
website and by mail.

Website For information about U.S. Bancorp, including news,
financial results, annual reports and other documents filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, visit usbank.com and click on
About Us.

Mail At your request, we will mail to you our quarterly earnings,
news releases, quarterly financial data reported on Form 10-Q,
Form 10-K and additional copies of our annual reports. Please
contact:

U.S. Bancorp Investor Relations
800 Nicollet Mall

Minneapolis, MN 55402
investorrelations@usbank.com
Phone: 866-775-9668

bancorp

Media Requests

David R. Palombi

Global Chief Communications Officer
Public Affairs and Communications
david.palombi@usbank.com

Phone: 612-303-3167

Privacy

U.S. Bancorp is committed to respecting the privacy of our
customers and safeguarding the financial and personal information
provided to us. To learn more about the U.S. Bancorp commitment
to protecting privacy, visit usbank.com and click on Privacy.

Code of Ethics

At U.S. Bancorp, our commitment to high ethical standards guides
everything we do. Demonstrating this commitment through our
words and actions is how each of us does the right thing every day
for our customers, shareholders, communities and each other. Our
ethical culture has been recognized by the Ethisphere Institute,
which again named us to its World’s Most Ethical Companies® list.

For details about our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, visit
usbank.com and click on About Us and then Investor Relations and
then Corporate Governance.

Diversity and Inclusion

At U.S. Bancorp, embracing diversity, championing equity and
fostering inclusion are business imperatives. We view everything we
do through a diversity, equity and inclusion lens to deepen our
relationships with our stakeholders: our employees, customers,
shareholders and communities.

Our employees bring their whole selves to work. We respect and value
each other’s differences, strengths and perspectives, and we strive to
reflect the communities we serve. This makes us stronger, more
innovative and more responsive to our diverse customers’ needs.

Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action

U.S. Bancorp and our subsidiaries are committed to providing Equal
Employment Opportunity to all employees and applicants for
employment. In keeping with this commitment, employment
decisions are made based on abilities, not race, color, religion, creed,
citizenship, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability,
veteran status, sexual orientation, marital status, gender identity or
expression, genetic information or any other factors protected by
law. The Company complies with municipal, state and federal fair
employment laws, including regulations applying to federal
contractors.

U.S. Bancorp, including each of our subsidiaries, is an equal
opportunity employer committed to creating a diverse workforce.

Accessibility

U.S. Bancorp is committed to providing ready access to our products
and services so all of our customers, including people with
disabilities, can succeed financially. To learn more, visit usbank.com
and click on Accessibility.

U.S. Bancorp
EQUAL HOUSING Member FDIC
LENDER

This report has been produced on recycled paper.@
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